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C H A I R M A N a n d C E O ' s 

L E T T E R to S H A R E H O L D E R S 

The last two years have presented a difficuk eiivirojmieiu for businesses 

reliant upon discrerioriary spending. Like die majority of our competitors 

throughout the gaming industry, we faced a sluggish economy, volatile 

investment climate, high unemployment and faltering consumer 

confidence. The combined effect of this uncertain business climate is 

clearly reflected in our fiscai 2010 results. However, despite the pressures 

we have ficed, we are proud of rhe extraordinar)^ accomplishments 

achieved by our team during a challenging fiscal year. 

Ac Isle of Capri Casinos, wc have focused our 

hiiiincss model on'fiscal discipline, prndenc growth 

.•iiraregies and becoming the service leader in die 

markets wc .«:rvc. Specifically, wv: 

• Added a 15th propert)' to our growing casino 

portfolio. 

• Trimmed propert)'-level operadng expenses by 

i l 2 million last year for a total reduction of 
S32 million over the past two fi.scal years. 

• Condnued co incrcasecourtesyscore.'i by 50 percent 

over the last two years. 

' .Strengthened our balance sheet with an amended 
.sc-nior crcdit facilir)-and a jnure than S.̂ 0() million 

reduction in overall debt over the past two 
fiscal years. 

The.se accomplishments and more combine 
to create what is, we believe, perhaps our major 

acliievemeni of the year - cuntinuing to build a 

market-leading bu.siness piatfonn and a company 

poised fur success. 

Developing Our Platform 

In the fall ot 200S, we implemented a rotnprehciisive 
strategic plan designed to substantially tramform Isle 

of Capri Casinos. Our goal was to forge a solid 
plactorrn fur sustainable .success - building a strong 

operating company capable ofgeneraring incremental 
free cash How by aligning our operational .•itrateg>' 

with evolving customer needs. 

Following this plan and swiftlj' adapting to 
ch.ingint; economic conditions, over che past two 
years wc scrcngthcncd our operations and elevated 

the gaming experience by exceeding customer expec-

wtions through the development of hi«h service 
standards delivered by a well-trained and dedicated 
workforce, We solidly posirioned our properties to 
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consistcndy deliver the elements of the gaming e.\pe-
ricncc that customers idendi}' as most imporianc to 

their choice of entertainment venue. 

During fiscal 201U. Lsle ofCapri Casinos man
agement refined and updated the company's strategic 

initiatives, building on the strong foundation 
provided by the 2008 plan and reflecting todays 

challenging business landscape. Then as now. chc 
primary planks of our business plad"orm include 
strengthening financial discipline, increasing opera

tional efficiency, improving the customer experience, 
leveraging human capital, repositioning our brands 

and venues, targeting marketing initiatives and 
Itrveraging cechiiolog\'. 

WE S I C I N I F I C A N T L Y 

KEOUCl iD 
C U T 

OVERALL U E B T hy 

M O It E T H A N 

$ 3 0 0 M I L L I O N 
O V E R /Ac P A S T 

T W O F I S C A L VF.A KS , 

Financial Discipline. Reinforcing our stringent Hnaii-

ciaJ discipline, we improved the balance sheet, 

increased financial flcxibiiit)' and instilled a value-

added approach to capital spending. Reprioritizing 

or delaying many capital projects co focus .sqtiarely 

on debt reduction as we forge through the difficult 

macro-economic period, we significantly reduced 
our overall debl by more dian $300 million over ihe 

pa,st rwo fiscal years. 

An amendment to our senior crcdit faciiitj', 
effective February 2010, provides Isle wich leverage 

and covenant relief through the end of fiscal 2012. 
As a result, wc now have greater opcrarional and 
financial flexibilitj', and additional oprions as we 

seek tn improve our balance sheet and pursue growth 

opportunides. 

OperationalStrenp^h. With a keen focus on our core 
operating principles and executing the ftnidamcntals 

to gain efficiencies, wc strengthened operaduns 
across our portfolio - achieving significant progress 

on nearly every key operating iniiiative of Isle of 

Capri Casinos strategic plan. Streamlining opera
tions and right-sizing our business, wc decreased 

spending at the propcrtj' level by S32 million over 
the past two years, including a S12 million reduc

tion in fiscal 2010. Tliese cost reductions were 
achieved across the board - from our gaming floors, 
guest amenities and hotels to other facilities, marketing 

and administrariye costs. 

Esidblisliing a goal to be che leader in cleanliness 
and coirrtciy in ever)' jurisdiction in which Isle of 

Capri Casinos operates, we successfiiily created 
clean, .safe, friendly and fun experiences for our 

customers chat represent recognizable .value. Utilizing 
sophisticated customer research, we continue to 

aggressively seek ways to improve the value proposi
tion tor our guests, 

Customer Experience. To deliver an exccpdoiial gaining 

e.xperience, wc get closer to our guests and build last
ing relationships using strategic research to establish 

goals and measure our progress. This customer-

centric point of view helps drive repeat visits by 

focusing our operational plans and capital spending on 

issues out patrons value most. Further, our research 

provides a blueprint for property-level management 

to match the product oifering in each market to our 

tiirgct customers. 

Despite current marketphice pressures, patron 

visits increased at nearly all our properties last year. 

Tliis underscores che fact thai customers continue to 

value our product offering and invest a portion of 
their leisure dollars in a quality gaming experience 

- even during die worse of the recession. 

To accomplish this, we have complemenced 
our .service and courtesv programs with a strategy co 

offer customers a value propositiuii - more time on 
gam«. liettcr linod and beverage value, and more fim. 
To higlilight these changes, we have laiuiched highly 

succe.«fnl marketing programs to attracr customers 

who. more and more, demand a higher value for each 
and ever)' one of their discretionar\' dollars. 

To further elevate and simplif)' the customer 

experience, we are utilizing sophisticarcd technology 

- from c-commerce programs and standardized 

kiosk platforms to integrated point-of-salc/hotcl/ 
casino m.magcment .systems. 

Human Capitni Achieving our goals for operational 
excellence and customer satisfaction requires an 

exceptional workforce. At Isle ofCapri Ca.sinos, wc 
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focus on attracime, motivating, rewarding and 

retaining associates with a variet)' of innovative pro
grams. These include: a new hiring selecrion toolkit 

that ensures the right employees arc hired for the 
right positions; streamlined training programs that 
focus on the behaviors, skills and stiributes most 

important lo customers; p.jy-fur-ski Us programs; 
and a performance-driven compensation system for 

management. 

Our proprietary î cr. Say. Smile, custoiner cour
tesv program, introduced in May 2008, combines 

objective measurement and easy cnmniunication with 
the ability co reward front-line employees based on 

improved interactions with (»ur custinners. In che 
n.vo years since its inception, chis successful program 

ha.s dramatically increased guesc satisfaction from a 

baseline score of 60 percent co 90 percent at fi.scal 

year-end - and paid over S5 million in bonuses co 

employees. Our goal is co reach a corporate standard 

of 95 percent with a 15 percent advantage over market 

competitors. 

Brand Strategy. A key plank in our btrsiness platform 

is the development of a two-brand strategy designed 

to leverage the regional diversification ofour proper

ties. Under this strategy, all gaming properties will 

eventually become either a Lady Luck Casino tir lsle 

Casino Hotel. Each propert)' will be expected to 
meet or exceed customer expectations in a given 

market while retaining the size and scope to enable 

maximum profitability'. 

Despite the delay in implementing man)-

of the physical plant renovations as a result of fiscal 

discipline during a sluggish national economic 

period, we remain vigilant in turning our vision for 
an improved custoiner experience at each of our 

properties inm realit)' for our cusromers and our 

business. Ahead)', wc have made significant positive 
changes and refri'shed many nf our amenities tti 
succcssftillv continue co position our properties as 

che leader in entertainment value in their market-s. 

To support all of oiu' properties, we created 

and deployed a highly flexible marketing toolkit that 
pn)vidcs comprehensive, ready-to-u.se advertising 

campaigns and promotions that can be customized 
for each market. Tliis effort also streamlines our 

promotional cose structure and elevates che caliber of 
our markeung programs, hi addition, wc are altering 
our marketing mix to shil't resources to drive incre

mental recail play and improve margins. 

Identifying Ppportimit ies for Growili 
We continue Co sec significant opportunities to grow 

our business by reinvesting in our existing portfolio, 
including refreshing andrefurbishing our properties 

to remain corapeti'tive. Additional opportunities 
exis t to duplicate ihe successful Lady Luck conver

sions across our portfolio and to redefine che lsle 
brand as a regional,gaming attraction. 

OUT 

BRAND 
P O R T F O L I O 

OFFERS a COMPELLING 
VALUE p i i o p o . s r n o N 

far 
DEyEl.OPMHNT aud 

ACQb ' IS i ' nON 
O P P O R T U N I T I L S . 

With liigh capital costs and a cautious invest

ment community, wc belie\'e chat prudent accretive 

acquisitions and more modest new projects will pre\'ail 

ill the near term. Our brand portfolio oilers a compel

ling value proposition for development and acquisition 

opportunities. The stringent cnrcria wc follow in 

evaluating potential acqtiisitions include immediate 

accretion to free cash flow, mid-sized assets that arc 

regional in nature or locals markets, markers where we 
do not currcntlv" operate, and, protected compctirive 

locations, limited-license or low-tax markets. 

Further, che growing name recognition of 
Isle's brands, together with our financial and opera-
rional discipline and srrong management team, 

provide oppormnities to participate as an equit)' 

partner in joint ventures and consortium deaU. 

In June 2010, we completed the acquisition of 
Rainbow Casino in Vicksburg. Mississippi, finm 
Bally Technologies, Inc. Tlie S80 million all-cash 

transaction, funded under ourexisting credicfacilic)'. 
enables us to return co the Vicksburg market and 

expand our presence in iMissi-ssippi. The successful 
Rainbow propert)', wich its solid core business, fits 

well into our existing casino portfolio and should 
benefit from our operations and management exper
tise. We intend tu rebrand the casino to Lady Luck 

and seek other opportunities co add value. 

http://ready-to-u.se
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Nemacolin Woodlands Resort, one of North 

America's premier resort destinations situated on 
over 2,000 acres in southwestern Penn.sylvania. has 

applied fot a Category 3 naming license with the 
Pennsylvania Gaming Control Board. If the license 
is granted. Isle ofCapri Casinos will manage and 

market chc casino, wliich is planned co feature 600 
slot machines and at least 28 table games. Overall, 

we are hopeful that this opporEuiiit}' will allow us to 
develop a Lady Luck casino at Nemacolin as the 

flagship property ofour signature Lady Luck brand. 

In Mi.'Jsnuri, we have expressed our interest to 
che iVIissouri Gaming CommLssion for the states 

13ih lict:nse, which recently became available, 
dependent on conditions che commi.-ision may 

attach to the license. Applications are due in Sep
tember 2010, with a decision exptecced bv )T^ar-end. 

In die interim, we haw presented to die Cape 

Girardeau Cit)' Council our proposal to build a new 

i25,00O-.squafc-foot casino on a 20-acre site just 

north of the cit)''s downtown. 

As we look toward the future and continue to 

build a better business platform, we have taken into 

account that consumer spending has been hajnpercrd 
by the recession, and as a result, consumers have 

curtailed their average daily spending in stores, res

taurants and gas stations by at least 40 percent. For 

thegaimng industry, this consumer spending decline 

is reflected in a 4.3 percent decrease in gambling 

expenditures from che peak in the fourth quarter of 

2007. At the same rime, record high unemployment 

levels have impacted our operations. 

In light of these changes in our business 

environment, we believe we have made the right 

decisions to position lsle of Capri Ca.sinos co flourish 

when the economy refcoiuids. As we continue to 
refine our business model, we are exploring a wide 

variet)' of opportiihitici in various jurisdictions 
as che gamiiig industry continues co evolve geo

graphically and expand. Tliese plans include the 
rixenc formation of our management division, lsle 

Gaming Managerhent, designed to better explore 
opportunities and provide consulting services, to 
providei.1 platform for distressed asset management, 

joint ventures and strategic/financial parmerships in 
various; i tirisdici ions. 

Looking Aliead 

While the struggling economy continues to sputter, 
we temain committed to our goals of fiscal responsi

bility and shareholder value. Wc will consisteiuly seek 
ways ro re-engineer costs, fbrtif)' our balance sheet 

and improve.theguesttixjwrience across nur prop;rties. 
While Continuing, to fine-cune our operating model 

for increased profitability and free cash flow, we are 

actively exploring options for deplo)'ing capital. 

inclu(.ling potential acquisitions, greenfield dcN'elop-

mentand manageincntopportunities. .As we continue 

co execute the.se scratcgies, we are optimistic that our 

business will show clearer signs of economic improve

ment by late this calendar I'ear and into 2011. 

On behalf of our Board of Directors, manage

ment and associates across the company, thank you 

for your ongoing support and confidence. Like 
man)' of you, we look forward co prosperous and 

'profitable )'cars ahead for lsle ofCapri Casinos - as 

vve continue to build and reinforce the industry's 

best business platform. Finally, a special note of 

appreciation to John Brackenburv. who will retite 

ftftm the Board of Directors in October afccr helping 

to guide and grow our company since 2004. His 

wisdom and expertise have been greatly valued, and 
ihe entire Isle ofCapri team wishes him continued 
success wilh his fiirure endeavors. 

Siiii'i:rfiy yiiiin. 
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EXPLrVNATORV NOTE 

We are llling ihis Amcndmenl No. 2 !0 our Annual Report on Form lO-K for the year ended 
April 25, 2010 ("Amendment"), originally filed wilh the Securiiie.s and Exchange Commission (ihe 
"SEC") on June S, 2010 and amended on June 8, 2010 (the "Original Form 10-K"). 

The purpose of this Amendment is to amend the Original Form 10-K to include the information 
required by items 10 through 14 of Pari 111 of Form 10-K, which information was previously omitted 
from the Original Form 10-K in reliance on General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K. 'ITie reference on 
the cover of the Original Form 10-K to Ihe incorporation by reference to portions of our definitive 
pro-X}' -Statement into Part III of the Original Form 10-K is hereby deleted, Additionally, in Item 8, 
Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the following language in'the Subsequent Events section 
"No material subsequent events have occurred that reqijirerecogriilion or disclosure in the 
consolidated financial statements" has been replaced with a referencetp a new Note 21, which 
addresses the completion ofour acquisilion ofthe Rainbow Casino located in Vicksburg, Mississippi. 
Olher than described in the preceding sentence, the financial statements have not been revised. 

Pursuant lo the rules of the SEC, Item 15 of Part IV has.also been amentJed to contain the 
currently daied certifications from the Company's Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial 
Officer as required by Section 302 and 906 of the Snrbancs O.xley Act of. 2002. 'Hic certifications of the 
Company's Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer arc attached to this Amendment 
as Exhibits 31 and 32. 

For the convenience of the reader, this Amendmeni sets forth the Original Form lO-K, in its 
entirety, as modified and superseded where necessary to reflect the amendments discussed above. The 
following items have been amended to include the.required Part III informalion and to update 
subsequent events: 

• Part II—Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 

• Part III—Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance 

• Part III—Item 11. Executive Compensation 

• Part III—Ilem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and 
Related Stockholder Mailers 

• Part in—Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

• Part 111—Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services 

• Pan IV—Item 15(b). liKhibits 

'I'he rcmaining Items contained within this Amcndmenl consist of all oiher Iiem.s coniained in the 
Original Form 10-K and are included for the convenience of the reader. The sections of the Original 
Form 10-K which were not amended are unchanged and continue in full force and effect as originally 
filed. Olher than as required to reflect the changes discussed above, the Original Pbrm 10-K continues 
to speak as of the date thereof (or such other date as may be referred lo in the Original Form 10-K). 
Events occurring subsequent lo the filing of the Original Form 10-K and disclosures ncccssarj' id reflect 
any subsequenl evenls have been or will be addressed in our filings with the SEC for periods 
sub.sequent to the periods covered by the Original Form lO-K. 
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DLSCLOSURE RECARDINC FORWARD-LOOKINC STATE.MENTS 

This Annual RcptJil contains staiemenis thai we beiiei-e are, or may be considered to be, 
'fonvarddooking statements" wiihin the meaning of the'Private Securities Litigation Refonn Act of 1995. 
All .statements odier dian slalements of historical fact included hi-this Annual Reporl regarding the prospects 
ofour industry or our prospects, plans, financial po.sition orbushicss strategy, tnay constitute 
fonvard-Iooking statements. In addition, fonvard-Iooking .stalemetUs generally can be identified by the use of 
fonvard-Iooking words such as "may," "will," "expect," "intend," "estimate," "foresee," "project," 
"anticipate," "believe," "plan.s," 'forecasts," "continue" or "could" orythe negatives of the.se terms or 
variations of them or .similar tenns. Furthermore, such forward-lookuig-statemei'its may be included in 
various filings that we make with the SEC or press releases or oral statements[inade by or. with the approval 
of one of our authorized executive officers. Although we believe thqt-'ihe expectations reflected in these 
forward-looking statements are reasonable, wc cannot assure you that these expectations will prove lo be 
correct. These forn'arddooking statements are subject to certain known and unknown risks and 
uncenainties, as well as assuniptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those reflected, 
in these fonvard-Iooking statements. Factors that might cause actual .results to differ include, but are not 
limiled to, those discussed in the seciion entitled "Risk Factors" beginning othpage 10 of this report. Readers 
are cautioned not to place undue reliance on any fonvard-Iooking .statements'contained herein, which reflect 
managemenl's opinions only as of the date hereof Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to 
revise or publicly release the results of any re\'ision to any fotward'looking statements. You are advised 
however, to consult any addilional disclosures we make in duf reporLs to the SEC. All subsecpient written 
and oral forvi'ard-looking statements attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are cxpre.s.sly qualified 
in their entirety by the catitiotiary statements contained in this Annual Reporl. 

http://the.se


PART 1 

ITE.M I. BUSINESS 

Overview 

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodging 
and enienainmeni facilities in regional markcis in the Unilc"d States; We own and operate 14 casino 
properties in six states. Collectively, these properlies feature over 14,500 slot machines and over 
350 table games (including approximalcly 95 poker tables) over 3,0(10 hotel rooms and more than three 
dozen restaurants. We also operate a harness racing track,al our casino in Florida. We have sought and 
established geographic diversity lo limit the risks caused by weather, regional economic difficulties, 
gaming tax rates and regulations of local gaming authorities. 

Our business approach is anchored by a disciplined application of the following strategies: 

Focusittg on core operating pruiciples that have proven successful. 
Our operafing focus is lo deliver a superior guest experience by providing customers with the most 

popular gaming product in a clean, safe, friendly and fun environment: These areas have been shown 
through customer research to embody the altributes of agaming enterlainntent experience most 
important lo our customers in choosing whichcasino lo visit. We emphasize, among olher things, 
customer courtesy and we have implemented a proprietary program to measure our progress against 
standards for ceriain courtesv behaviors. In. addition, inahy of our capital and operaiing plans arc 
intended lo improve on guest satisfaciio'n, including quality, accessibility and cleanliness of areas 
frequented by our customers, such as hotel rooms and other public areas in our hotels and casino 
floors. We also have implemented employee incentive programs designed to encourage employees to 
deliver superior customer service and cf)unesy. 

Driving value ihrough product ojferings and branding. 
Our current strategy is lo evolve into operating our properties under only two separate brand 

names: lsle and Lady Luck (which we re-launched in, fiscal 2009). We use the Isle brand primarily al 
properties that have a regional draw. These are generally casinos,in larger markets where wc have 
expansion potential demonstrated by either the sizeiof the market or excess land that we control. 'The 
Isle-branded properties lypically offer expanded amenities, such as hotel rooms, expanded ftwd and 
beverage offerings and conference and conveniion capabilities. 

We use the Lady Luck brand on properties that predominantly draw local customers, which are 
typically in smaller markets with less.expansion potential. The goal of the Lady Luck brand is lo offer 
high quality entertainmenl oplions, featuring casual dining and popular local entertainmenl in a 
comfortable setting in addition to a first class gaming experience. We have completed ihe refurbishment 
and rebranding of three of our existing Isle properties under the Lady Luck brand: Marquette, Iowa in 
September 2009, Colorado Central Station in Black Hawk, Colorado in June 2009 and Caruthersville, 
Missouri in December 2008. We intend to rebrand some of our olher existing properties under the 
Lady Luck name during the nexl few years as economic condiiions and our capilal structure improve. 
Our current expectations are that Nalchez and Lula, Mississippi; Lake Charies, l.x)uisiana; Boonville, 
and Kansas Cily, Missouri; and Davenport, Iowa will eventually be rebranded to Lady Luck casinos. 

Continuing to focus on financial discipline. 
Wc have made efforts to reduce our debt levels. During the last 24 months, we have reduced our 

outstanding debt from approximately $1.5 billion as of April 27, 2008 to $1.2 billion or a reduction of 
approximately S300 million. We achieved this rcduciion through the use of cash obtained from ihe 
selllemenl of our Hurricane Katrina claim and cash flows from operations, to retire $142.7 million of 
the 1% senior subordinaied notes for $82.8 million through a lender offer, in February 2009 and a 
prepayment of $35 million ofour lerm loans under our senior secured credit facility in March 2009. In 
addition, wc recently entered into an amendment lo our senior secured credii facility that permits 



increased flexibility in operations and capilal spending. We conlinually seek opportunities to improve 
our capital structure. 

Aggressively pursuing pnident growth opportunities. 
Wc intend to continue to expand our operations through acquisitions, such as our recently 

announced agreement to acquire the-Rainbow Casino located in Vicksburg, Mississippi, and through 
management of casinos owned by third parlies. The Mississippi Gaming Commis.sion recently approved 
our acquisition of the Rainbow Casino and we plan to complete the $80 milhon acquisition in June 
2010. 

We formed Isle Gaming Managemeni, a managemeni and consulting division of the Company, in 
2009 to leverage our experienced and respected management team and intellectual property assets by 
managing and operating casinos owned by third parties in exchange for manageirient and other fees. 
The goal of Isle Gaming Management is to allow ns lo manage additional casino properties without 
requiring extensive capital investment. Jn January 2010, we entered into a managemeni agreemeni with 
Nemacolin Woodlands Resort. Nemacolin is localed in southwestern Pennsylvania near the West 
Virginia border, approxirpately 40 miles northeast of Morgantown, West Virginia and approximaiely 60 
miles southeast of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. Nemacolin has filed an applicalion with the Pennsylvania 
Gaming Control Board for the one rcmaining resort casino license in Penn.sylvania. Nemacolin is one 
of four applicants. We have also filed an application lo be licensed as a casino operator in 
Pennsylvania. If Nemacolin is awardcdthe license and we are granted an operator's license, wc have 
agreed lo make certain improvements lo an existing building at the resort, which will house a Lady 
Luck casino that we will manage. We will pay an annual fee lo the casino owner and in.return will 
receive a managemeni fee equal to the EBITDA of the casino after payment of the fee to Nemacolin. 
"ITie Pennsylvania Gaming Commission has ntjt set a timeline for the award of the remaining casino 
license. Wc are aeiively seeking other oppt)rlunilies lo manage casinos owned by third parlies. 

Casino Properties 

'I'he following is an overview of our exisling casino properties as of April 2.5, 2010: 

l>alc Acc|uired or Slut Tabh: 
Property Opened .Machines Games 

Louisiana 
Lake Charies July 1995 1,840 75 

Missmippi 
Lula March 2000 1,215 17 
Biloxi Augusi 1992 1,292 3fi 
Nalchez March 201)1) (il9 10 

Missoun 
Kansas City June 2000 1,201 22 
Boonville December 2001 981 19 
Caruthersville June 2007 619 Ifi 

Iowa 
Bettendorf March 2000 LOlO 31 
Rhythm Cilv-Davcnporl October 2000 954 Ifi 
Marquette March 2000 600 13 
Waterloo June 20(17 1,040 32 

Colorado 
Isle Ca.sii]o Hotel—Black Hawk December 1998 1.164 23 
Lady Lnck Casino—Black Hawk April 2003 581 20 

Flaritla 
Pompano Park July 199.5/April 2007 1,463 .38 

14,579 368 

Hotel 
Rooms 

493 

484 
710 
141 

140 

514 

195 

238 
164 

— 

3,079 

Parking 
Spaces 

2,335 

1,583 
1,600 

908 

1,618 
1,101 
1,000 

1,597 
911 
475 

1,487 

1.100 
1,21)0 

3,781 

20,696 



I^itisiana 

Lake Charles 

Our Lake Charles property, which commenced operalions in July 1995, is located on a 19-acrc site 
along Interstate 10, the main thoroughfare conneclihg 1 louslon, Texas to Lake Charles, Louisiana. The 
property consists of two dockside casinos offering 1,840 slot machines, 47 table games.. 28 poker tables, 
t\vo hotels offering 493 rooms, a 105,000 square fool land-based pavilion and entertainmenl center, and 
2335 parking spaces, including approximately I,400spaces in an attached parking garage. The pavilion 
and entertainment center offer customers a wide variety of non-gaming amenities, including a 97-scal 
Farraddays' restaurant, a 360-.seat Calypso's buffet, a 165-seat 'Tradewinds Marketplace, a 64-scai Lucky 
Wins Asian-inspired restaurant and Caribbean Cove,,which features free live enteriainment and can 
accommodate 180 customers. The pavilion also has a 14,750 square foot entertainment center 
comprised of a 1,100-seai special events center designed for concerts, live boxing, televised pay-per-view 
evenls, banquets and other evenls, meeting facilities'and administrative offices. 

'I'he Lake Charles market currently consists of two dockside gaming facilities, a Native American 
casino and a pari-mutuel faciliiy/racino. '̂ I'he current numbei of slot machines in the market e.xceeds 
8,200 machines and table games exceed 200 tables. In calendar year 2009, the two gaming facilities and 
one racino, in the aggregate, generated gaming revenues of approximately $665 million. Revenues for 
Ihe Naiive American properly.are not published. Gaming revenues for our:Lake Charles properly for 
calendar year 2009 were approximately $149 million. Lake Charles is the closest gaining market to the 
Houston metropolitan area, which has a population of approximaiely 5.5 million and is located 
approximaiely 140 miles west of Lake Charles. We.believe Ihat our l̂ ake Charles property attracts 
customers primarily from southeast Texas, including Houston, Beaumont. Galveston, Orange and Port 
Arthur and from local area residenls. Approximalcly 500.00(1 and 1.6 million people reside within 
50 and 100 miles, respeclivcly, of the Lake Charies properly. 

Mississippi 

Lula 

Our Lula property, which we acquired in March 2000, is strategically located off of llighway 49, 
the only road crossing the Mississippi River between Mississippi and Arkansas for more than 50 miles 
in either direction. 'Hie properly consists t>f two dockside casinos containing 1.2L5 slot machines and 
17 table games, two on-site hotels with a tolal of 484 rooms, a land-based pavilion and entertainment 
center, 1,583 parking spaces, and a 2S-space RV Park. The pavilion and entertainment center offer a 
wide variety of non-gaming amenities, including a 145-seat Farraddays' restaurant, a 300-seat Calypso's 
buffet and a 44-seat Tradewinds Marketplace, and a gift shop. All 171 rooms ofour Coral Reef Hotel 
underwent complete renovalion in 2008. 

Our Lula property is ihe only gaming facility in Coahoma County, Mississippi and generated 
gaming revenues of approximately $73 million in calendar year 2009. Lula draws a significant amounl 
of business from the Little Rock, Arkansas metropolitan area, which has a population of approximately 
675,000 and is Ux;ated approximately 120 miles west of the properly. Coahoma Couniy is also localed 
approximately 60 miles southwest of Memphis, Tennessee, which is primarily scn-cd by nine casinos in 
Tunica County, Mississippi. Approximately 1.1 million people reside within 60 miles of the properly. 
Lula also competes wilh Native American casinos in Oklahoma and a racino in West Memphis, 
Arkansas. 



Biloxi 

Our Biloxi property, which commenced operations in August 1992, is located on a 17-acre site at 
the eastern end of a cluster of facilities formerly known as "Casino Row" in Biloxi, Mississippi, and is 
the first property reached by visitors coming from Alabama, Florida and Georgia via Highway 90. 

In October 2005, the Mississippi legislature amended its gaming laws to allow casinos to operate 
land-based facilities within SOO feel ofthe mean high water line. Our Biloxi property is now a 
land-based casino offering appro.ximately 1,300 slol machines, 27 table games, a nine-table poker room, 
a 710-room hotel including 200 whirlpool suites, a l20-seai banquet room called ''Paradise Room," 
138-seal I^rraddaj's' restaurant, a 200-seat Calypso's buffet, a Tradewinds Express, a multi-story feature 
bar, a full service Starbucks and 1,600 parking spaces. 

'The Mississippi Gulf Coasl market (which includes Biloxi, Gulfporl and Bay Sl. Louis) is one of 
the largest gaming markets in the United Slates and consistsof II dockside gaming facilities, which in 
the aggregate, generated gaming revenues of approximately $1,1 billion during calendar year 2009. Our 
Biloxi property generated gaming revenues of approximately $73 million during calendar year 2009. 
Approximately one million people reside within 60 miles of the properly. 

Nalchez 

Our Natchez properly, which we acquired in March 2000, islqcated off of Highways 84 and 61 in 
western Mississippi. 'I'he property consists of a dockside casino offering 619 slol machines and 10 lable 
games, a 141-room off-site hotel localed approximately one mile from the casino, a 150-seat Calypso's 
buffet and 90S parking spaces. 

Our Nalchez property is currently the only gaming facility in the Natchez market and generated 
total gaming revenues of approximately S36 million in calendar year 2009. Wc believe that the Natchez 
property attracts customers primarily from among the approximately 351,000 people residing wiihin 
60 miles of the Natchez property. 

Mis.souri 

Kansas City 

Our Kansas City properly, which we acquired in June 2000, is the closest gaming facility lo 
downtown Kansas Citv and consists ofa dockside casino offering 1.201 slot machines and 22 lable 
games, a 260-seal Calypso's buffet, a 45-seat Tradewinds Marketplace and 1,618 parking spaces. 

ITie Kansas City markel consists of four dockside gaming facilities and a Native American casino. 
Operating statislics for ihc Native American casino are not published. The four dockside gaming 
facilities generated gaming revenues of approximaiely $720 million in calendar year 2009. Our Kansas 
Cily property generated gaming revenues of approximately $82 million during calendar year 2009. We 
believe that our Kansas City casino attracts customers primarily from the Kansas City metropolitan 
area, which has approximately 1.9 million residents 

On April 30, 2010, a ground-breaking ceremony was held lo signify the beginning of construction 
of a $521 million casino al the Kansas Speedway located in Wyandotte County, Kansas. 'This casino 
could open in eariy 2012. In the fourlh quarter of fiscal 2008 the State of Missouri, began 
reconstruction of the Paseo Bridge and interchanges adjacent lo our properly. 'I'he bridge and 
interchange construction is expected to continue into fiscal 2011. Access to our properly has been and 
will coniinue lo be hampered due to lane restrictions related to bridge construction and temporary 
entrance/exit ramp designs until the construction is completed. 



Boonville 

Our Boonville property, which opened on December 6, 2001, is localed ihree miles off Interstate 
70, approximalcly halfway between Kansas Cily and Sl. Louis. The property consists of a single level 
dockside casino offering 981 slot machines, 19 tabic games, a 140-room hotel, a 32,400 square foot 
pavilion and entertainmenl cenler and 1,101 parking spaces. The pavilion and entertainment center 
offers customers a wide variety of non-gaming amenities,,including an 83-scat Farraddays' restaurant, a 
218-scat Calypso's buffet, a 24-seat Tradewinds Marketplace, an 800 seat event center, and an historic 
display area. Our Boonville property is ihc only gaming faeitiiyin central Mi.ssouri and generated 
gaming revenues of approximately $82 million in calendar-year 20.09. We* believe that our Boonville 
casino attracts customers primarily from the approximately 583,000 people who reside within 60 miles 
of the property which includes the Columbia and Jefferson Cily areas. 

Caiiuhersville 

Our Carulhersville property was acquired on June U, 2007 and-is a riverboat casino localed along 
Ihe Mississippi River In Southeast Missouri. In June 2008, the casino was re-brande*d;as a Lady Luck 
casino with the construction and refurbishment completed in December 2008. The docksiiie casino 
offers 619 slot machines, 11 table games and 5 poker tables. As part of the re-branding, we renovated 
our 40,000 square foot pavilion, which includes a 130-seal Lone Wolf restaurant, bar.and lounge, and a 
270-seat Otis & ilenrj-'s restaurant. Renovations to the rivcrboal, Including the casino floor, were 
completed in the summer of 2009. The property also operaies a 10,000 square.fool exposition cenler 
with seating for up lo 1,100 patrons and has 1,000 parking spaces. Our Carulhersville facility Is the onlv 
casino lt>caied iti Southeast Missouri andgenerated gaming revenues of approximately $33 million in 
calendar year 2009. Appro.ximately 647,000 people reside within 60 miles of the property. 

Recent Changes to Missouri Gaming Laws—During November 2008, gaming law changes became 
effective in Missouri which repealed the $500 loss limil. 

Iowa 

Beltendorf 

The Bettendorf property, which we acquired in March 2000, is located off of Interstale 74, an 
interstate highway ser\'ing the Quad Cities metropolitan area, which consists of Bettendorf and 
Davenport, Iowa and Moline and Rock Island, Illinois. The property consists of a dockside casino 
offering 1,010 slot machines and 31 table games, 514 hotel rooms, 40,000 square feel of flexible 
convention/banquet space, a 102-seat Farraddays' restaurant, a 272-seal Calypso's buffet, a 26-seat 
Tradewinds Marketplace and 1,597 parking spaces. We have entered into agreements wilh the City of 
Betiendorf, Iowa under which we ihanage and provide financial and operating support for the QC 
Waterfront Conveniion Cenler that is adjacent to our hotel. "The QC Waterfront Conveniion Center 
opened in January 2009. 

Davmfwn 

Our Davenport properly, which wc acquired In October 2000, is located at the intersection of 
River Drive and Highway 61, a slate highway serving the Quad Cities metropolitan area. The property 
consists of a dockside gaming facility offering 954 slot machines, 16 table games, a 228-seal Hit Parade 
buffet, a Grab-n-Go food outlet and 911 parking spaces. 

'I'he Quad Cities metropolitan area currently has three gaming operalions—our two gaming 
facilities in Beltendorf and in Davenpon, and one operaior, which opened a larger land-based facility, 
including a hotel, in December 2008. The three operalions in the Quad Cities generated lotal gaming 
revenues of approximately $210 million in calendar year 2009. Our Beilendorf and Davenport 



properlies generated casino revenues for calendar year 2009 of approximalcly $82 million and 
$55 million, respectively. Our operations in the Quad CItiessalso compete vvith other gaming operations 
in Illinois and Iowa. Approximaiely 923,000 people reside within 60.miles of our Beltendorf and 
Davcnporl properties. 

Marquette 

Our Marquette properly, which we acquired in March 2000, is,l<>caled in Marqueile, Iowa, 
approximaiely 60 miles north of Dubuque, Iowa. 'Hie property consists of a dockside casino offering 
600 slot machines and 13 table games, a marina and 475 parkinglspaces. During fiscal-2C)10, we 
completed the rebranding of the property as a Lady Luck casino.,'Hie facility now includes a newly 
themed 158-scat buffet restaurant, an Otis and Henry's Express food outlet and a Lone Wolf restaurant 
and bar. 

Our Marquette properly is the only gaming facility in the'Marquette, Iowa market and generated 
gaming revenues of approximaiely $30 million in calendarycar-2009. We believe most of our Marqueile 
customers are from northeast Iowa and Wisconsin, which includes approximately 491,000 people within 
60 miles of our properly, and we compete for those customers with other gaming facilities In Dubuque, 
iowa and Native American casinos in southwestern Wisconsin.. 

Waterloo 

Our Waterloo property, which opened on Juric 30, •2(K)7j.is localed adjacent to Highway 218 and 
US 20 in Waterloo, Iowa. 'The properly consists of a single-level casino offering 1,040 slol machines, 
27 table games and 5 poker tables. 'The properly also offers a wide ..variety of non-garaing amenities, 
including a 123-seal Otis & Henry's restaurant, a 208-seat Isle buffet, a 36-seat Tradewinds 
marketplace. Club Capri Lounge, Fling feature bar, 5,000 square feel of meeling space, over 
1,487 parking spaces and a 195-room hotel, wtrich iiicliides 27 suites, as well as an indoor pool and hot 
tub area. 

Our Waterloo property is the only gaming facility in the Waterloo, Iowa markel and approximaiely 
636,000 people live wiihin (JO miles of the prtjperty. We compete \vith other casinos in eastern Iowa. We 
generated gaming revenues of approximately $78 million in calendar year 2009. 

Colorado 

Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk 

lsle Casino Hotel-Black TIawk commenced operations.in December 1998, is localed on an 
approximalcly 10-acre sile and is one of the first gaming facilities reached by customers arriving from 
Denver via Highway 119, the main-thoroughfare connecting Denver to Black Hawk. The property 
includes a land-based casino wilh 1,164 slot machines and 23 table games, a 238-room hotel and 
1,100 parking spaces in an atiached parking garage. Isle Casino Hotel-Black Hawk also offers 
customers three restaurants, including a 114-scat Farraddays' restaurant, a 271-seat Calypso's buffet and 
a 36-seat Tradewinds Marketplace. 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk 

Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk, which we acquired in April 2003 and rebranded in June 2009, is 
located acrtjss the intersection of Main Street and Mill Street from the Isle Casino Hotel-Black I lawk. 
The property consists of a land-based casino with 581 slot machines, 11 standard lable games, a nine 
lable poker room, a 164-room holel that opened in December 2005 and 1,200 parking spaces In our 
parking structure connecting Isle Casino Hotel-Black.Hawk and Lady Luck Casino-Black Hawk. 'The 
property also offers guests dining in its 94-seal Station Cafe thai was opened in early 2007 as well as a 
grab and go fast serve food counter ihal is localed in the lower level of the facility. Our Black Hawk 
sites are connected via sky bridges. 
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When casinos having muUiple gaming licenses in the same building are combined, the Black Hawk/ 
Central City markel consists of 24 gaming facilities (seven ofwhich have more than 600 slol machines), 
which in aggregate, generated gaming revenues of approximately $595 million in caleiidar year 2009. 
Our Black Hawk properties generated casino revenues.for calendar year 2009 of approximately 
$132 million. Black Hawk is the closest gaming markel lo the Denver, Colorado mclropolilan area, 
which has a population of approximaiely 2.9 million and is located approximately 40 miles east of Black 
Hawk and serves as the primary feeder market for Black Hawk. 

Recent Changes to Colorado Gaming Laws—On July 2, 2009, changes to the Colorado garning law 
went into effect which extended the hours of operation from 18 to 24 hours per day, expanded the 
lypes of permitted lable games lo include craps and roulette, and-increased the betting limits from 
$5 to $100 per bet. 

Florida 

Pompano 

In 1995, we acquired Ponipano Park, a harness racing irack located in Pompano Beach, Florida. 
Pompano Park is localed off of Interstate 95 and the Florida Turiipikcon a 223-'acrc owned site, near 
Fort Lauderdale, midway between Miami and West Palm Beach. Pompano Park is the only racetrack 
licensed to conduci harness racing in Rorida. 

Our Pompano facility includes 1,463 slol machines, a 38-table poker room, three restaurants, a 
feature bar and 3,781 parking spaces. 

Appro.ximaiely 2.6 million people reside within a 25-mile radius of our Pompano facility', which 
competes with four other racinos and three Naiive American facilities in the market. While casino 
revenues are not available for all market competitors, wc estimale that we operate approximately 12% 
of the sloi machines in the market and generated approximaiely $121 million in casino revenues for 
calendar year 2009. 

Recent Changes to Florida Gaining Laws—In April 2010, changes were made to Florida law which, 
among other things, lowered our stale gaming lax rate from 50% to 35% effective July 1, 2010. This 
legislation also allows the poker operations lo remain open for the same hours as the slot floor and 
removes the poker betting limits. I'he changes to Florida law were combined wiih the approval of a 
gaming compact belween the State of Florida and the Seminole Tribe of Florida. This gaming compact 
allows the tribe the exclusive righl outside of Miami-Dade and Broward counties to operate slol 
machines and other similar electronic gaming devices and the right lo operate live blackjack and 
baccarat table games for a period of five years at certain tribal gaming locations. 

International Operations 

Lucaya—We operated a casino in Grand Bahama from December 2003 ihrough November 2009, 
when we exiled the operaiion. 

Blue Chip—We operated casinos in Dudley and Wolverhampton, England. These casinos opened 
during fiscal 2004 and were operated by us until ihey were sold in November 2009. 

Coventry—Wc operated a casino in the Coventry Convention Center from July 2007 ihrough April 
2009, when we terminated our lease and sold the casino and related assets. 

Marketing 

Our markeiing programs are designed to promote our overall business strategy of providing 
customers with a safe, clean, friendly and fun gaming experience at each of our properties. We have 



developed an extensive proprieiar>' database of customers that allows us to create effective targeted 
marketing and promotional programs thai arc designed to rcwai-d customer loyalty, attract new 
customers to our properties and maintain high recognition ofour brands. 

Specifically, our marketing programs and initiatives are tailored to support this corporate strategic 
plan and are generally focused on ihe following areas: 

• Customer Research: Our marketing strategies have been developed and Implemented lo meet the 
needs and desires ofour casino customers in each of our locations. In order to assess these 
needs and desires, we engage in significant,customer research in each ofour markets by 
conducting periodic sur\'eys. Upon receipt of these surveys, weasscss the altitudes of our 
customers and the customers of our competitors' properties towards the most important 
attributes of their experience in a regional and/or local gaming facility. We use ihe extensive 
information gathered from these research initiatives ib'makc markeiing, operaiing and 
developmeni decisions that, we believe, will opiimize the position ofour properties relative to 
our coinpeijtion. 

• Branding Initiatives: Our strategic plan is designed tOiConsolidale our"properly portfolitj from 
four brands into two brands as the economy improves and we undertake significant new capilal 
improvement programs. To dale, we have begiin,this initiative ihrough,the re-branding of our 
properties in Carulhersville, Missouri, Marqueile, Iowa, and the conversion of Colorado Central 
Station in Black Hawk, Colorado to Lady Luck-Black-Hawk. As a component of these 
re-branding programs, we have also implerncntednewly-brafidcd.customer outlets, including 
custom restaurants and lounges that wc are expanding ihrough our portfolio to other properties. 
We believe, over tiine, this approach will allow us to. more effectively align and promote our 
properties based u(X)n customer needs anddesires and market our properties on a consolidated 
basis. Furthermore, wc expect our approach wilTstreamline the costs associated with marketing 
our portfolio. 

• Database Markeiing: Wc have streamlined our database markeiing initiatives across the Company 
in order to focus our markeiing efforts on profitable customers who have demonstrated a 
willingness to regularly visit our properties. Spccifically,,we have focused on eliminating from our 
database customers who have hislorically been included in significant marketing efforts but have 
proven costly eilher as a resuli of excessive marketing expendilures on the part of the Company, 
or because these customers have become relatively dormant in terms of customer activity. 

• Segtnentation: We have compiled an extensive database of customer information over time. 
Among our most important marketing initiatives, we have introduced database segmentation to 
our properties and al the corporate level in order to adjust investment rates to a level al which 
wc expect to meel a reasonable levcfof customer profit contribution. 

" Retail Developmeni: We believe that we must more effectively attract new, non-database 
customers to our properlies in order to increase profitabilily and free cash flow. These 
customers are generally less expensive to attract and retain and, therefore, currently represent a 
significant opportunity for our operations. ' 

Employees 

As of April 25, 2010, we employed approximately 7,500 people. We have a collective bargaining 
agreement with UNITE HERE covering approximately 375 employees at our Pompano properly which 
expires in May 2012. Wc believe that our relationship with-our employees is satisfactory. 



Covemmental Regulations 

The gaming and racing industries arc highly regulated, and_ wcmusl maintain our licen.ses and pay 
gaming taxes lo continue our operalions. Each of our facilities issubjectto extensive regulation under 
Ihe laws, rules and regulafions of the jurisdiction where il Is located. These'laws, rules and regulations 
generally relate to the responsibility, financial stability and character of the owners, managers and 
persons with financial interests in the gaming operalions. Violalionsof laws in one jurisdiction could 
result in disciplinary action in other jurisdictions. A more detailed descriplion of the regulations lo 
which we arc subject is contained in Exhibit 99.1 to ihis Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

Our businesses are subject to various federal, state and local laws and;regulations in addiiion to 
gaming regulations. These laws and regulations inclijdc, but are not limited to, restrictions and 
condiiions concerning alcoholic beverages, food service, smoking, cnvironniental matters, employees 
and employment practices, currency iransaclions, taxalioh. zoning andbuilding codes, and marketing 
and advertising. Such laws and regulations could change or could be inlerprctcd differently in the 
fuiure, or new laws and regulations could be enacted. Maierial changes, new laws or regulations, or 
maierial differences in inlerpretatitms by couris or govcrnrnental aulhorilies could adversely affect our 
operaiing results. 

Available Information 

For more information about us, visit our web site al www.isleofcapricasinos.com. Our electronic 
fihngs with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Comniission (including all annual reports on Form 10-K, 
quarter reports on Form 10-Q! and current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to these 
reporis), including the e,xhibits, arc available free of charge through our web sile as soon as reasonably 
practicable after we electronically file them with or furnish them to the U.S. Securities and E.xchange 
Commission. 

ITEM IA. RISK FACTORS 

We face significaid competition from other gaming operalions, including Native American gaming facilities, 
that could.have a maierial adverse effect on our future operalions. 

The gaming Industry is intensely competitive, and wc face a high degree of competition in the 
markets in which we operate. We have numerous competitors, including land-based casinos, dockside 
casinos, riverboat casinos, casinos localed on racing, pari-mutuel operations or Native American-owned 
lands and video loiter}' and poker machines not localed in casinos. Some of our compelilors may have 
better name recognition, marketing and financial resources than we do; compelilors with more financial 
resources may therefore be able to improve the quality of, or expand, their gaming facilities in a way 
that we may be unable lo match. 

Legalized gaming is currently permitted in various forms throughout the United Slaies. Certain 
slates have recently legalized, and other slates are currently considering legalizing gaming. Our existing 
gaming facilities compete directly with other gaming properties in the slates in which we operate. Our 
exisling casinos attract a significant number of their customers from Houston, Texas; Mobile, Alabama; 
Kansas City, Kansas; Southern Florida; Little Rock, Arkansas; and Denver, Colorado. Legalization of 
gaming in jurisdictions closer lo these geographic markets other than the jurisdictions in which our 
facilities are located would have a material adverse effect on our operating results. Other jurisdictions, 
including stales in close proximity to jurisdictions where we currently have operations, have considered 
and may consider legalizing casino gaming and other forms of competition. In addiiion, there is no 
limit on the number of gaming licenses that may be granted in several of the markets in which we 
operate. As a result, new gaming licenses could be awarded in these markets, which could allow new 
gaming operators to enter our markets that could have an adverse effect on our operating results. 
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We also compete wiih other forms of legalized gaming and entertainment such as online computer 
gambling, bingo, pull lab games, card parlors, sports books, "cruisc-io-nowhere" operations, pari-muluel 
or lelephonic belling on horse racing and dog racing, slate-sponsored lotteries, jai-alai, and, in the 
fuiurc, may compete with gaming al other venues. In addition, wc compete more generally wilh oiher 
forms of enienainmeni for the discretionary spending of our customers. 

Our continued success depends upon drawing customers from each of these geographic markets. 
We e.xpecl competition lo increase as new gaming operators enter our markets, existing competitors 
expand their operations, gaming activities expand in existing jurisdictions and gaming is legalized in 
new jurisdictions. We cannot predict with any certainty the effects of exisfing and future competition on 
our operating results. 

yVe are subject to €.xtensive regulation from gaming aiid olbcr regidatory authorities that could adversely affecl 
us. 

Licensing requirements. As owners and operators of gaming and pari-mutuel wagering facilities, 
we are subject to extensive stale and local regulation. State and local authorities require us and our 
subsidiaries to demonstrate suitability to obtain and retain various licenses and require that we have 
registrations, permits and approvals to conduct gaming operations. The regulatory authorities in the 
jurisdictions in which we operate have veiy broad discretion with regard to their regulation of gaming 
operators, and may for a broad variety of reasons and in accordance .with applicable laws, rules and 
regulations, limit, condition, suspend, fail to renew or revoke a license lo conduci gaming operalions or 
prevent lis from owning the securities of any of our gaming subsidiaries, or prevent olher persons from 
owning an inieresi in us or doing business wilh us. We may also.be deemed responsible for the acts 
and cotiduct of our employees. Substantial fines or,forfeiture of assels for violations of gaming laws or 
regulations may be levied againsl us, our subsidiaries and the persons involved, and some regulatory 
authorities have the ability to require us lo suspend our operations. The suspension or revocation of 
any of our licenses or our operations or the levy on us or our subsidiaries of a substantial fine would 
have-a material adverse effect on our busincss-

'To date, wc have demonstrated suitability lo obiain and have obtained all governmenlal licenses, 
registrations, permits and approvals necessary for us to operate our exisling gaming,faciiifies. We 
cannot assure you that wc will be able lo retain these licenses, registrations, permits and approvals or 
Ihat we will be able to obiain any new ones in order to expand our business, or that our attempts to do 
so will be timely. Like all gaming operators in the jurisdictions in which wc operate, wc musl 
periodically apply to renew our gaming licenses and have the suitability of certain of our directors, 
officers and employees approved. We cannoi assure you that we will be able to obiain such reiiewals or 
approvals. 

In addition, regulator)' authorities in certain jurisdictions must approve, in advance, any restrictions 
on transfers of, agreements not lo encumber or pledges of equity securities issued by a corporation that 
is registered as an Iniermediary company wiih such slate, or that holds a gaming license. If these 
restrictions are not approved in advance, they will be invalid. 

Comphance with other laws. We are also subjecl to a variety of olher federal, stale and local laws, 
rules, regulations and ordinances thai apply to nbii-gaining businesses, including zoning, environmental, 
construction and land-use laws and regulations governing the serving of alcoholic beverages.'Under 
variou,-; federal, state and local laws and regulations, an owner or operator of real property may be held 
liable for the costs of removal or remediation of certain hazardous or toxic substances or wastes localed 
on its property, regardless of whether or not Ihe present owner or operator knows of, or is responsible 
for, the presence of such substances or wastes. We have not idenlified any issues associated wilh our 
properties that could rea.sonably be expecied to have an adverse effect on us or the results oTour 
operations. However, several of our properlies arc located in industrial areas or were used for 
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industrial purposes for many years. As a consequence, it is possible thai hisiorical or neighboring 
:',ctivi!ics have affected one or more ofour properties and thai, as a result, environmental issues could 
arise in Ihe fuiure, ihe precise naiurc ofwhich we cannoi now predict. I'he coverage and attendant 
compliance costs associated with these laws, regulations and ordinances may result in future additional 
cost;;. 

Regulations adopted by the Financial Crimes Enforcement Network of the U.S. 'Treasury 
Department require us to report currency iransaclions in excess of SIO.OCK) occurring within a gaming 
day, including identification oflhe patron by name and social .security number. U.S. 'Trcasurj-
Dcpajtment regulations also require us lo report certain suspicious activity, Including any transaction 
Uial exceeds $5,000 if we know, suspect or have reason to believe that the transaction involves funds 
from iticgal activity or is designed to evade federal regulations or reporting requirements. Substantial 
pciiakiey can be imposed against us if we fail lo comply wiih these regulations. 

Several ofour riverboats musl comply with U.S. Coasl Guard requirements as to boat design, 
on-board lacililies, equipment, personnel.and safely and must hold U.S. Coast Guard Certificates of' 
Documeniaiion and Inspection. The U.S. Coast Guard requirements also set limits on the operation of 
the riverboats and mandate licensing of certain personnel involved with the operation of the riverboats. 
Lo.ss of a riverboat's Certificaie of Documentation and Inspection could preclude itsuse as a rivcrboal 
casino. The U.S. Coast Guard has shifted inspection duties relaled lo permanently moored casino 
v'?:ssc!.s- 10 the individual states. Louisiana and Missouri have elected to utilize the sen'ices of the 
.American Bureau of Shipping ("ABS") lo undertake ihe inspcclions. Iowa has elected lo handle the 
itispections through the Iowa Department of Natural Resources. 'The slates will coniinue the same 
iii.>pection criteria as ihe U.S..Coasl Guard in regard lo annual and five year inspections. Depending on 
'he outcome of these inspections a vessel could become subject lo dry-docking for inspection of its hull. 
•wliich could result in a lemporarj' loss of service.-

We are required to have third parties periodically inspect and certify all of our casino barges for 
stability and single compartment flooding integrity. Our casino barges and other facilities must also 
meet local fire safety slandards. We would incur additional costs if any of our gaming facilities were nol 
in coiTipiiance with one or more of these regulations. 

Potential changes in legislation and regulation ofour operations. From lime lo time, legislators and 
special interest groiips have proposed legislation that would expand, restrict or prevent gaming 
operations in the jurisdictions in which wc operate. In addition, from time to time, certain anti-gaming 
groups have challenged constitutional amendments or legislation that would limil our ability to coniinue 
io operate in those jurisdictions in which these constitutional amendments or legislation have been 
adopied. 

fa.xation and fees. Slate and local authorities raise a significant amounl of revenue ihrough laxes 
ami fee,- on gaming acliviiies. We believe that the prospect of significani revenue is one of the primary 
lea-ons thai jurisdictions permit legalized gaming. As a result, gaming companies are lypically subject 
to significant taxes and fees in addition to normal federal, state, local and provincial income taxes, and 
such liixes and fees are subjecl to increase at any lime. We pay substantial taxes and fees with respect 
to our operations. From time to time, federal, slate, local and provincial legislators and officials have 
proposed changes in lax laws, or in the adminislralion of such laws, affecting the gaming industrj'. Any 
maierial increase,- or the adoption of additional taxes or fees, could have a material adverse effect on 
our fuiure financial results. 
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Our business may be adversely affected by legislation probihiliitg tobacco smoking. 

Legislation in various forms to ban indoor tobacco smoking has recently been enacted or 
introduced in many states and local jurisdictions, including several of the jurisdictions in which wc 
operate. On January 1, 2008, a statewide smoking ban that includes-'casino floors went into effect in 
Colorado. This smoking ban in Colorado has had a negative impact on business volume at our Black 
Hawk properties. 

If additional restrlciions on smoking are enacted In jurisdictions:in which we operate, we could 
experience a significani decrease in gaming revenue and particularly, if such resiriclions are not 
applicable to ail competitive facilities in that gaming markel, our business-could be materially adversely 
affected. 

Our .substantial indebtedness could adversely affect our financial heallh and restrict our operations. 

Wc have a significant amounl of indebtedness. As of April 25,-2010, we had approximaiely 
$1.2 billion of total debt outsianding. 

Our significant indebtedness could have important consequences to our financial heallh, such as: 

• limiting our ability to use operating cash flow or obtain addilional financing lo fund working 
capital, capital expenditures, expansion and other important areas of our business because we 
must dedicate a significani portion ofour cash flow to make principal and intercsi payments on 
our indebtedness; 

• causing an event of default If we fail to satisfy the financial and restrictive covenanls contained 
in the indenture and agreements governing our seniorsecured credit facility, our 7% senior 
subordinated notes due 2014 and our other indebtedness, which could result in all of our debl 
becoming immedialely due and payable, could permii our i;ecured lenders lo foreclose on the 
assels securing our secured debt and have other adverse consequences, any of which, if not 
cured or waived, could have a material adverse effect on us; 

" if the indebledness under our 7% senior subordinated notes, our senior secured credii facility, or 
our olher indebtedness were to be accelerated, there can be no assurance that our assets would 
be sufficient to repay such indebtedness in full; 

• placing us at a competitive disadvantage lo our competitors who are nol as highly leveraged; 

• increasing our vulnerability lo and limiting our ability to react lo changing market conditions, 
changes in our industry and economic downturns or downturns in our business; and 

• our agrecmenls governing our indebledness, among other things, require us to maintain certain 
specified financial ratios and to meel certain financial tests. Our debt agreements also limit our 
ability lo: 

i. borrow money; 

ii. make capital expendilures; 

iii. use assels as security in other transaciions; 

iv. make restricted payments or restricted investments; 

V. incur contingent obligalions; and 

vi. sell assets and enter into leases and iransaclions wiih affiliales. 

A substantial portion of our oulstanding debt bears interest at variable rales, although we have 
entered into interest rate protection agreements expiring ihrough fiscal 2014 with counterparty banks 
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wilh respect lo $420 million of our lerm loans under our senior secured credit facility. If short-term 
interest rales rise, our intercsi cosl will increase on the unhedged ponion of our variable rate 
indebledness, which will adversely affect our results of operalions and available cash. 

Any of the factors lisied above could have a maierial adverse effect on pur business, financial 
condilion and results of operations. We cannoi assure you that our business will continue to generate 
sufficient cash flow, or that future available draws under our senior secured credii facility will be 
sufficient, to enable us to meet our liquidity needs, including thoseneeded to service our indebtedness. 

Despite our significani indebtedness, we may .stdl be able to incur sigttificantly more debt. TIjis could intensify 
the risks described above. 

The lerms of the indenture and agreeincnts governing our senior secured credii facility, our 7% 
senior subordinated notes and our other indebtedness limil, but do nol prohibit, us or our subsidiaries 
from incurring significani additional indebtedness in the fuiure. 

As of April 25. 2010, we had the capacity lo incur addilional indebtedness, including the ability to 
incur additional indebledness under all of our lines of credit, of approximaiely $109 million. , 
Appro.ximalely $20 million of these lines of credii were used to support letters of credit. (i)ur capacity 
lo issue additional indebledness is subject lo the limilations iiriposed by the covenanls in our senior 
secured credii facility and the indenture governing our 7% senior subordinated notes. The indenture 
governing our 7% senior subordinated notes and our senior secured credii facility contain financial and 
other restrictive covenanls. but will not fully prohibit us from incurring addilional debt. If new debt is 
added to our current level of indebtedness, the related risks thai we now face could intensify. 

We may not be able lo renew or extend our senior secured credii facility or enter into a new credit facility in 
today's difficult markets. In addition, our ability to renew or extend our senior secured credit facility or to 
enter into a new credit facility may be impaired furlher if inarket conditions worsen. If we are able to renew 
or extend our senior .secured credit facility, it may be on terms substantially less favorable than the current 
senior secured credii facility. We may face similar risks with respect to our outsianding bonds. 

Disruptions in the global markets have led lo a scarcity of credii, tighter lending slandards and 
higher iniercst rates on consumer and business loans. On February 17, 2010, in order to allow us lo 
issue senior unsecured notes and lo temporarily modify the leverage ratio and interest coverage ratio lo 
provide for greater flexibility through April 30, 2012, wc entered into an amendmeni to our 
$1.35 billion senior secured credii faciliiy, which, among other things, reduced the capacity of the 
revolving line of credit by $1(X) million to $375 million and increased the interest rate of both the 
revolving line of credii and term loan portions to LIBOR -r .3.00% with a LIBOR floor of 2.00%. As 
of April 25, 2010, we had appro.ximately SS17 million in term loans and appro.ximately $21 million 
drawn on the revolving line of credit. The availability under our revolving line of credit as of April 25, 
2010 was approximaiely $109 million, after consideration of approximately $20 million in outstanding 
letters of credit. Our ability to renew or extend our exisling senior secured credit facility or to enter 
into a new credit facility lo replace the exisling senior secured crcdit facility could be impaired If 
market conditions worsen. 

In the current environment, lenders may seek more restrictive lending provisions and higher 
interest rates that may reduce our borrowing capacity and increase our costs. We can make no 
assurances that we will be able lo enter into a new credit facility or renew or extend our existing senior 
secured credii facility, or whether any such crcdit facility will be available under acceptable lerms. 
Failure lo obtain sufficient financing or financing on acceptable terms would constrain our ability to 
operate our business and to coniinue our development and expansion projects. Any of these 
circumstances could have a maierial adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of 
operation. 
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Until reccnlly, the bond market, and particularly the markel for casino bonds, had deteriorated 
significanlly over the prior IS months. As such, outstanding bonds gcneraily offer yields lo maturity that 
are significanlly higher than the yields offered al issuance. On May 12, 2004, we issued $500 million of 
7% senior subordinated notes due in 2014. If the bond market docs nol further recover prior to the 
malurilv of these bonds, we may be forced to refinance some or all of its debl on materially worse 
lerms than we have currently. Although il is several years before these unsecured notes mature, our 
cash flow from operations is unlikely lo be sufficient to retire all of such bonds at or prior to their 
maturilv. Failure to obiain new debi on favorable or reasonable terms to replace existing debt could 
affecl our liquidity and Ihc value of our other securities, including our equity. 

We may not be able to .succes.sfully expand to new locations or recover our Investment in new properties which 
would adversely affect our operations and available resources. 

We rcgulariy evaluate opportunities for growth through development of gaming operalions in 
existing or new markets, Ihrough acquiringor managing other gaming entertainment facilities or 
through redeveloping our exisling facilities. 'The expansion ofour operations, whether.through 
acquisitions, developmeni, management conlracts or internal growth, could divert management's 
atienlibn and could also cause us to incur substantial costs, including legal, professional and consulting 
fees. To the extent that we elect to pursue any new gaming acquisition, management or development 
opportunity, our ability to benefit from our investment will depend on many faciors, including: 

• our ability to successfully identify allraclivc acquisilion and development opportunities; 

" our ability to successfully operate any developed, managed or acquired properties: 

" our ability to attract and retain competent management and employees for the new locations; 

• our ability to secure required federal, siate and local licenses, permits and approvals, which in 
some jurisdictions are limiled In number and subjecl lo intense competition; and 

• the availability of adequate financing on acceptable terms. 

Many of these factors are beyond our control. I'here have been significant disruptions in the global 
capilal markets that have adversely impacted the ability of borrowers lo access capital. Many analysis 
arc predicting that these disruptions may continue for the foreseeable fuiurc. Accordingly, it is likely 
that we are dependent on free cash flow from operations and remaining borrowing capaciiy under our 
senior secured credit facility to implement our near-lerm expansion plans and fund our planned capital 
expenditures. As a result of these and other considerations, wc cannot be sure that we will be able to 
recover our invesiments in any new gaming developmeni or rnanagemeni opportunities or acquired 
facilities, or successfully expand to additional locations. 

We may experience constmction delays daring our expansion or development projects that could adversely 
affecl our operations. 

From lime to lime wc may commence construction projecis at our properlies. We also evaluate 
olher expansion opportunities as they become available and we may in the fuiure engage in additional 
construction projects. The anticipated costs and construction periods are based upon budgets, 
conceptual design documents and construction schedule eslimales prepared by us in consultation with 
our architects and contractors. Construction projects entail significant risks, which can substantially 
increase costs or delay completion of a project. Such risks include shortage.s of materials or skilled 
labor, unforeseen engineering, environmental or geological problems, work stoppages, weather 
interferciice and unanticipated cosl increases. Most of these factors are beyond our conlrol. In addiiion. 
difficulties or delays in obtaining any of the requisite licenses, permits or authorizations from-regulatory 
aulhorilies can increase the cosi or delay the completion of an expansion or development. Significani 
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budget overruns or delays wilh respect to expansion and development projects could adversely affecl 
our results of operations. 

If our key personnel leave us, our business could be adversely affected. 

Our continued success will depend, among other things, on the efforts and skills of a few key 
executive officers and the experience ofour property managcrri. Our ability to retain key personnel is 
affected by ihe competitiveness ofour compensation packages and the oiher terms and conditions of 
employment, our continued ability to compete effectively againsl.oihcr gaming companies and our 
growth prospects. 'The loss of ihc services of any of these key individuals could have a material adverse 
effect tm our business, financial condition and results of operations:-We do not maintain "key man" life 
insurance for any of our employees. 

We are controlled by the Goldstein family and their decisions may differ from those that may he made by 
other stockholders. 

Members of the Goldstein family, including Robert Goldstein, our Vice Chairman of the Board, 
and Jeffrey Goldstein and Richard Goldstein, two of our directors, and various family trusts associated 
with members of the Goldstein family, collectively own and control approximately 50.1% of our 
common stock as of May 14, 2010 and have entered into an Agreement, daled as of April 30, 2010 (the 
"Agreement"), related to the ownership of such common stock. ''The Agreemeni includes, but is nol 
limiled to an agreement by the parties to (i) coordinate their efforts with each other with respect to 
their ownership of our securities and ensure the interests of the Goldslein family are appropriately 
considered by our board of dircciors, (ii) notify the'other parlies of any purchase or sale of our 
securities, and (iii) jointly approve any filing with the Securities and E.xchange Commission, press 
release or stockholder conimunication by a parly. 

The Goldslein family has the power to conlrol the election of our board of direclors and the 
outcome of the vote on substantially all other matters, including amendment of our certificate of 
incorporation, amendment ofour by-laws and significani corporate transactions, such as the approval of 
a merger or other iransaclions involving a sale of ihe Company. Such conlrol may have the effect of 
discouraging transactions Involving an aclual or potential change of control, which in turn couJd have a 
maierial adverse effect on ihe market price of our common stock or prevent our stockholders from 
realizing a premium over the market price for their shares of common slock. 'I'he interests of the 
Goldstein family may differ from those of our other stockholders. 

We have a history of fiuctuations in our operating income (losses) from corUinuing operalion.s, and we may 
incur additional operating losses from continuing operations in the future. Oar operating residts could 
fluctuate significantly on a periodic basis. 

We sustained a net (loss) from confinuing operalions of $(1.5) million in fiscal 2010 and earned 
net income from continuing operations of $61.2 million in fiscal 2009. Companies with flucluations in 
income (loss) from continuing operations often find it more challcnglng'to raise capilal to finance 
improvements in their businesses and lo undertake other aclivities ihal return value lo their 
stockholders. In addition, companies wiih operating results that fluctuate significantly on a quarterly or 
annual basis experience increased volatility in their slock prices in addition lo difficulties in raising 
capilal. Wc cannoi assure you that we will not have fluctualions in.our income (losses) from continuing 
operations in the fuiure, and should that occur, thai we would not suffer adverse consequences to our 
business as a result, which could decrease the value of our common slock. 
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Inclement weather and other conditions could seriously disrupt our business and have a material, adverse 
effect on our financial condition and results of operalions. 

l l i e operalions ofour facilities are subjecl to disruptions or reduced patronage as a result of 
severe weather conditions, natural disasters and other casuakies. Because many of our gaming 
operations are located on or adjacent to bodies of water, these facilities are subject to risks in addition 
to those associated with other casinos, including loss of service due to casually, forces of naiurc, 
mechanical failure, extended or extraordinary maintenance, flood, hurricane or other severe weather 
condiuons, and other disasters, such as the recent oil spill in the Gulf of Mexico. In addiiion, severe 
weather such as higii winds and blizzards occasionally limits access to our land-based faciiifies in 
Colorado. We cannoi be sure that the proceeds from any fuiurc insurance claim will be sufficient to 
compensate us if one or more of our casinos experience a closure. 

Reductions in discretionary consutner spending could have a material adverse effect on our business. 

Our business has been and may coniinue to be adversely affected by the economic recession 
currently being experienced in the United Slates, as we are highly dependent on discretionary spending 
by our patrons. Changes in discretionary consumer spending or consumer preferences brought about by 
faciors .such as increased unemployment, significani increases in energy prices, perceived o r aclual 
deterioration in general economic conditions, the curreni housing,market crisis, bank failures and the 
potcnfial for additional bank failures, perceived or actual decline in disposable consumer income and 
wealth, the curreni global economic recession and changes in consumer confidence in the economy may 
continue to reduce customer demand for the leisure aclivities we offer and may adversely affect our 
revenues and operating cash flow. We are not able to predici the length or severity of the curreni 
economic circumstances. 

The market price of our coinmon slock tnay fiuctuate significantly. 

The market price of our common stock has hislorically been volatile and may continue to fluctuate 
substantially due lo a number of factors, including aclual or anticipated changes in our results of 
operalions, the announcement of significant transaciions or other agreements by our competitors, 
conditions or trends in the our industry or other enleriainmeni Industries wilh which we compete, 
general economic conditions including those affecting our customers' discretionary spending, changes in 
the cost of air travel or the cosl of gasoline, changes in the gaming markets in which we operate and 
changes in the trading value of our ctimmon stock. The stock markel in general, as well as slocks in the 
gaming sector have been subject lo significani volatility and extreme price fluctuations that have 
sometimes been unrelated or disproportionate UJ individual companies' operaiing performances. Broad 
markel or industry factors may harm the markel price of our common stock, regardless of our 
operating performance. 

Work stoppages, organizing drives and olher labor problems could negatively impact our future profits. 

Some of our employees are currently represented by a labor union or have begun organizing a 
drive for labor union representation. Labor unions are making a concerted effort lo recruit more 
employees in the gaming industry'. In addition, organized labor may benefil from new legislation or 
legal interpretations by the current presidential adminislralion. We cannoi provide any assurance that 
wc will not experience addilional or more successful union aefivity in the future. 

Additionally, lengthy strikes or other work stoppages at any of our casino properties or 
construction projects could have an adverse effect on our business and result of operalions. 
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We are or tnay become involved in legal proceedings that, if adversely adjudicated or settled, could impact our 
fitiancial condition. 

From time to time, we are defendants in various lawsuits and gaming regulatory proceedings 
relating to matters incidental to our business. As with all litigation, no assurance can be provided as to 
the outcome of these matters and, In general, litigation can be expensive and lime consuming. We may 
not be successful in ihc defense or prosecution ofour current or future legal proceedings, which could 
result in selflemcnts or damages that could significantly impaci our.business, financial condilion and 
results of operations. 

Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to cover all possible losses, that our properties could suffer. In 
addition, oar insurance costs may increase and we may^not be.able to obiain llie .same insurance coverage in 
the fuiure. 

We may suffer damage to our properly caused by a casually loss (such as fire, natural disasters, 
acts of war or terrorism), ihal could severely disrupl our business.or subjecl us to claims by third 
parties who are Injured or harmed. Although we maintain insurance customary in our industry, 
(including property, casually, terrorism and business Interruption insurance) that insurance may nol be 
adequate or available lo cover all the risks to which our business.and assets may be subjecl. 'The lack of 
sufficient insurance for these types of acts could expose us to heavy losses if any damages occur, 
directly or indirectly, that could have a significant adverse Impact on our operations. 

We renew our insurance policies on an annual basis. The cosl of coverage may become so high 
that we may need to further reduce our policy liinits or agree to ceriain exclusions from our coverage. 
Among other faciors, it is possible that regional political tensions, homeland security concerns, oiher 
caia.'itrophic events or any change in government legislation governing insurance coverage for acts of 
terrorism couid materially adversely affect available iiisurance coverage and result in increased 
premiums on available coverage (which may cause us lo elect to reduce our policy limits), additional 
exclusions from coverage or higher deductibles. Among other potenlial fuiure adverse changes, in the 
fuiure we may elect lo not, or may not be able to, obiain any coverage for losses due to acts of 
terrorism. 

TIte concentration and evolution of the slot machine manufacturing industry could impose additional co.sis on 
us. 

A large majority of our revenues are attributable'to slot machines al our casinos. It is importanl, 
for competitive reasons, we offer tht; most popular and up-to-date slol machine games, wiih the latest 
technology to our customers. 

In recent years, slol machine manufacturers have frequently refused to sell slol machines featuring 
the most popular games, instead requiring participating lease arrangements. Generally, a participaiing 
lease is subsianlially more expensive over the long-term than the cost to purchase a new slol machine. 

For competitive rea.sons, we may be forced to purchase new slot machines, slot machine systems, 
or enter into participating lease arrangemenls that are more expensive than our curreni costs associaied 
with the continued operation of our existing slol machines. If the newer slol machines do noi result in 
sufficient incremental revenues to offsel the increased inveslmenl and participating lca.se costs, it could 
adversely affect our profitability. 

>r * « # * » « 

In addition to the foregoing, you should consider each of the faciors set forth in this Annual 
Reporl in evaluating our business and our prospects. 'The factors described in our Part 1, Item IA are 
nol the only ones we face. Addilional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we 
currently consider immaterial may also impair our business operalions. 'This Annual Reporl is qualified 
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in its entirety by these risk faciors. If any of the foregoing risks actually occur, our business, financial 
condilion and results of operation could be materially harmed. In thai case, the trading price ofour 
securities, including our common slock, could decline significanlly. 

ITEM JB. UNRESOLVED STAFF CO.M.MENTS 

None. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

Lake Charles 

We own approximately 2.7 acres and lea.sc approximaiely 16.2acres of land in Calcasieu Parish, 
Louisiana for use in conneciion wilh our Lake Charles operalions. 'This lease automatically renewed in 
March 2010 for five years and we have the option lo renew it for 14 additional terms of five years 
each, subject lo increases based on the Consumer Price Index ("CPl") wiih a minimum of 10% and 
construction of holel facilities on the property. Wc own two hotels in Lake Charles with a loial of 
493 rooms. Annual rent payments under the Lake Charles lease are approximately $2.1 million. 

Lula 

Wc lease approximalcly 1,000 acres of land In Coahoma County, Mississippi and utilize 
approximaiely 50 acres in connection with ihe operations in llula, Mississippi. Unless terminated by us 
at an earlier date, the lease expires in 2033. Renl under the leaseis currently 5.5% of gross gaming 
revenue as reported to the .Mississippi Gaming Commission, plus $100,000 annually. We also own 
approximately 100 acres in Coahoma County, which may be utilized for fuiure development 

Biloxi 

We lease the real estate upon which some ofour iand-based facilities, including the casino, are 
localed from the City of Biloxi and the Mississippi Secretary of Slate al current annual rent of 
$561,800 per year, pliis 3% of our Biloxi property's gross gaming revenues, net of state and local 
gaming laxes and fees, in excess of $25.0 million. 'The leaselerminates on July 1, 2014, bul it is 
renewable at our opiion for four additional terms of five years each and one more opiion renewal 
term, concluding on January 31, 2034, subject lo renl increases based on the CPl, limiled to 6% for 
each renewal period. 

In April 1994, in connection with the construction of a hotel, we entered into a lease for additional 
land adjoining our Biloxi property. This lease wilh the City of Biloxi and the Mississippi SccretaiT,' of 
Stale is for an iniiial term of 25 years, whh options lo renew for six addilional lerms of ten years each 
and a final option period concluding December 31, 2085. Curreni annual-rent is $605,000 plus 4% of 
gross non-gaming revenues, as defined in the lease, and renewals are subjecl to rent increases based on 
the CPl. 'The annual renl is adjusied after each five-year period ba.sed on increases in the CPl, limited 
to a 10% increase in any five-year period. 

In August 2002, wc entered into a lease for two additional parcels of land adjoining our properly 
and the hotel. On the parcel adjoining the Biloxi property, we constructed a mulii-level parkiiig garage 
that has approximately 1,000 parking spaces. 'There is addilional ground level parking on a parcel of 
land in front of the garage, also subject lo this lease, wiih approximately 600 parking spaces. We have 
con.structed a 400-room addiiion to the existing hotel on the parcel leased next lo the existing holel. In 
addition, we may construct a hotel above the parking garage. 'This lease with the City of Biloxi and the 
Mississippi Secreiar)' of Slate is for an initial term of forty years, with one opiion lo renew for an 
addilional twenty-five years and addilional options thereafter, wilh the consent of the Mississippi 
Secretary of Stale, consistent with the term ofthe lease described in the preceding paragraph. When 



combined with the base and percentage rents described for the leases in the preceding nvo paragraphs, 
annual rent under those two leases and this lease was $3.8 million for lease year ending July 31, 2009. 
and estimated lo be $3.8 million for the lease year ending July 31, 2010. The minimum rent for the 
lease year beginning August 1, 2009 will be $3.8 million in accordance with the lerms of the lea.sc 
agreement. Such amounls are subjecl to decreases due lo markel adjustments and increases based on 
the CPl. Also, we are responsible for annual, renl equal to 4% of,gross retail revenue and gross cash 
revenue (as defined in the lease), but without double counting. If the rent minimum described in the 
preceding sentences is not otherwise satisfied from other rents, then this percenlage renl is riot in 
addiiion to the minimum renl, bul rather is to bcapplied to that minimum. 

We also lease our Biloxi berth from the Biloxi Port Commission al an annual renl of the greater of 
$510,000 or 1% of the gross gaming revenue net of slate and local gaming ta.xes. The lease terminates 
on July 1, 2014 and wc have the opiion lo renew it for six additional lerms of five years each subjecl lo 
increases based on the CPl, limited to 6% for each renewal period. 

In connection with and pursuanl to a selllemenl between the Ciiy of Biloxi and the State of 
Mississippi concerning the control and management of the area where: we are localed, wc also have 
agreed to pay the City of Biloxi's lease obligalions to the State of Mississippi for an agreed upon 
period pf lime 'iTiis amounl is $580,000 per year, payable on June .30, subjecl to increases based on ihc 
CPl and decreases if there are other tenants of the subject property. This obligation ends after June 
2018 but may be renewed for thirty years. 

We have also entered into a joint venture arrangement to sublease a surface parking lot next to 
our Biloxi property. Our portion of the annual rent under this lea.se is approximately $229,000. 'ITie 
curreni term is for five years expiring December 31, 2010, wilh a renewal ^option for an additional 
fivcryear term (under which our annual rent would increase based on Ihe CPl), extending the lease 
ihrough December 31, 2015, if exercised. 

Natchez 

'ITirough numerous lease agreements, we lease appro.ximalely 24 acres of land in Natchez. 
Mississippi thai are used in connection with the operalion,s of our Natchez property: Unless terminated 
by us at an eariier date, the leases have varjing expiration dates through 2037. Annual rent under the 
leases total approximately $1.2 million. We also lease approximately 7;5 acres of land that is utilized for 
parking at the facility. We own approximately 6 additional acres of property in Nalchez, Mississippi, as 
well as the property upon which our hotel is located. 

Kan.sas City 

We lease approximaiely 28 acres of land from the Kansas City Port Authority in connection wilh 
the operation of our Kansas City properly. The term of the original lease was ten years and was 
renewed in October 2006 for an addilional five years. 'I'he lease incliides seven additional five-vear 
renewal options, 'llie minimum lease payments correspond to any rise or fall in the CPl. Initially after 
the ten-year term of the lease or October IS, 2006 aud thereafter, at each five year renewal date. Rent 
under the lease currently is the greater of $2.6 million (minimum rent) per year, or 3.25% of gross 
revenues, less complimeniaries. 

Boonville 

We lease our 27 acre casino sile in Boonville pursuant lo a lease agreemeni with the City of 
Boonville. Under the lerms of agreemeni, we lease Ihe site for a period of ninety-nine years. In lieu of 
rent, we are assessed additional amounts by the City of Boonville based on a 3.5% tax on garhing 
revenue, up to $1.0.million, which we recognize as addilional gaming taxes. 
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Carudiersville 

We own approximately 37 acres, including our rivcrboal casino and 1,000 parking spaces in 
Caruthensville, Missouri. 

Betiendorf 

We own approximately 24.6 acres of land in Beltendorf, Iowa used in conneciion with the 
operalions of our Bettendorf property. We al.so operate, under a long-lerm lease wilh the Cily of 
Beltendorf, the QC Waterfront Conveniion Center that is adjacent to our new hotel lower. Future 
minimum payments associated with the convention center are approximately $1.1 million per year. We 
also lease approximately eight acres of land on a monlh-to-month basis from an entity owned by 
members of the Goldslein family, including Robert S. (iioldsiein, our Vice Chairman of the Board and 
Jeffrey D. Goldslein and Richard A. Goldslein, dircciors o four company, which we utilize for parking. 
'I'he initial term of the lease expires 60 days after written notice is given to eilher parly and rent under 
the lease is currently $5,000 per month. We terminated a lease for warehouse space in January 2010 
with the same entity, 

Davenpon 

Pursuant to various lease agreements with the City of Davenport, we lease approximaiely 12 acres 
of land in Davenport, Iowa used in conhectipn wilh the operalions of our Davenport property. 'I'he 
aggregate annual renl on these leases is approximately $0.2 million and they have var\'ing expiralion 
dales Ihrough 2022. 

Marquette 

We lease ihe dock sile in Marquette, Iowa that is used in connection with our Marqueile 
operalions. The lease expires in 2019, and annual rem under the lease is approximately 5180,000, plus 
$1.00 per passenger, plus 2.5% of gaming revenues (less state wagering taxes) in excess of $20.0 million 
bul less than $40.0 million; 5% of gaming revenues (less state wagering ta.xes) in excess of $40.0 million 
but less than $60.0 million;-and 7.5% of gaming revenues (less state wagering taxes) in excess of 
$60.0 million. We have an easement related to an overhead pedestrian bridge and driveway that is an 
annual payment of approximaiely $6,300. We also own approximately 25 acres of land for the pavilion, 
satellite offices, warehouse, lots by the marina and oiher property. Prior to September 2009 at which 
titne the lease was terminated, we leased approximately two acres of land used for the employee 
parking lot with a monthly rental of $417. 

Waterloo 

We own approximately 54 acres of land in Waterloo, Iowa used in connection wiih the operation of 
our Waterloo property. We also entered into a ihree-ycar lease agreement for 17,517 square feet of 
warehouse space. Rent under this lease is currentiy $5,022 per month. 

Isle-Black Hawk 

Wc own approximately 10 acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in connection wilh our 
Black Hawk operafions. 'I'he properly leases an addilional parcel of land adjoining the Islc-Black Hawk 
where the Lady Luck Hotel and parking are localed. This lease is for an iniiial term of nine years with 
options to renew for 18 additional terms of five years each with the final option period concluding 
June 1, 2094. Annua! rent is currently $1.8 million indexed lo correspond lo any rise or fall in the CPl 
at one-year intervals, nol to exceed a 3 % increase or decrease from the previous year's rate. 
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Lady Luck-Black Hawk 

We own or lease approximalcly seven acres of land in Black Hawk, Colorado for use in connection 
with the Lady Luck-Black Hawk. I'he property leases an additional parcel of land near the Lady 
Luck-Black Hawk for parking as described above. 'This lease is for an iniiial term of 10 years wilh 
oplions to renew for nine additional terms of_ 10 years each wiih the final opiion period concluding 
Augusi 2094. Currently the annual rent is $576,000 and renewals arc .subject lo 20% i-ent increases over 
Ihe rale of the previous term. 

Pompano 

We own approximaiely 223 acres al Pompano. 

Olher 

Wc own all of the riverboats and barges utilized al our facilities. We also own or lease all of our 
gaming and non-gaming equipment. 

We lease our principal corporate office in Creve Cocur, Missouri, and office space in Biloxi, 
Missi.ssippi. 

We own additional property and have various property leases and oplions to eilher lease or 
purchase property that are not directly related to pur existing operations and that may be utilized in 
the fuUirc in connection with expan.sion projects al our exisling facilities or development of new 
projects. 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

Lady Luck Gaming Corporation (now our wholly owned subsidiar>') and several joinl venture 
partners have been defendants in the Greek Civil Courts and the Greek Administrative Courts in 
similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greece. The actions allege thai ihe defendants failed to 
make specified payments in connection wilh the gaming license bid process for Pairas, Greece. 
Although it is difficult to delerminc the damages being sought from the lawsuits, the action may seek 
damages up to thai aggregate amount plus interest from the dale of the action. 

In the Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Courl of First Instance ruled in our favor and dismissed the 
lawsuit in 2001. Greece appealed to the Civil Appeal Court and, in 2003, the Court rejected the appeal. 
Greece then appealed to the Civil Supreme Court and, in 2007, the Supreme Courl ruled that ihe 
matter was not properly before the Civil Couris and should be before the Administrative Court. 

In the Administrative Court lawsuit, the Administrative Court of First Inslance rejected the lawsuit 
slating that it was not competent to hear the mailer. Greece then appealed to the Administrative 
Appeal Court, which court rejected the appeal in 2003. Greece then appealed to the Supreme 
Administrative Court, which remanded the matter back to the Administrative Appeal Courl for a 
hearing on the merits. 'The re-hearing took place in 2006, and in 2008 the Adminisirative Appeal Courl 
rejected Greece's appeal on procedural grounds. On December 22, 2008 a"nd January 23, 2009, Greece 
appealed the ruling to the Supreme Adminislraiive Court. A hearing has tentatively been scheduled for 
November 2010. 

'The outcome of this matier is still in doubt and cannot he predicted with any degree of certainty. 
Wc intend to continue a vigorous and appropriate defense to the claims asserted in this matter. 
Through April 25, 2010, we have accrued an estimated liability including inierest of $10.6 million. Our 
accrual is based upon management's estimate of the original claim by the plaintiffs for losl payments. 
We coniinue to accrue interest on the asserted claim. We are unable to estimale a lolal possible loss as 
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information as lo possible additional claims, if any, have nol been asserted or quantified by the 
plaintiffs at this time. 

We are subjecl to ceriain federal, state and local environmental protection, health and safety laws, 
regulations and ordinances that apply to businesses generally, and are subjecl to cleanup requirements 
at certain ofour facilities as a result ihereof. We have not made,.and do noi anticipate making maierial 
expendilures, nor do wc anticipate Incurring delays wiih respect lo environmental remediation or 
protection. However, in part because our present and future dcvelopnicnl sites have, in some cases, 
been used as manufacturing faciliiies or other facilities that generate materials that are required to be 
remediated under environmental laws and regulations, Ihcrecari be no guarantee that additional 
pre-exisling conditions will nol be discovered and wc will not experience material liabilities or delays. 

We are subject to various contingencies and litigation matters and havea number of unresolved 
claims. Although the ultimate liability of these conlingencies.'lhis litigation and these claims cannoi be 
determined at ihis time, we believe they will not have a material adverse effect on our consolidaled 
financial position, results of operations or cash fiows. 

ITE.VI 4. [REMOVED AND RESERVED] 

PART II 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGlSTRANrS COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER 
\Ur rERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUHT SECURITIES 

(a) 

i. Market Infonnation. Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Select Market 
under the symbol "TSLE". T'he following lable presents the high and low closing sales prices 
for our common slock as reported by the'NASDAQ Global Select Market for the fiscal 
periods indicated. 

Hi[;h Low 

First Quarter (through June 4, 2010) $11.71 $9.21 

Fiscal Year Ending April 25, 2010 
Fourth Quarter $11.81 $7.28 
'Third Quarter • 9.41 7.21 
Second Quarter 12.25 9.75 
First Quarter 13.78 S.65 

I-'iscal Year Ending April 26, 2009 
Fourth Quarter $ 9.27 $2.63 
'Third Quarter 5.29 2.37 
Second Quarter 9.08 3.57 
First Quarter 7.45 4.20 

ii. Holders of Common Stock. As of June 4, 2010, there were approximately 1,388 holders of 
record ofour common stock. 

iii. Dividends. Wc have never declared or paid any dividends wiih respect lo our common stock 
and the curreni policy ofour board of directors is to retain earnings lo provide for ihe growth 
of our company. In addition, our senior secured credii facility and the.indenture governing our 
senior subordinated 7% notes limil our ability to pay dividends. See "Item 8—Financial 
Slalements arid Supplementary Data—lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc.—Noles to Consolidaled 
Financial Statements—Note 8." Consequently, no ca.sh dividends are expected to be paid on 
our common stock in the foreseeable fuiure. Furlher, there can be no assurance that our 
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curreni and proposed operalions would gcnerale Ihc funds needed to declarea cash dividend 
or that wc would have legally available fiinds lo pay dividends. In addition, wc may fund part 
of our operations in the fuiure from indebledness,-ihe terms of which may furlher prohibit or 
restrict the paymeni of cash dividends. If a holder of common stock is disqualified by the 
regulator)' authorities from owning such shares, such holder will nol be permitted lo receive 
any dividends with respect to such .slock. See "Item 1—Business—Governmental Regulations." 

(b) Issuance of Unregistered Securities 

None. 

(c) Purchases of our Common Stock 

We have purchased our common stock under stock repurchase programs. iTiese programs allow for 
the repurchase of up lo 6.000,000 shares. 'To date we.have purchased 4,895,792 shares of common slock 
under these programs. 'ITiese programs have no approved dollar amount, nor expiralion dates. No 
purchases were made during the fiscal year ended April 25,-2010. 

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN* 
Among lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., TTic NASDAQ Composite Index 

and The Dow .lones US Gambling Index 

4/24/05 4/30/06 4/29/07 4/27/08 4/26/09 4/25/10 

Isle Of Capri Casinos, Inc. NASDAQ Composite Dow Jones US Gambling 

$100 Invested on 4/24/05 in stock or 4/30/10 index, including relnvestmenl of dividends. Indexes 
calculated on month-end basis. 
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA. 

T'he following table presents our selected consolidaiedjinanclal data for the fh/c most recent fiscal 
years, which is derived from our audiled consolidated financial siatemenis and the noles to those 
slalements. Because the data in this table does not provide all of.the data contained in our 
consolidated financial statements, including the relaled notes, you should read ''Management's 
Di.scussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Qperaiions," our consolidated financial 
statements, including the related notes coniained elsewhere in this document and oiher data we have 
filed with ihe U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. 

Fiscal Vear Mndedd) 
April 25, April 26, April 27, April 29, April 30. 

3010 12009 2008 2007 2006 
(dollani in millions, except per share data) 

Statement of Operations 
Revenues: 

Casino Sl.013.4 $1,055.7 $1,092.3 S 991.4 S 973.3 
Rooms 43.0 ' 46,4 49.5 49.6 37.0 
Pari-muiuel, food, beverage and Olher 135.0 138.6 150.1 145.6 142,2 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries — 62.9 0.4 2.8 — 

Gross revenues 1,191.4 • 1,303.6 1,292.3 1,189.4 1,152.5 
Less promoiional allowances (191,6) (195,6) (200.9) (214.1) (200.1) 

Net revtinues 999,8 1,108.0' L091.4 975.3 952,4 
Operating expenses: 

Casino 1.53.S 151.6 151,1 154.2 145.5 
Gamins taxes 262.2 269.9 2S5.4 213.7 213.9 
Rooms" 10.9 12.3 12.5 10.6 8.8 
Pari-muluel, food, beverage and other 44.8 51.5 57.0 44.6 44.4 
Marine and facilities .-. . 61.5 64.4 65.5 58.5 55.3 
Marketing and administrative 253.1 256.2 270.1 256.4 227.4 
Corporate and developmeni 468 4l,3 47.3 56.1 52.8 
Expense recoveries and other charges, nci (6.8) 36.1 6.5 7.8 0.2 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries — (32.3) (1.8) — — 
Prcopening — — 3.7 11.4 0.3 
Depreciation and amortization 109.5 122.5 128.9 96.7 85.4 

Total operaiing expenses 935.8 973J 1,026.2 910.0 834,0 

Operaiing income 64.0 134,5 65.2 65.3 118.4 
Interest expense (75.4) (92.0) (106.8) (88.1) (75.1) 
Iniercst income 1.8 2.1 3.2 7,0 2,2 
Olher (0.3) " -^ — ~- — 
Gain (loss) on eariy extinguishment of debt — 57.7 (15.3) — (2.1) 

Income (loss), from continuing operations before 
income taxes and including nonconlolling inieresi . . (9.9) 102.3 (53.7) (15.8) 43.4 
Income lax benefil (provision) M (41.1) 20.9 OS (10.5) 

Income (loss) from continuing operalions including 
noncontrolling inierest (I.,5) 61.2 (32.8) (15.0) 32.9 

(Loss) income from discontinued operalions, net of 
income ia.xes (1.8) (17.6) (59.2) 13.9 (7.5) 

Nel income (loss) including nonconlolling interest. . . , (3.3) 43.6 (92.0) (1.1) 25.4 
Less net income (loss) altribuiable to the noconiroiling 

iniercst — — (4.9) (3.5) (6.5) 

Net income (loss) attributable lo common stockholders S (3.3) $ 43.6 $ (96.9) S (4.6) S 18.9 
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Fiscal Year End«l(l) 
April 25, April 26, April 27, April 29. April 30, 

2010 2009 2008 2007 2IH16 

(dollars in millions, except per share data) 
Statement of Operafions Data (continued): 
Income (loss) per common share attributable to 

common stockholders 
Basic 

Income (loss) from continuing operations S (0.05) S 1.95 S (1.24) S (0.61) S 0.S8 
Income from disconlinued operations (0.05) (0.56) (1.92) 0.46 (0.25) 

Nel Income (loss) S (0.10) S 1.39 5 (3.16) S (0.15) S 0.63 

Diluted 
Income (loss) from continuing operations S (0.05) S 1.95 S (1.24) S (0.61) $ 0.84 
Income from discontinued operations (0.05) (0.56) (1.92) 0.46 (0-24) 

Net Income (loss) S (0.10) S 1.39 S (3.16) S (0.15) S 0.60 

Other Data: 
Net cash provided by (used in): 

Operaiing activities S 106.4 S 190.6 $ 133.4 S 70.9 S 86.7 
Investing aetivhies (31.0) (27.9) (302.4) (197.3) (176.4) 
Financing acliviiies (104,0) (157.2) 72.5 193.5 64.9 

Capital expendilures (27,7) (58.6) (190.5) (451.4) (224.4) 

Balance Sheel Duta: 
Cash and cash equivalents S 68.1 S 96.7 S 91.8 S 188.1 S 121.0 
Total assets L674.8 1,782.7 1,974.2 2,075.7 1,877-7 
Long-lerm debt, including current ponion 1,200.9 1,.30L1 1.507.3 1,418.0 1.219,1 
Stockholders' equiiy 240.2 228.4 188.0 281.8 2S0.2 

Operuting Data: 
Number of slol machines 14,579 15,373 15,393 14,121 12.494 
Number of lable games 368 369 387 324 322 
Number of hotel rooms 3,079 3,104 3,107 2.674 2,652 
Number of parking spaces 20,696 22,290 21,229 19,484 13,847 

(1) Our fiscal year ended April 30, 2006 includes 53 weeks while all other fiscal years include 52 weeks. The 
results refiect Lucaya, Blue Chip, Coventry. Bossier-City and Vicksburg as discontinued operations. We 
opened new casino operations in Ponipano, Florida.and Waterloo, Iowa in April 2007 and June 2007, 
respeclivcly. We acquired our casino operalions in Caruthersville, Missouri in June 20()7. 

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C O N D m O N AND 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

You should read the following discussion together with die financial statements, including the related 
notes and the other financial infonnaiion, contained in this Annual Report on Fonn 10-K. 

ExecuUve Overview 

We are a leading developer, owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and related lodging 
and enlertainmeni facilities in regional markets In ihe United Stales. We have sought and established 
geographic diversity to limit the risks caused by weather, regional economic difficulties, gaming lax 
rales and regulations of local gaming authorities. We currently operate casinos in Mississippi, 
Louisiana, Missouri, Iowa, Colorado and Florida. Wc also operate a harness racing track at our casino 
in Florida. 
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Our operating results for ihe periods presented have been affected, both positively and negatively, 
by several factors discussed in detail below. Our business has,been and may confinuc lo be adversely 
affected by the economic recession currently being experienced in the United Stales, as we are highly 
dependenl on discretionar}' spending by our patrons. Our historical operating results may not be 
indicative of our fuiure results of operations/becausc; of,these faciors and the changing compctiUve 
landscape in each ofour markets, as well as by faciors,discussed elsewhere herein. TTiis Management's 
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condilion and Results of Operations should be read in 
conjunction with and giving consideration to the following: 

Ilems Impacting Income (Loss) from:Contiiming'Operations—Significant ilems impacting our income 
(loss) from confinuing operations during the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009 and 
April 27, 2008 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year landed 

April 25, April 26. April 27. 
2010 2009 200S 

Hurricane and other insurance recoveries, nel $— $ 95.2 $ 2.1 
Expense recoveries and other charges, nel 6.8 (36.1) (6.5) 
Pre-opening •. . — — (3-6) 
Gain (loss) on eariy exfinguishmenl of debt — 57.7 (15.3) 
Noncontrolling interest — — (4.9) 

Hurricane and Other Insurance Recoveries, net—Our insurance recoveries for fiscai 2009 include 
$92.2 million relating to the final settlement of our Hurricane Katrina claim al our Biloxi property 
and other insurance recoveries. 

Expense Recoveries and Other Charges- net—During fiscal 2010, we recorded an other expense 
reduction of $6.8 million representing the discounled value of a receivable for reimbursement of 
development cosis expensed in prior periods relating to a terminated plan to develop a casino in 
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following our current assessment of 
colleciabilily. 

As a resuli ofour annual Impairmenl lesls of goodwill and long-lived intangible assets under 
ASC 350. we recorded impairmenl charges o!" $18.3 million at our Black Hawk property in fiscal 
2009. The results from operations for fiscal 2009,also include a $11.9 million write-off of 
construction in progress at our Biloxi properly following our decision not'lo continue a previously 
aniicipaied consirucuon project, and a $6.0 million charge following our termination of an 
agreemeni for a potenlial development of a casino in Portland, Oregon. 

Fiscal 2008 results also include $6.5 million of charges relaled lo the termination of our plans 
lo develop a new casino in west Harrison Couniy, Mississippi and the cancellation of construction 
projecis in Davenport, Iowa and Kansas City, Missouri. 

OpeiiinglAcquisition of New Properties and Pre-opening Expenses—During fiscal 2008, our 
operaiing results were impacted by the opening of the gaming facility at our Pompano localion in 
April 2007, the acquisition ofour Caruthersville, Missouri casino in June 2007 and the opening of 
our Waterloo, Iowa casino in June 2007. The periods prior to the opening of each of our new 
casino operations were impacted by pre-opening expenses. 

Gain (IMSS) on Early Extinguishment of Debl—During fiscal 2009, wc retired $142.7 million of 
our senior subordinated notes, through a tender offer, for a cash payment of S82.8 million utilizing 
ihc proceeds from our Hurricane Kairina selllemenl and repaid $35.0 million ofour variable rate 
term loans as required under our senior secured credii facility. After expenses related to the 
elimination of deferred financing costs and transactions costs, we recognized a net pretax gain of 
$57.7 million related to these transaciions. 
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Wc recorded a total of $15.3 million in losses as.sociatcd with the early exfinguishmenl of debt 
during fiscal 2008, consisting of a $9.0 million call premium paid to retire $200.0 million of our 9% 
senior subordinated noles, and $6.3 million of deferred financing costs associated wilh retired debt 
insiruments. 

Acquisition of Noncontrolling Interest—On January 27, 2008, we acquired the 43% minority 
inierest in our Black Hawk, Colorado casino properties for $64.8 million. 

In addition lo the items in the table the following ilems also have had an impact on our operations 
or the comparability of our operaiing results between years: 

Discontinued Operations—Discontinued operations include the results ofour Lucaya, Blue 
Chip and Covenlry properties. During November 2009-we exited our Lucaya casino. During fiscal 
2010, we completed the sale ofour Blue Chip casino properties under a plan of administration and 
have no continuing involvement in its operation. During fiscal 2009, we recorded a $1.4 million 
charge lo reduce the Blue Chip assets held for sale lo their estimated fair value. TTie 
administration process Is expecied lo be completed,during fiscal 2011. 

On April 23, 2009, wc completed the sale of our assels and lerminaicd our lease of Arena 
Coventry Convention Center relafing to our casino operalions in Coventry, England. Our lease 
termination costs and other expenses, net of cash proceeds from our assets sales, resulted in a 
pretax charge of $12.0 million recorded in fiscal 2009 related to our discontinued Coventry 
operations. 

Increased Competition—The opening of a new hotel in Oclober 2009 by a competitor in Black 
Hawk, Colorado has had a negative impact on our Black Hawk, Colorado properfies in fiscal 2010. 
TTie opening of a competing land-based facility, which replaced a riverboat operaiion in the Quad 
Cities area during December 2008, has had a negative impaci on net revenues and operating 
results at our Beltendorf and Davenpon, Iowa properlies in the latter part of fiscal 2009 and in 
fiscal 2010. The introduction of lable games and expansion of Class III gaming at competing 
Native American casinos, beginning July 2008, has had a negative impaci on our Pompano 
property's net revenues and operating results In fiscal 2010 and 2009. 

Gaming_Law Changes-—^During November 2008, gaming law changes became effeciive in 
Missouri which repealed the $500 loss limil. During early July 2009, gaming law changes became 
effective In Colorado which extended the hours of operations, expanded Ihe lypes of allowable 
table games and increased the betfing limit from $5 lo $100 per bet. Our gaming revenues refiect 
the favorable impaci pf these changes in state ganiing laws. 

In April 2010, changes were made to Florida law which, among other things, will lower our 
slate gaming lax rate from .50% lo 35% effecfive July 1, 2010. It also allows the-pokcr operalions 
to remain open for the same hours as the slol fioor and removes the poker betting limits. 

Smoking Restrictions—While we have benefited at our Beltendorf and Davenport, Iowa 
properlies from a smoking ban that impacts a competitor, the smoking ban enacted in Colorado 
during January 2008 has had a continuing adverse impact on our overall operaiing results at our 
Black Hawk, Colorado properties. 

Result!* of Operations 

Our results of continuing operations for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009 and 
April 27, 2008 refiect the consolidated operations of all of our subsidiaries. Our Inlernatlonal 
operations, including Coventr>', Blue Chip and Lucaya are presented as discontinued operalions. T'he 
results for our fiscal years 2009 and 2008 have been reclassified to refiect the classification of all 
international operalions as discontinued operations as well as to conform our financial presentation lo 
our current year financial statement format. Our Lucaya operalions were classified as disconlinued 
operations in the third quarter of fiscal 2010, our Covenirj' and Blue Chip Casino operalions were 
classified as disconlinued operalions in the fourlh quarter of fiscal 2009. 
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Our fiscal year ends on the last Sunday in April. T'his fiscal year convention creates more 
comparability ofour quarterly operations, by generally having an equal number of weeks (13) and 
weekend days (26) in each quarter. Periodically, this convention necessitates a 53-week year. Tlie fiscal 
years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 were all 52-week years. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

(In thousands) 

Nel Revenues 
FiKcal Year Kiided 

April 26, 
2009 

$ 83,880 $ 
37,023 
70,985 

191,888 

152,112 

74,435 
78,582 
31,579 

184,596 

91,661 
49,005 
29,875 
80,544 

April 27, 
2008 

90,952 
35.656 
75,336 

201,944 

159,456 

75,556 
79,802 
26,857 

182,215 

92,060 
52.333 
32.866 
64,650 

operaiing Income (Loss) 
Fiscal Year IDnded 

April 25, 
2010 

$ (8,-306) 
8.868 

10,692 

11,254 

13,317 

13.717 
21,125 
.3,853 

38,695 

12,624 
10,494 
1.330 

11,614 

April 26, 
20O9 

$ (7,952) 
10,811 
11,498 

14,357 

22,041 

10,369 
20,737 

1,638 

32,744 

20.090 
10,351 
3,705 

11,377 

April 27, 
2008 

$ (3,538) 
7,412 

11,034 

14,908 

20,623 

8,121 
19,485 
2,574 

30,180 

18.967 
8,834 
4,380 
5,661 

April 25. 
(in thousands) 2010 ' 

Mississippi 
Biloxi S 72,602 
Natchez 32,826 
Lula 68,147 

Mi5.sisslppi Total 173,575 
Louisiana 

Lakes Charies 139,423 
Missouri 

Kansas City 76,815 
Boonville 77,759 
Carulhersville(l) 32,685 

Missouri 'Total I87,Z59 
Iowa 

Bettendorf 79,527 
Davenport 48,075 
Marquette 27,176 
Waterloo(2) 81,261 

Iowa Tolal 2.36,039 251,085 241,909 36,062 45.523 37.842 
Colorado 

Black Hawk/Colorado 
Central Station 126,140 12.3,382 144,083 14,891 14,688 30,811 

Florida 
Pompano 

Insurance recoveries(3) 
Expense recoveries and other 

charges, nei(4) 
Pre-opening(2) 
Corporate and other 

From continuing operations . . 

1.35,998 

— 

1,402 

5999,836 

142,672 

61,845 

455 

$1,108,035 

160,831 

348 

597 

$1,091,383 

(6,951) 

— 

6,762 

(49,974) 

$ 64,056 

(6,434) 

94.073 

(36,125) 

(46,335) 

$1.34,532 

(7,442) 

2,105 

(6,526) 
(3,654) 

(53,696) 

$ 65,151 

Note: This table excludes our inlernalional properties which have been classified as discontinued 
operations. 

(1) Refiects results since the June 2007 acquisition effeciive dale. 

(2) Waterloo opened for operalions in June 2007. Reflects prc-opening expenses relaled to ihis 
property. 
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(3) Insurance recoveries include business inlerruplion proceeds of $62^932, included in net revenues in 
fiscal 2009. $61,845 of this amounl relates lo settlement for events that occurred prior to fiscal 
2009 (primarily Hurricane Katrina). 

(4) E-xpense recoveries and oiher charges include e.xpense recoveries, valuations and other charges. 
See Executive Overview—Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, net for a detailed discussion of 
such items. 

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009 

Rex'emies 

Revenues for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ended 

April 25, April 26, 
(in thousands) , 2010 20O9 

Revenues: 
Casino $1,013,386 $1,0.55,694 
Rooms 43,007 46,380 
Pari-mulucl, food, beverage and other 134,994 138,632 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries — 62,932 

Gross revenues . . . 1,191,387 1,303,638 
Less promotional allowances (191,551) (195,603) 

Net revenues $ 999;836 $1,108,035 

Casino Revenues—Casino revenues decreased $42.3 million, or 4.0%, in fiscal 2010 compared to 
fi.scal 2009. We experienced a decrease in casino revenues al most of our properties primarily as a 
result of the continued deterioration in discretionary' consumer spending in conjunction with poor 
economic conditions, with our properlies in Lake Charles and Biloxi experiencing decreases of 
$9.5 million and $8.1 million, respecilvely. Casino revenues al'our Quad Cities properties declined 
$13.9 million due to competition from a new land-based facility and casino revenues at our Pompano 
slol facility declined.$3.6 million due to e.xpansion of nearby competing Native American casinos. 

Rooms Revenue—Rooms revenue decreased $3.4 million, or 7.3%, in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 
2009 primarily resulting from decreased occupancy and lower average room rales as a result of reduced 
consumer demand for rooms. 

Pari-mutuel, Food, Beverage and Other-Revenues—Pari-muUiel, food, beverage and other revenues 
decreased $3.6 million, or 2.6%, in fi.scal 2010 comparedto fiscal 2009. This decrease was a result of a 
decrease of $3.7 million In pari-mutuel revenues at Pompano as a result of a 33 day decrease in year 
over year live racing days offsel by a net increase in food, beverage and other revenues. 

Promotional Allowances—Promotional allowances, which are made up of coniplimeniarv revenues, 
cash points and coupons, arc rewards that wc give our loyal customers lo encourage them lo continue 
to patronize our properties. "These allowances decreased by $4.1 million in fiscal 2010 compared to 
fiscal 2009 due to changes in our promotions and corresponding reductions in our revenues. For fiscal 
2010 and 2009, promotional allowances as a percenlage of casino revenues were 18.9% and 18.5%, 
respectively. 

Variance 

$ (42.308) 
(3.373) 
(3,638) 

(62,9.32) 

(112.251) 
4,052 

(108,199) 

I'erceniagc 
Variance 

-4.0% 
- 7.3% 
- 2.6% 
N/M 

-8.6% 
2.1% 

- 9.8% 
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Variance 

$ 2,228 
(7,687) 
(1,461) 
(6,702) 
(2,861) 
(3,113) 
5,419 

(42,887) 
32,277 

(12,936) 

(37,723) 

Perci'nlage 
Variance 

1.5% 
- 2.8% 

-11.9% 
-13.0% 
-4 .4% 
-1.2% 
13.1%. 

-118.7% 
N/M 

- 10.6% 

-3.9%) 

Operaiing Expenses 

Operaiing expenses for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows; 

Fiscal Year Kndi'd 

April 25, April 26. 
(in thousands) 2010 2009 

Operating expenses: 
Casino $153,838 $151,610 
Gaming taxes 262,241 269,928 
Rooms 10,845 12,306 
Pari-muluel, food, beverage and other 44,760 5L462 
Marine and facilities 61,507 64,368 
Marketing and administrative 253,097 256,210 
Corporate and developmeni 46,750 41,-331 
Expense recoveries and other charges, net '. . . (6,762) 36,125 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries — (32,277) 
Depreciation and amortization 109.504 122,440 

Tolal operating expenses $935,780 $973,503 

Ca.sino—Casino operating expenses increased $2.2 million, or 1.5% in fiscal 2010 compared lo 
fiscal 2009. These expenses are primarily comprised of salaries, wages and benefits and other operaiing 
expenses of our casinos. This increase was primarily the result of increased cost of casino operalions at 
our Black Hawk casinos following a July 2009"regulaiory change expanding the hours of gaming 
operations. 

Gaming Taxes—Gaming taxes decreased by $7.7 iifillion, or 2.8%, in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 
2009. T'his rcduciion in gaming taxes is primarily a res'ull of a 4.0% decrease in casino gaming revenue 
and changes In mbc of gaming revenues among states with differing gaming lax rates. 

Rooms—Rooms expenses decreased by Sl.5 million or 11.9% in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 
2009. Overall reductions in rooms expenses corresponds to our 7.3% decline in rooms rcvenue. 

Pari-mutuel, Food, Beverage and Other—Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other expenses decreased 
$6.7 million, or 13.0%, in fiscal 2010 as compared, lo fiscal 2009. Pari-mulucl.operaiing costs ai 
Pompano decreased $4.2 million in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009. Such costs consist primarily of 
compensation, benefits, purses, simulcast fees and other direct costs of track operalions. TTie decreases 
in current year as compared to prior year are a result of reduction of 33 live racing days during the 
current fiscal year. The reduction In food and beverage expenses resulled primarily from labor and 
other cost reductions. Food and beverage expenses consist primarily of the cost of goods sold, salaries, 
wages and benefits and other operating expenses of the.se departments. 

Marine and Facilities—These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the marine and 
facilities departments, operating expenses of the marine crews, maintenance of public areas, 
housekeeping and general maintenance of ihe riverboats and pavilions. Marine and facilities expenses 
decreased $2.9 million, or 4.4%. in fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 and is the result of $1.5 million 
in utility cost reductions, $0.5 million in reduced payroll costs and $0.9 million in other cost reductions. 

Markeiuig and Adminisirative—These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the markeiing 
and sales deparlraenls, as well as promotions, direct mail, advertising, special events and entertainmenl. 
Adminisirative expenses include administration and human resource departmeni expenses, rent, 
professional fees, insurance and property laxes. T'he $3.1 million decrease in markeiing and 
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administrative expenses in fiscal 2010, as compared lo fiscal 2009, refiects our decision lo reduce 
marketing costs lo less profitable customer segments and to reduce our adminisirative costs. 

Corporate and Development—During fiscal 2010, our corporate and developmeni expenses were 
$46.8 million compared to $41.3 million for fiscal 2009. 'This increase in corporate and development 
expense refiects $1.8 million of costs associaied with the amendmeni ofour credit facility, a 
$1.1 million increase in stock compensation expense and oiher increases in professional and olher 
expenses associated with our development and acquisition activities. 

Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $12.9 million, 
or 10.6%, in fiscal 2010, as compared lo fiscal 2009 primarily due lo ceriain assels becoming fully 
depreciated during the curreni year. 

Odier Income (Expense), Income Taxes, Minority Interest and Discontinued Operations 

Inieresi expense, inierest income,,oiher, gain on early exfinguishmenl of debl, income lax 
(provision) benefit, minority inierest and income from disconlinued operations, net of income ta.xes for 
the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Knded 

April 25, April 26. Percentage 
(in Ihou.s.ind.'i) 2010 2009 Variance Variance 

Interest expense $(75,4.34) $(92,065) $ 16,631 -18 .1% 
Interest Income 1,833 2,112 (279) -13.2% 
Other (370) — (370) N/M 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt — 57,693 (57,693) N/M 
Income tax (provision) benefit 8,374 (41,0.39) 49,413 -120.4% 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . . (1,732) (17,658) 15,926 -90.2% 

Interest Expense—Interest expense decreased $16.6 million, or 18.1%, in fiscal 2010 compared to 
fiscal 2009 resulting from lower average debt balances. Qur lower average debt balance resulted from 
the reduction of $142.7 million of our senior subordinaied 7% notes and a $35.0 million repayment on 
our senior secured credit facility debt In F'cbruary and March 2009, respectively. While we have 
experienced a decrease in the interest rate on the variable interest rate components of our debi 
ihrough the third quarter of fiscal 2010, our senior secured credit facility amendment during the fourth 
quarter of fiscal 2010 increased our overall interest rales. See liquidity and capilal resources for 
addilional discussion of our senior sccuretJ credii facility amendment. 

I/ueresi Income—During fiscal 2010, our interest income decreased $0.3 million as compared to 
ftscal 2009. TTie change In Inieresi income refiects changes in our invested cash and marketable 
sccuriiies balances and lower iniercst rates. 

Other—This includes expenses related to the change in fair value ofour ineffective inieresi rale 
swap agreements. 

Income Tax (Provision) Benefil—Our income lax (provision) benefil from continuing operalions and 
our effective income tax rate has been impacied by our settlement of certain la.x liabilities for 
$4.7 million less than our estimated accrual, our amounl of annual taxable income (loss) for financial 
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statemenl purposes as well as our percentage of permanent items in relation to such income or loss. 
Effecfive income tax rates were as follows: 

April 25, April 26, 
2010 2009 

Variance 

$(36,599) 
(3.118) 

(11,512) 
62,584 

11.3-̂ 5 
5,297 

16,652 

I'erccntage 
Variance 

-3 .4% 
- 6 . 3 % 
-7 .7% 
N/M 

0.9% 
2.6% 

1.5% 

Confinuing operalions 84.4% 40.1% 
'lotal 73.2% 41.7% 

Fiscal 2009 Compared lo Fiscal 2008 

Revenues 

Revenues for the fiscal years 2009 and 2008 are as follows; 

Fiscal Year Ended 

April 26, April 27. 
(in thousands) 21)09 2008 

Revenues: 
Casino $1,055,694 $1,092,293 
Rooms 46,380 49,498 
Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other . . .• 138,632 150,144 
Hurricane and other Insurance recoveries 62,932 348 

Gross revenues 1,303,638 1,292,283 
Less promotional allowances (195,603) (200,900) 

Net revenues '. $1,108,035 $1,091,383 

Casino Revenues—Casino revenues decreased $36.6 million, or 3.4%, In fiscal 2009 compared lo 
fiscal 2008. We experienced adecrease in casino revenues at most of pur properties primarily as a 
result of the confinued deterioration'in discretionary consumer spending in conjunction with poor 
economic conditions. Our Black TIawk properties' $24.2 million decline in casino revenues as compared 
to fiscal 2008 also reflects the impaci ofa statewide smoking ban effeciive for Colorado casinos on 
January 1, 2008- The $8.4 million decrease in casino revenues at our Pompano slol facility also reflects 
the expansion of nearby competing Native American casinos. Decreases in our casino revenues were 
partially offsel by Increases in casino revenues of $20.5 million at our Waterloo and Caruihers\ille 
properlies due lo the casinos being opened for a full 12 months in fiscal 2009 compared to only 10 and 
nine months, respectively, in fiscal 2008. 

Rooms Revenue—Rooms revenue decreased $3.1 million, or 6.3%, in fiscal 2009 compared lo fiscal 
2008 primarily resulting from decreased occupancy and lower average room rates as a result of reduced 
consumer demand for rooms. 

Pari-mutuel. Food, Beverage and Other Revenues—Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other revenues 
decreased $11.5 million, or 7.7% in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 corresponding to an overall 
reduction in casino revenues and due to decreases in consumer spending caused by current economic 
conditions. Pari-mutuel commissions and fees earned at Pompano decreased $3.2 million, or 16.8% 
compared to the prior fiscal year due to decreases in wagering. 'These decreases were offset by 
increases al our Waterloo and Caruthersville properties due to the casinos being opened for a full 
12 months in fiscal 2009 compared to only 10 and nine months, respectively. In fiscal 2008. 

33 



Variance 

$ 520 
(15,442) 

(188) 
(5.568) 
(1.101) 

(13,877) 
(6,003) 
29,599 

(30,520) 
(3,654) 
(6,495) 

(52,729) 

Percentage 
Variance 

0.3% 
-5.4% 
-1 .5% 
-9 .8% 
-1 .7% 
- 5 . 1 % 

-12.7% 
453.6% 
N/M 

-100.0% 
-5.0% 

- 5 . 1 % 

Promotional Allowances—Promotional allowances, which are made up of complimentary revenues, 
cash points and coupons, are rewards that wc give our loyal customers to encourage them lo continue 
to patronize our properties. These allowances decreased by ,$5.3 million in fiscal 2009 compared to 
fiscal 2008 primarily due to a decrease in patrons, For.fiscal 2009 and 2008, promotional allowances as 
a percenlage of casino revenues were 18.5% and 18,4%, respectively. 

Operating Expenses 

Operaiing expenses for ihc fiscal years 2009 and 2008 arc as follows: 

fiscal Year Endtid 

April 26, April 27, 
(in thousands) 2009 2008 

Operating expenses: 
Casino 5151,610 $ 151,090 
Gaming taxes 269,928 285,370 
Rooms , . . . 12,306 12,494 
Pari-muluel, food, beverage and other 51,462 57,030 
Marine and facilities 64,368 6,5,469 
Marketing and administrative 256,210 270,087 
Corporate and development 41,331 47,334 
Expense recoveries and olher charges, net 36,125 6,526 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries (32,277) (1,757) 
Pre-opening : — 3,654 
Depreciation and amortization 122,440 128,935 

Total operaiing expenses $973,503 $1,026,232 

Casino—Casino operating expenses increased iiominally year over year. Tliese expenses are 
primarily comprised of salaries, wages and benefits and. other operating expenses of our casinos. Casino 
properties opened in fiscal 2008 experienced a S7.8 million increase, in year over year casino e.xpenses 
while casino properties operating for both years experienced :a $7.3 million reduction in casino expenses 
corresponding to an overall decrease in gaming revenues and managemenl's increased focus on cost 
management 

Gaming Taxes—State and local gaming taxes decreased by $15.4 million, or 5.4%. in fiscal 2009 
compared to fiscal 2008. TTiis reduction in gaming taxes is primarily a resuli ofa 3.4% decrease in 
casino gaming revenue and changes in gaming revenues among slates with differing gaming tax rales 
and refund ofa $1.9 million in gaming taxes at our Pompano facility following an agreement reached 
wilh the Slate of Florida regarding the interpretation of the gaming tax calculation based on gaming 
laxes paid since Pompano's opening. 

Pari-muluel, Food, Beverage and Other—Pari-mulucl, food, beverage and other expenses decreased 
S5.6 million, or 9.8%, in fiscal 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008. A $2.4 million reduction in food arid 
beverage expenses refiects a decrease in overall food and beverage revenues wilh food and beverage 
expenses as a percentage of gross fot>d and beverage revenues remaining stable in bolh fiscal 2009 and 
2008. Food and beverage expenses consist primarily of the cost of goods sold, salaries, wages and 
benefits and other operaiing expenses of these departments. This decrease reOccts the reductions in 
our food, beverage and other revenues. Pari-mutuel operating costs of, Pompano decreased $3.1 million 
in fiscal 2009 compared lo fiscal 2()08. Such costs consist priniarilyof compensalion, benefits, purses, 
simulcast fees and other direct costs of track operalions. The decreases in the current year as compared 
to prior year are a result of cost reductions relaled lo our pari-mutuel operalions. 
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Marine and Facilities—These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the marine and 
facilities departments, operating expenses of the marine crews, maintenance of public areas, 
housekeeping and general maintenance of ihe riverboats and pavilions. Marine and facilities expenses 
decreased $1.1 million, or 1.7%, in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 and is the resuU of hcadcount 
reductions and cosl management. 

Marketmg and Administrative—'These expenses include salaries, wages and benefits of the marketing 
and sales departments, as well as promofions, direct mail, adverfising, speciaTcvenis and enlertainmeni. 
Adminislrafive expenses include administration and human.resource depariment expenses, rent, 
professional fees, insurance and property taxes. The $13.9 million decrease in markeiing and 
administrative expenses in fiscal 2009. compared to fiscal 2008, reflects our decision to reduce marketing 
costs to less profitable customer segments and to rediice our adminisirative costs. 

Corporate and Development—During fiscal 2009, our corporate and development expenses were 
$41.3 million compared to $47.3 million for fiscal 2008. T'his decrease In corporate and development 
cxpen.se refiects our continued efforts to reduce our corporate overhead and includes reductions of 
$3.5 million in professional and consulting services as well as reducllons in other corporate expenses. 

Depreciation and Amortization—Depreciation and amortization expense decreased by $6.5 million, 
or 5.0%, in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 primarily due to ceriain assets becoming fully 
depreciated during the current year. 

Other Income (Expense), Income Taxes, Minority Interest and Discontinued Operations 

Interest expense, interest income, loss on early extinguishment of debt, income tax (provision) 
benefil, minority iniercst and income from discontinued operations, nel of income laxes for the fiscai 
years 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

Fi.scal ,̂ 'car Ended 

April 26, April 27, Percenlage 
(in lhousand.s) 2009 2008 Variance Variance 

Interest expense $(92,065) $(106,826) $ 14,761 -13.8% 
Interest income 2,111 3,261 (1,150) -35.3% 
Gain (loss) on early exfinguishment of debt 57,693 (15,274) 72,967 -477.7% 
Income lax (provision) benefil (4L039) 20,918 (61,957) -296.2% 
Loss from discontinued operations, net of income taxes . . (17,658) (59J236) 41,578 -70.2% 
Income attributable to noncontrolling inieresi — 4,868 (4,868) -100.0% 

Interest Expense—Interest expense decreased $14.8 million, or 13.8%, in fiscal 2009 compared to 
fiscal 2008. 'ITiis decrease Is primarily altribuiable lo a lower average debt balance rcsulling from the 
pay down of $142.7 million of our senior subordinated 7% notes and a $.35.0 million repayment on our 
senior secured credii facility debt in February and March 2009, respectively, and a decrease in the 
inieresi rate on the variable inieresi rate components of our debt. 

Intere.st Income—During fiscal 2009, our interest income decreased $1.2 millkm as compared to 
fiscal 2008. TTie change in interest income reficcis changes in our Invested cash and marketable 
securities balances and lower interest rales. 

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit—Our Income tax (provision) benefil from conlinuing operalions and 
our effective income tax rate has been impacied by amounl of annual taxable income (loss) for 
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financial siaiement purposes as well as our percenlage of permanent ilems in relation lo such income 
or loss. Effective income tax rales were as follows: 

April 26. April 27, 
2009 2008 

Continuing operations 40.1% .39.0% 
'Ibtal 41.7% 41.3% 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities—During fiscal 2010, we generated S106.4 million in cash flows 
from operaiing activities compared to generating $190.6 million during fiscal 2009. 'ITie decrease in,cash 
flows from operaiing activities is priinarily diie to reductions In nel income of $46.8 million as the prior 
fiscal year included $60 million in pretax business interruption insurance proceeds from our Hurricane 
Katrina settlement ai our Biloxi property and collecfion of $20.9 million of Income tax refunds. 

Ca.sh Flows used in Investing Activities—During fiscal 2010 wc used $31.0 million for invesiing 
activities compared to using $27.9 million during fiscal 2009. Our fiscal 2010 Investing activities include 
$27.7 million for purchases of properly and equipment. Significani invesiing activities for fiscal 2009 
included purchases of property and equipment of $58̂ 6 million primarily offsel by the collection of 
property related insurance proceeds of $32.2 million. 

Cash Flows used by Financing Activities—During fiscal 2010 our net cash flows used by financing 
activities were $104.0 million primarily comprised of: 

" Repayment of $8.4 million of our senior secured lerm loans; 

• Net repaymenis of $90.5 million under our revolving credit agreement; and 

• Paymeni of $3.9 million In deferred financing cosis associaied wiih the amendment of our senior 
secured credii facility. 

During fiscal year ended 2009 our net cash flows used by financing acllvilies were $157.2 million 
primarily comprised of: 

• Repayment of $43.7 million of our senior secured term loans; 

• Net repayments of S18;5 million under our revolving credit agreement; 

• Payment of $82.8 million (used to retire $142.7 million) in principal amounl of our 7% senior 
subordinated notes; and 

" Repayment of other long-term liabilities of $11.4 million. 

Availability of Ca.sh and Additional Capital—At April 25, 2010, we had cash and cash equivalents of 
$68.1 million and marketable securities of $22.9 million. As of April 25, 2010, we had $21.5 million in 
borrowings under our revolving credit and $817.3 million in term loans outsianding under our senior 
secured credit facility. Our net line of credit availability al April 25, 2010 was approximaiely 
$109 million as limited by our leverage ratio. 

Amendment of our Senior Secured Credit Facility—On February 17, 2010, we entered into an 
amendment lo our senior secured credii facility which, among other things, (1) modified the leverage 
ratio and inierest coverage rafio to provide for greater flexibility through April 30, 2012, afler which 
date the laiios return to ihe original levels as outlined in the senior secured credii facility; (2) reduced 
the capaciiy of the revolving line of credii by $100,000 to $375,000; (3) Increased the interest rate of 
both the revolving line of credit and term loan portions to LIBOR -i- 3.00% with a LIBOR floor 
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of 2-00%; and (4) allows us to issue senior unsecured notes, provided the proceeds are used to repay 
borrowings under the senior secured crcdit facility. 

As a result of the amendment to the senior secured credit facility, we recorded a charge of 
approximately S2.2 million in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010 related lo fees and the wTitc-off of 
certain unamortized deferred financing costs, of which approximately $0.3 million was non-cash. If 
curreni debt levels remain static, wc expect our annualinlercsl expense lo increase by approximalcly 
$15 million to $18 million as a result of the amendrncnt to the senior secured credit facility, beginning 
during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. 

Capital Expenditures and Development Aclivities—Hislorically, we have made significani investments 
in property and equipment and expect Ihal our operalions will continue to demand ongoing 
investments to keep our properties competitive. 

In June 2010 wc expect to close on our purchase of the Rainbow casino in Vicksburg, Mississippi. 
We expect to fund the $80 million purchase price with borrowings under our senior secured credii 
facility. While the $80 million used lo acquire the Rainbow casino will increase the outstanding balance 
of our senior credit facility, our overall credii availability will nol be materially impacied by the 
acquisilion after the purchase. 

In fiscal 2011, wc plan to invest approximately S48 million in maintenance capital expenditures. 

Historically, wc have funded our daily operations ihrough net cash provided by operating activities 
and our significant capilal expenditures through operating cash flow and debt'financing. While we 
believe ihat existing cash, cash flow from operalions, and available borrowings under our senior secured 
credii facility will be sufficient to support oiir working capital needs, pending purchase of the Rainbow 
casino, planned capital expenditures and debt service requircmcnts for the foreseeable future, there is 
no assurance ihal these sources will in fact provide adequate funding for our planned and necessary' 
expenditures or that our planned reduced levels of capital Inveslmenls will be sufficient lo allow us to 
remain competitive in our existing markels. 

Wc have identified several capital projects primarily focused on refreshing our hotel room 
inventory as well as additional improvements to our Black Hawk and Lake Charles properties, and 
furlher Lady Luck conversions. 'The timing and amount oflhese capilal expenditures will be 
determined as we gain more clarity as to improvement of economic and local market conditions, cash 
flows from our conlinuing operalions and availability of cash under our senior secured credit facility. 

. We have entered into an agreement to provide management services for a potenlial casino to be 
localed at the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort In Farmington, Pennsylvania, ("the Resort"). T'he 
developmeni of this casino is subjecl lo numerous regulatory approvals including obtaining a slate 
gaming license, which is a competitive award process among several applicants. If the Resort is 
successful In obtaining a gaming license, we have agreed to complete the build-out of the casino space. 
We currently estimate the project cosl at approximately $50 million. 

We are highly leveraged and may be unable to obiain addilional debt or equity financing on 
acceptable terms if our current sources of liquidity arc not sufficient or if we fall lo slay in compliance 
with the covenants of our senior secured crcdit facility. Wc will continue to evaluate our planned 
capital expenditures al each of our exisling locations in lighl of the operaiing performance of the 
facilities at such locations. 

As part of our business developmeni activities, hislorically we have entered into agreements which 
have resulted in the acquisition or development of businesses or assels. These business developmeni 
efforts and relaled agreements lypically require the expenditure of cash, which may be significani. TTie 
amounl and timing of our cash expenditures rclailng to development activities may vary based upon 
our evaluation of current and fuiure development opportunillcs, our financial condilion and the 
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condition of the financing markels. Our developmeni aclivities are subject to a variety of faciors 
including but not limiled lo: obtaining pcrrnits, licenses and approvals from appropriate reguiaton.' and 
other agencies, legislative changes and, in certain circumstant:es, negoilafing acceptable leases. 

Critical Accounting Estimates 

Our consolidated financial statements arc prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounling principles that require our managemeni lo make eslimales and assumptions that affecl 
reported amounts and related disclosures. Management identifies critical accounting estimates as: 

" those thai require the use of assuniptions about matters that are inherently and highly uncertain 
al ihe lime the estimates are made; 

" those esiimates where, had we chosen different esiimates or assumptions, the resulting 
differences would have had a material impact on our financial condilion, changes in financial 
condilion or results of operalions; and 

• those estimates that, if they were lo change from period to period, likely would result in a 
material impact on our financial condilion, changes in financial condition or results of 
operations-

Based upon managemenl's discussion of the developmeni and selection of Ihese critical accounting 
estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board of Direclors, wc believe Ihe following accounting 
estimates Involve a higher degree of judgment and complexity. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—Al April 25, 2010, we, had goodwill and other inlangible 
assels of S392.S million, representing 23.4% of lolal assets. Statement of Financial Accounling 
Standards (SFAS) No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" ("SFAS 142"), is now included in 
ASC 'Ibpic 3.50, Intangibles—Goodwill and Olher, Forgoodwill and,indefinite-lived inlangible assels, 
wc perform an annual impairment lesl for these assets In the fourth fiscal quarter of each year, or on 
an interim basis if Indicators of impairmenl exist For properties wilh goodwill and/or other intangible 
assets with indefinite lives, this test requires the comparison of the implied fair value of each reporting 
unit to carrying value. 

We musl make various assumptions and estimates,in performing our impairmenl testing. The 
implied fair value includes estimates of future cash flows that are based on reasonable and supportable 
assumptions which represent our best esiimates of the cash flows expected to result from the use of the 
assets including their eventual disposilion and by a market approach based upon valuation multiples for 
similar companies. Changes in estimates, increases in our cost of capital, reductions in transaction 
multiples or application of alternative assuniptions and definitions could produce significanlly different 
results. Future cash fiow esiimates are, by their nature, subjective and actual results may differ 
[iialerially from our estimates. If our ongoing estimates of future cash flows are not met, we may have 
to record additional impairment charges in future accounting periods. Our estimates of cash flows are 
based on the curreni regulatory, social and economic climates, recent operating Informalion and 
budgets of the various properties where we conduci operations. TTiese esiimates could be negatively 
impacted by changes in federal, slate or local regulations, economic downturns, or olher events 
affecting various forms of travel and access lo our properties. 
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We engaged an Independent third parly valualit)nfirm to conduct our annual impairment testing 
for fiscal 2010. Our reporting units with goodwill and/or other long-lived intangibles had fair values 
which exceeded their carrying valiies by at least 15%, except for our Black Hawk reporting unit wilh 
goodwill and indefinite-lived assets as of April 25, 2010 of $30.6 miillon, which whose fair value 
exceeded its carrying value by 6%. During our 2009 annual impairmenl lesl, we recorded an 
impairment charge of $183 million to wrile-down goodwill and indefiniie lived intangible assets at 
Black Hawk reporting unit. 

Property and Equipment—At April 25, 2010, we had property and equipment, net of accumulated 
depreciation of $1.1 billion, representing 66% of total.assels. We capitalize the cosi of properly and 
equipment Maintenance and repairs that neither maierially add to the value of the property or 
equipment nor appreciably prolong its life are charged to expense as incurred. We depreciate property 
and equipment on a straighl-line basis over their eHlimaied useful lives. The esfimaled useful lives are 
based on the nature of the assets as well as our curreni operating strategy. Fuiure events such as 
properly expansions, new compeiliion, changes in technology arid new regulations could result in a 
change in the manner in which we are using certain assets requiring a change in the estimated useful 
lives of such assets. 

Impairment of Long-Uveti Assets^We evaluate long-lived assets for impairnienl in accordance with • 
the guidance in the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assels subsection of ASC Topic 360, 
Property, Planl and Equipment (ASC Topic 360"). For a long-lived assel to be held and used, we 
review the assel for impairment whenever evenls or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying 
amounl, may not be recoverable. In assessing the recoverability of the carrying value of such property, 
equipment and other long-lived assets, wc make assumpiions regarding future cash flows and residual 
values. If these estimates or the related assumptions are not achieved or change in ihe fuiure, we may 
be required to record an impairmenl loss for these assels. In evaluating impairment of longTived assets 
for newly opened operations, estimates of fuiure cash flows and residual values-may require some 
period of actual results to provide the basis for an opinion of future cash flows and residual values 
used in the determination of an impairmenl loss for these assels. For assels held for disposal, we 
recognize the asset at the lower of carrying value or fair market value, less cost of disposal based upon 
appraisals, discounled cash flows or other methods as appropriale. An impairmenl loss would be 
recognized as a non-cash component of operating income. 

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we recorded a charge of $1.4 million to reduce our Blue 
Chip assels held for sale to their estimated fair value le.ss the cost to sell. 

During the fourlh quarter of fiscal 2008, we engaged an independent third party valuation firm lo 
conduci an appraisal ofour long-lived assels associated wilh our casino property in Coventry, England 
due to the continuation of losses from operations, a review of expected future,operating trends and the 
current fair values of our long-lived assets in Coventry, England. Based upon this appraisal, we 
recorded an impairment charge of $78.0 million relating to the wriie-down of long-lived assels at our 
Coventry properly in fiscal 2008. 

Self-Insurance Liabilities—We arc self-funded up lo a ma.̂ imum amounlper claim for our 
employee-related health care benefits program, workers" compensalion and general liabilifies. Claims in 
excess of this maiximum are fully insured through a stop-loss insurance policy. We accrue a discounted 
estimate for workers' compensation liabiiily and general liabilities based on claims filed and estimates 
of claims Incurred but not reported. We rely on independent consultants to assist in the determination 
of estimated accruals. While the estimated cost of claims incurred depends on future developments, 
such as increases in heallh care costs, in our opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to cover fuiure 
claims payments. Based upon our current accrued insurance liabilities, a 1% change in our discount 
faclor would cause a $0.7 million chantie In our accrued self-insurance liabllilv. 
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Income Tax Assets and Liabilities—We account for income-taxes In accordance with the guidance in 
ASC Topic 740, Income Ta.xes ('ASC Topic 740"). We arc subject lo iiicomc taxes in the United Stales 
and in several slales in which we opcraie We recognize a curreni tax assel or liability for ihc estimated 
taxes payable or refundable based upon applicalion of the enacted tax rates to taxable Income in the 
current year. Additionally, we are required lo recognize a deferred lax liability or assel for the 
estimated future lax effects attributable lo lemporar)' differences. Temporary differences occur when 
differences arise between: (a) the amounl of^taxable income and pretax financial income for a year and 
(b) the lax basis of assels or liabilifies and their reported amounts in financial statements. Deferred tax 
assets recognized must be reduced by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits that, in our judgment 
and based upon available evidence, may not be realizable. 

Wc assess our lax positions using a iwo-slep process. A tax position is recognized if it meets a 
"more likely than nol" threshold^ and is measured at-the largest amounl of benefit that is greater than 
50 percent likely of being realized. Uncertain tax positions musl be reviewed at each balance sheel 
dale. Liabilities recorded as a result of this analysis must generally be recorded separately from any 
current or deferred income tax accounts, and arc classified as current Other accrued liabilities or 
long-term Other long-lerm liabilities based on the lime until expecied payment. We recognize accrued 
Inieresi and penalties related lo unrecognized tax benefits in Income lax expense. 

Stock Based Compensation—We apply the .guidance of ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock 
Compensation ("ASC.Topic 718") in accounting lor slock compensation! Generally, we are required to 
measure the cost of employee services received in exchange,for an award of equity instrumenls based 
on Ihe grant-date fair value of the.award. The estimate of the fair value of the stock options is 
calculated using the Black-Scholes-Merlon option-pricing model. 'This model requires the use of various 
assumptions, including ihe historical volatility, the risk free inieresi rale, esfimaled expecied life of the 
grants, the estimated dividend vield and esfimaled ratcidf forfeitures. Tolal stock based compensation 
expense is included in the expense category corresponding to the employees' regular compensation In 
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. 

Derivative Instniments—We utilize an investment policy for managing risks associated with our 
curreni and anticipated fuiure borrowings, such as interest raterisk aiid its potential Impact on our 
fixed and variable rale debt. We are also currently required lo have at Icasl 50% of our terra loans 
under our senior secured credit facility covered by some form of interest protection. Currently we have 
$400 million of interesirale swap agreements and a $20 million Interest rale cap agreemeni. Under this 
policy, we may ulillze derivative contracts that effectively convert our borrowings from eilher 
floaling-lo-fixcd or fixed-lo-floating. TTie policy does not allow for the use of derivative financial 
instruments for trading or speculative purposes. To the extent we employ such financial instruments 
pursuant lo this policy, and the instruments qualify for hedge accounting, we may designate and 
account for them as hedged instruments. In order lo qualify for hedge accounfing, the underlying 
hedged item must expose us to risks associated with market fluctuations and the financial instrument 
used musi be designated as a hedge and must reduce our exposure to market fluctuations throughout 
the hedged period. If these criteria are not met, a change in the market value of the financial 
instrument is recognized as a gain (loss) In the period of change. Olherwise, gains and losses relaled lo 
the change in the market value arc not recognized excepi to the extenithai the hedged debt is 
disposed of prior to maturity or lo the extent that unacceptable'ranges pf ineffectiveness exist In the 
hedge Nel interest paid or received pursuant to the hedged financial Instrument is included in inierest 
expense in the period. Our current inieresi rale s"wap agreements, which were designated as cash flow 
hedges, became ineffecfive upon the amendment ofour senior secured credii facility in February 2010. 
We record them at fair value and measure their effectiveness using the long-haul method. The effeciive 
portion of any gain or loss on our interest rate swaps is recorded in olher comprehensive Income (loss). 
We use the hypothetical derivative method to measure the ineffective portion ofour inieresi rale 
swaps. TTie ineffective portion, if any, is recorded In olher Income (expense). We measure the 
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mark-to-markel value of our interest rate swaps using a discounted cash flow, analysis of ihe projected 
future receipts or payments based upon the forward yield curve on the date of measurement Wc adjusl 
this amounl lo measure the fair value of our inieresi rate swaps by applying a credii valuation 
adjustment to the mark-to-market exposure profile. 

Contingencies—We are involved in various legal proceedings and have idenlified ceriain loss 
contingencies. We record liabilities related to these contingencies when li is determined thai a loss is 
probable and reasonably eslimable in accordance with the guidance of ASC Topic 450 Contingencies 
('ASC Topic 4,50"). TTiese assessments are based on our knowledge and experience as well as the 
advice of legal counsel regarding current and pasl events. Any such estimates are also subject to fuiure 
events, court rulings, negofialions between ihc parlies and other uncertainties. If an aciual loss differs 
from our esiim-aie, or the actual outcome of any of the legal proi;eedings differs from expeciaiions, 
operating results could be impacied. 

Contractual Obligations and CummercinI Commitments 

The following lable provides information as of fiscal 2010, about our conlractual obligalions and 
commercial commitments. The lable presents conlractual obligations by due dales and related 
corilraciuat commitments hy expiration dales (in riiillibns). 

Payments Due by Period 

Conlractual Ohligations Tolal 

Long-Term Debt $1,200.9 
Estimated inieresi payments on long-term debt(l) . 277-7 
Operating Leases 508.8 
Long-Term Obligalions(2) , 18.4 
Other Long-Term Obligations 23.7 
Total Contractual Cash Obligations $2,029.5 

Less Than 
1 Year 

$ 8.7 
77.9 
20.5 
9,1 
1.1 

$117.3 

1 . 3 Yean, 

$ 39.1 
145.1 
32.9 
5.8 
2.2 

$225.1, 

4 - 3 Ytars 

$1,150.2 
52.2 
31.9 

1.4 
2.9 

$1,238.6 

After S Years 

S 2.9 
2.5 

4Z3.5 
2.1 

17.5 
$448.5 

(1) Estimated interest paymeni on long-lerm debt are based on principal amounts outstanding a! our 
fiscal year end and forecasted LIBOR rates for our senior secured credit facitity. 

(2) Long-term obligations include future purchase committiients as well as curreni and future 
construction contracts. 

Recently Issued Accounling Standards 

Recently Issued Accounling Slandards—New Pronouncements—In June 2009, the Financial 
Accounling Standards Board ("FASB") issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ('"STAS") 
No, 168, "The FASB Accounting Slandards Codification'-'̂ ' and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepied 
Accounling Principles—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162" ('ASC"), which idenfifies the 
sources of accounling principles and the framework for sclcciing the principles used in the preparation 
of financial statements of nongovernmenlal entities that are presented in conformity with GAAP in the 
United States (the GAAP hierarchy). SFAS 168 establishes the FASB Accounting Standards 
Codification^' as the source of aulhorilailve accounling principles recognized by the FASB to be 
applied by nongovernmental entities in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
GAAP. SFAS 168 is effective for most financial statements issued for interim and annual periods ending 
after September 15, 2009. The adoption of this guidance has changed how we reference various 
elements of GAAP when preparing our financial statement disclosures, bul did not have an impact on 
our consolidated financial statements. 
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, '•Noncontrolling Interests In Consolidated 
Financial Statements—An Amendment of ARB No. 5 1 " ('-SFAS 160"). SFAS 160 changes the 
accounling for noncontrolling (minority) interests In consolidaled financial slatemenls, requires 
noncontrolling Interests lo be reported as part of equiiy and changes the income statement presentation 
of income or losses attributable lo the noncontrolling interests. We adopied SFAS 160 as of April 27, 
2009, as required. T'he adopfion of SFAS 160 did nol have a maierial Impact on our consolidaled 
financial statements. 

ITE.M 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT M.\RKET RISK 

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes iri market rates and prices, including 
inierest rates, foreign currenc>' exchange rales, commodity prices and equity prices. Our primary 
exposure lo market risk is inierest rate risk ass<M;laled with our senior secured credii facility. 

Senior Secured Credit Facility 

During fiscal 2010, we mainiained inieresi rate s'\vap agreements and an Interest rate cap 
arrangement with an aggregate notional value of $400 million and $20 million as of April 25, 2010, 
respectively. The swap agreements effectively convert portions of: the senior secured crcdit facility 
variable debl to a fixed-rate basis until the respective swap agreements terminate, which occurs ihrough 
fiscal 2014. 

The following table proWdes informalion al April 25, 2010 about our financial instruments that are 
sensitive lo changes in Interest rales. The table presents principal cash flows and relaled weighled 
average interest rates by expecied maturity dates. 

Interest Rate Sensitivity 
Principal (Notional) Amount by Expected .Maturity 

Average Interest (Swap) Rate 

Fiscal *ear Fair Value 
(dollar^ in millions) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 Thereafter Tolal 4/25/2010 

Liabilities 
Long-term debt, itickidiiig current 

portion 
Fixed rate S 0.2 S 0.2 $ 0.2 $357.5 $ 0.2 $ 2.9 $361.2 $329.9 
Average inierest rate 7.01% 7.01% 7,01% 1.01% S.50% 8.50% 

Variable rate $ 8.6 $ 8.6 $30.1 $792,3 $ 0.2 $ — $839.8 SS23.0 
Average interest rate(l) 5.05% 5.05% 5.53% 6.47% 3.45% 0.00%; 

Interest Rate Derivative Financial 
Instruments Related Ui l>ebt 

Inierest rate swaps 
Pay fixed/receive variable $300.0 $50.(1 $ — $ 50.0 $ — $ — $4(10.0 
Average pay rate 4.52% 4.20% 4.00% 4.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
Average receive rate 0.50% i.84% 3.11%/ 3.64% 0.00% 0.00% 

(1) Represents the annual average LIBOR from the forward yield.curve at April 25, 2010 plus the weighled 
average margin above LIBOR on all consolidated variable rate debl. 
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As of April, 25, 2010, our senior secured credit facility coniained variable rate debl based on 
LIBOR wilh a floor of 2%, which is above the current market LIBOR rates wc receive under our 
interest rale swap agreemeni. In addition, we have purt;hased an interest rale cap al 3% for a notional 
amount of $20 million lo further hedge our interest rate exposure. The following table depicts the 
estimated impaci on our annual inieresi expense for the relative changes in interest rate based upon 
current debt levels: 

Increase lo Incn'asc/(decrease) 
variable rale (in millions) 

1% 
2% 
3% 
4% 
5% 

S(4.0) 
(5.6) 
(1.2) 
2.9 
7.1 
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ITE.M 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 

TTie following consolidated financial statements are included in this report: 

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounling Firm on Internal Conlrol Over Financial 
Reporting 

Rcfjorl of Independent Registered Public Accounling Firm on Consolidated Financial Statements 

Consolidaled Balance Sheets—April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 

Fiscal Years Ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 
Consolidated Statements of Operations 
Consolidaled Statements of Stockholders' Equiiy 
Consolidaled Statements of Cash Flows 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts—Fiscal Years Ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 
2009 and April, 27, 2008 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

Tlie Board of Directors and Stockholders 
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 

We have audited Isle of Capri Casino, Inc.'s internal conlrol over financial reporting as of 
April 25, 2010, based on criteria eslabiished in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizalions of the Treadway Commission (ihe COSO criteria). Isle of 
Capri Casino, inc.'s managemeni is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial 
reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal conlrol over financial reporting 
included in the accompanying Management's Report on Iniernal Conlrol Over Financial Reporting. 
Our responsibility is to e.vpress an opinion on the company's iniernal control over financial reporting 
based on our audit 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversighl Board (Unlled States). Those slandards require that we plan arid perform the audit to obiain 
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was mainiained 
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of ihlerhal conlrol over 
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, tcsfingand evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of Internal control based on ihe assessed risk, and performing such olher 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. Wc believe that our audit provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's Internal control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial slatemenls for 
exiernal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounling principles. A company's internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain lo the 
maintenance of records thai, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assels ofthe company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that iransaclions are 
recorded as necessar>' to permii preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures ofthe company are being made only 
in accordance with authorizations o( managemeni and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevenlion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or 
disposilion of the company's assels that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal conlrol over financial reporting may nol prevent or 
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subjecl 
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in condititms, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, Isie ofCapri Casinos, Inc. maintained, in all maierial respecls, effective internal 
conlrol over financial reporting as of April 25, 2010, based on the COSO criteria. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the slandards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United Siatcs), Ihe consolidated balance sheets of Isle ofCapri Casinos, Inc. as of 
April 25, 2010, and April 26, 2009, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholder's 
equity, and cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 2009, and April 27, 2008, and 
our reporl dated June 8, 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

hi Ernst & Young LLP 
Saint Louis, Missouri 

June 8, 2010 
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

TTie Board of Directors and Stockholders 
lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 

We have audited Ihc accompanying consolidaled balance sheets of Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. (the 
Company) as of April 25, 2010, and April 26, 2009, and the related con.solidated statements of 
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, April 26, 
2009, and April 27, 2008. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule lisied In the Index 
at Ilem 15(a). These financial statements are ihc res|X)nsibilily ofthe Company's managemeni. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits. 

We conducled our audits in accordance with the slandards oflhe Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United Slates). T'hose slandards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting ihe amounls and disclosures in ihe 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounfing principles used and significani 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe ihal our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all maierial respects, 
the consolidaled financial position of isle of Capri'.Casinos, Inc. at April 25, 2010, and April 26, 2009, 
and the consolidaled results of its operations and its cash flows for ihe years ended Aprii 25, 2010, 
April 26, 2009, and April 27, 2008, In conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
Also, in our opinion, the relaled financial stalemenl schedule, when considered In relation to the basic 
consolidaled financial slalements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respecls, the 
informalion set forth therein. 

Wc also have audiled, in accordance wilh the slandards of the Public Company Accounting 
Oversight Board (United Slates), Isie ofCapri Casinos, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporfing 
as of April 25, 2010, based on Ihe criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework Issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizalions of the Treadway Commission, and our report dale 
June 8, 2010, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon. 

hi Ernst & Young LLP 
Saint Louis, Missouri 

June S, 2010 
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ISLE O F CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

C 0 N S 0 L I D . 4 T E D BALANCE S H E E T S 

(In thousands , except sha re and per sha re amoun t s ) 

April 25. April 26, 
2010 2009 

ASSETS 
Curreni assets: 

Cash iind c-ash equivalents S 68,(169 S 96,654 
Marketable securities 22,926 17,548 
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $1,955 and 55,106, 

respectively , 8,879 11,935 
Income laxes receivable 8.109 7,744 
Deferred income taxes 16,826 16,295 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 25,1195 23,234 
As,sels helti for sale — 4,183 

Total airrent assels 149,904 177,593 
Property and equipment, net 1,098,942 1,177,540 
Other assets: 

Goodwill 313,136 313,136 
Other inlangible assets, net 79,675 S3,588 
Deferred financing costs, net 10,354 9.314 
Rejilricted cash 2,774 2,774 
Prepaid deposits and other 2(1,055 18.717 

Total assets 51,674.840 $1,782,662 

LIABILITIES AiNI) STOCKHOLDERS* EQUITY 
Current liabilities: 

Curreni maUiriltes of long-term debt 5 8,754 $ 9,688 
Accounts payable 24.072 15,079 

Accrued liabilities: 
Payroll and related ^5,863 47.402 
Property and other ta.xcs 20,253 31,563 
Interest 14,779 9,280 
Progressive jackpots and slot club awards 14,144 13,892 
Other 29,290 39,201 
I-iabililies related to assets held for sale — 1,888 

Total current liabilities 157,155 167,993 
Long-term debt, less current maturities 1,192,135 1,291,384 
Deferred income taxes 29,193 24,970 
Other accrued liabilities 38,972 52.575 
Other long-term liabilities 17,166 17,314 
Stockholders' equity: 

Preferred sujek, 5,01 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; none issued — — 
Common stock, S.Ol par value; 45,000,000 shares aulhorized; shares issued; 

36,771,730 at April 25. 2010 and 36,111,089 at April 26. 2009 367 361 
Cla.ss B common stock, S.Ol par value; 3,(XK),0(X) shares authorized: none issued — — 
Additional paid-in capital 201,464 193,827 
Retained earnings 98,555 101.828 
.A.ccumulaied oiher comprehensive income (loss) (8,060) (15,191) 

292,326 280,825 

Treasury slock. 4,326,242 shares at April 25, 2010 and 4.340.436 shares at April 26, 2009. (52,107) (52.399) 

Total stockholders' equity 240,219 228,426 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity 51,674,840 Sl,782,662 

See accompanying noles to consolidated financial statements. 

47 



ISLE OF CAPRL CASINOS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(In thousands, except share and per share amoimts) 

Fiscal Veiir Ended 

Revenues: 
Casino 
Rooms 
Pari-mutuel, food, beverage and other 
Huriicanc and other insurance recoveries 

Gross revenues 
Less promotional allowances 

Net revenuas 
Operating expenses: 

Casino 
Gaming la-xes 
Rooms ; 
Pari-rauluel, food, beverage and other 
Marine and facilities 
Marketing and adminisirative •. . . 
Corporate and development 
Expense recoveries and other charge.s, net 
Hurricane and other insurance recoveries 
Prcopening 
Depreciation and amortization 

Total operating e.\"pense.s 

Operaiing income 
Interest expense 
Interest income 
Gain (loss) on early e,xlingulshmcni of debt 
Other expense 

Income (loss) from continuing openilioas before income taxes and including 
noncontrolling interest 
bicomc tax benefit (provision) 

Income (loss) from continuing operations including noncontrolling interest (1.541) 
Loss from discontinued operalions including gain (!os.s") on sale, net of income tax 

benefit of $566. S9,8S7 and $43,902 for the fi.scai years ended 2010, 2009 and 
2008. respectively " (1-732) 

Net income (lo.ss) including noncontrolling inierest (3.273) 
Net income atiribuiable lo noncontrolling interest — 

Net income (los,s) ailributiible to common stockholders $ (3,273) 

Harnings (loss) pei common share attributable to common .stockholders—basic: 
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.05) 
Loss from discontinued operatioas including gain on sale, net of income taxes . (0.05) 

Net income (los.s) attributable common stockholders $ (O.IO) 

Earnings (loss) per common share attributable lo common stockholder.s—diluted 
Income (!os.s) from continuing operations $ (0,05) 
IJJSS from disconlinued operations including gain on sale, net of income laxes . (0.05) 

Net income (lo.ss) attributable common stockholders $ (0.10) 

Weighted average ba.sic shares 32,245,769 
Weighled avenige diluted shares 32,245,769 

April 25. 
2010 

% 1,013.386 
43.007 

134.994 

— 
1,191..̂ S7 
(19U5 I ) 

999.S36 

153,838 
262,241 

10.S45 
44.760 
61i07 

253.097 
46.750 
(6.762) 

— 
— 

109.504 

935.7S0 

6-1,056 
(75.434) 

1.833 

— 
(370) 

(9.915) 
8.374 

Apri l 26, 
2009 

$ 1.055.6W 
46,380 

138,632 
62.932 

1J03.63S 
(195.603) 

1.108.035 

151.610 
269,928 

12J06 
51,462 
64.368 

256.210 
41.331 
36.125 

(32.277) 

— 
122,440 

973J03 

1.34J32 
(92,065) 

2.112 
57.693 

102.272 
(41.0.39) 

April 27. 
2008 

$ 1,092.293 
49.498 

150.144 
348 

1.292.283 
(200.900) 

1.091.3S3 

151.090 
2,S5.370 

12.494 
57.030 
65.469 

270.087 
47.334 
6.526 

(1.757) 
3.654 

128.935 

1.026.232 

6.5.151 
(106.826) 

3.261 
(15.274) 

— 

(53.688) 
20.918 

61.233 

(17.658) 

(32.770) 

(59.236) 

43J75 

S 43Ji75 

$ 1.95 
(0.56) 

$ 1.39 

$ 1.95 
(0.56) 

$ 1.39 

31.372.670 
31,.179.016 

S 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 
31 
31 

(92.006) 
(4.868) 

(96,874) 

(i-24) 
(1-92) 

(3.16) 

(1-24) 
(1.92) 

(3.16) 

:).699.457 
1.699.457 

Sec accompanying noles to consolidaled financial staiemenis. 
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ISLE O F CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

C O N S O L I D A T E D STATEMENTS O F S T O C K H O L D E R S * EQUITY' 

(In thousands , except .share aniounts) 

Aceum. 
Other 

Shares of Adtlllional. - Com pre lien sive Tolal 
Common Common Paid-in- Ki'lained' 'income Trensur}' Stockholders' 

Sluck Slock C.npiiiil F^rnlngs- (Loss) Stock Kqoily 

$(52,142) 

— 

— 

— 

414 
(1.301) 

(53.029) 

— 

— 

$281,822 
(96.874) 

(S.555) 

(404) 

(105.833) 

5.747 

f l J O l ) 
265 

7.312 

188.012 
43.575 

(6.255) 

(3J35) 

Balance, April 29. 2007 34.682.534 1347 $175,132 $155,127 S 3.358 
Nel loss — — — (96.874) — 
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap 

conlracts net of income tax benefit of 
$5.159 — — — — (8.555) 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustments — — — — (404) 

Comprehensive loss 
Exercise of slock oplions. including 

income ta.x benefit of $977 546.472 6 5,741 — — 
Is-suance of deferred bonus shaies from 

lrea.sury slock — — (414) — — 
Purcha.se of trca.sury .slock — — — — — 
Other — — 265 — — 
Stock compensation expense — — 7,312 — - — 

Balance. April 27. 2008 35.229.006 353 188.036 58.253 ~(5.601) 
Net income — — — 43.575 — 
Unrealized loss on interest rate .swap 

contracts net of income lax benefit of 
$3.720 — — — — (6.255) 

Foreign currency translation 
adjustments — — — — (3,335) 

Comprehensive income 
Exercise of slock options 36.414 — 110 — — 
Issuance of deferred bonus shares from 

treasury .slock — — (630) — — 
Other 6M — (806) — — 
Is.suance of restricted stock, net of 

forfeiiures 845.005 8 (8) — — 
Sl(x:k compensation expense — — 7.115 — — 

Balance. April 26. 2009 36.111.(»89 361 193.827 10I.82S 
Net loss — — — (3.273) 
Unrealized gain on iniercst rate swup 

conlracls net of income lax provision 
of $2.683 — — — — 

Deferred hedge adjustment net of 
income tax provision of $1.463 — — — — 

Foreign currency translalion 
adjustmeni.s — — — — 

Comprehensive income 
Exerci.se of .stock oplions 21,602 — 204 — 
Issuance of deferred bonas shares from 

treasury stock — — (292) — 
Olher .'. 664 — 103 — 
Issuance of restricted stock, nel of 

forfeitures 638.375 6 (6) — 
Stock compensalion expense — — 7,628 — 

Balance. April 25. 2010 36.771.730 $367 $201,464 $ 98.5.55 S (8.060) $(52,107) $ 240.219 

630 

292 

33.985 
110 

(806) 

7.125 

(1.5.191) 

4.456 

2.449 

226 

(52J99) 

— 

— 

^ 

228.426 
(3.273) 

4,456 

2.449 

226 

3.858 
204 

03 

7.628 

Sec accompanying noles to consolidaled financial slalements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRL CASINOS, INC. 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In Ihousands) 

fiscal Vear Ended 

April 25, April 26. April 27. 
2010 2009 2008 

Operating activities: 
Nci income (loss) S (3.273) S 43,575 S (96,874) 
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) lo nci cash provided by operaiing 

activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 109,504 127,222 1.36,127 
Amortization of deferred financing costs 2,834 2,470 2,700 
(Gain) loss on early extinguishment of debt — (57,693) 15,274 
Properly insurance recoveries — (32,179) — 
Expense recoveries and other charges, net (6,762) 36,525 85,184 
Deferred income taxe.s (455) 32,751 (35,194) 
Stock compensation expense 7,633 7,125 7,312 
Deferred compensation expense 103 175 265 
Loss on derivative instrumenls 370 —- 550 
Loss (gain) on disposal of assets 722 12,161 (90) 
Noncontrolling interest — — 4,868 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
Sales (purchases) of trading securities (5,378) 985 (1,364) 
Accounts receivable 3,274 1,548 10.276 
Income taxes receivable (365) 20,919 (32,562) 
Insurance receivable 2,204 5,486 48,393 
Prepaid expenses and other assets -,5^-6 8,551 (1.098) 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (8,575) (19,011) (1(1,410) 

Net cash provided by operating acliviiies -. 106.382 190,610 133,357 

Investing aclivities: 
Purchase of property and equipment (27,690) (58,579) (190.459) 
Pfopert>' insurance recoveries — 32,179 — 
Paytncn'ls towards gaming license (4,000) (4.000) (4,000) 
Net cash paid for acquisitions — — (107,895) 
Proceeds from sales of assets held for sale 653 954 — 
Reslricied fash 47 1.579 65 
Other — - - (157) 

Net cash used in investing activities (30,990) (27.867) (302,446) 

Financing activities: 
Principal repaymenis on long-ierm debt (8,730) (127.457) (697.108) 
Net (repayments) borrowings on line of crcdit (91.558) (18,484) (99,355) 
Termination payment relating to other long-term liabilities — (11,352) — 
Proceeds from long-term debt borrowings — — 875,000 
Payment of deferred financing cosis (3,874) — (8,881) 
Purchase of ircasim- stock — — (1,301) 
Distribution lo noncontrolling interest — — (1,588) 
Proceeds from exercise of slock options 204 110 • 5,747 

Nel cash (used by) provided by financing activities (103,958) (157,183) 72,514 

Effect of foreign currency* exchange rates on cash (19) (696) 251 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (28,585) 4,864 (96,324) 
Cash and cash et|iiivalenis ai beginning of year 96,6.54 91,790 188,114 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 68,069 $ 96,654 S 91,790 

See accompanying noles lo consolidaled financial statements. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(amounts in thtmsands, except share and per .share amounts) 

1. Organiziitiun 

Organization—Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., a Delaware corporation, was incorporated in February 
1990. Excepi where otherwise noied, the words 'Sve," ''us," ''our" and similar terms, as well as 
"Company," refer to lsle ofCapri Casinos, Ine. and all of its .subsidiaries. We are a leading developer, 
owner and operator of branded gaming facilities and relaled lodging and enleriainmeni faeiliiies in 
markels throughout the United Slates. Our wholly owned subsidiaries own and operate thirteen casino 
gaming facilities in the Unlled Stales located In Black Hawk, Colorado; Lake Charles, Louisiana: Lula, 
Biloxi and Nalchez, Mississippi; Kansas City, Caruthensville and Boonville, Missouri; Bettendorf, 
Davenport, Waterloo and Marquette, Iowa; and Pompano Beach, Florida. Effective January 27, 2008, 
we own 100% of our operations in Black Hawk, Colorado following the acquisilion of our minority 
partner's 43% interest in those operalions. Our inlernalional gaming iniereslsincluded wholly owned 
casinos in Freeport, Grand Bahamas, Coventry, Dudley and Wolverhampton, England, which are now 
classified as disconlinued operations. 

2. Summar}' of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Presentation—The consolidated financial slalements include the accounts of the Company 
and its subsidiaries. All significani intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. We 
view each property as an operating segment and all such tiperating segments have been aggregated into 
one reporting segment. 

Disconlinued operations include our formerly wholly owned casinos; In Dudley and 
Wolverhampton, England sold in November 2009; In Freeport; Grand Bahamas exiled in November 
2009: and in Coventry, England sold in Aprir2009. 

Fiscal Year-End~OuT fiscal year ends on the last Sunday In April. Periodically, this system 
necessitates a 53-week year. Fiscal years 2010, 2009 .and 2008 are all 52-week years, which commenced 
on April 27, 2009, Apri'l 28, 2008, and April 30, 2007, respectively. 

Reclassifications—Ceriain reclassifications of prior year presentations have been made lo conform 
lo fiscal 2010 preserilaiion. 

Use of Estimates—The preparation of financial statements in conlormily with accounling principles 
generally accepted in the United Slates requires management to make esiimates and assumptions that 
affect the amoimis reported in the nnancial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Eipiivalents—We consider all highly liquid invesiments purchased with an original 
maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents. Cash also Includes the minimum operating cash 
balances required by state regulatory bodies, which lotaled $20,846 and $22,507 ai Apiil 25, 2010 and 
April 26, 2009, respectively. 

Markelable Securities—Marketable securities consist primarily of trading securities primarily held by 
Capri Insurance Corporation, our captive insurance subsidiar)'. The trading seeurilies arc primarily debt 
and equiiy securities ihai are purchased with the Inlention to resell in the near term. 'Hie trading 
securities arc carried at fair value with changes in lair value recognized in curreni period income In the 
accompanying statements of operalions. 
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ISLE OF CAPRICASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCUL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thou.sands, except share and per shure amounts) 

2. Summar)' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

V/ii'c/iwne.v—Inventories are stated al the lower of weighled, average cosl or markel value. 

Property and Equipmeiu—Properly and equipment are slated at cosi or if acquired through 
acquisition, the value as determined under purchase accouiiling. Assets subjecl to impairment write 
downs are recorded at the lower of net book value or fair value' We capitalize the cost of purchases of 
property and equipmenl and capitalize the cost of improvements to property and equipment that 
increases the value or extends the useful lives of the assels. Costs of normal repairs and maintenance 
are charged to e.xpense as Incurred. 

Depreciation is computed using Ihe straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives 
of the assels: 

Ycar^ 

Slot inaehines, .software and computers 3 - 5 
Inirnilure, fixtures and equipmenl 5-10 
Leasehold improvements Lesser of life of lease or 

estimated useful life 
Buildings and Improvements 7 - 39.5 

Ceriain property currentlv leased ih Beltendorf, Iowa and property formerly leased in Coventrx', 
England, prior to the termination of such lease, are accounted for in accordance with Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC") Topic 840, Leases ("ASC 840"). 

Capitalized Interest—The interest cost associaied wilh major development and construction projecis 
is capilalized and included in the cost of the project. When no debl is incurred specifically for a 
projeci, interest is capitalized on amounls expended on the projeci using the weighted-average cost of 
our outsianding borrowings. Capilalization of inieresi ceases when ihe projeci is subsianlially complete 
or development aclivity is suspended for more than a brief period. Capitalized interest was $75, $1,018, 
and $3,335 for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, Including capilalized inieresi relating to 
our disconlinued operations of $943 for fiscal 2008. 

Operating Leases—We recognize rent expense for each lease on the straight line basis, aggregating 
all future minimum renl payments Including any predetermined fixed escalations oflhe minimum 
rentals. Our liabilities include the aggregate difference between rent expense recorded on the 
straight-line basis and amounts paid under Ihc leases. 

Reslricied Cash—We classify cash that is eilher slalulorily or eonlraciually restricted as to its 
withdrawal or usage as a long term assel due to the duration of the underlying restriction. Restricted 
cash primarily Includes amounts relaled to state lax bonds and olher gaming bonds, and amounts held 
in escrow related to leases. 

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets—Goodwill represents the excess of the cost over the net 
identifiable tangible and inlangible assels of acquired businesses and is staled at cost, net of 
impairments, if any. Other inlangible assets include values attributable to acquired gaming licenses, 
customer lists, and trademarks. ASC Topic 350, Intangibles—Goodwill and Other ("ASC 350") requires 
these assets be reviewed for impairmenl al least annually or on an interim basis if indicators of 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousand.s, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Summar}' of Signincant Accounting Policies (Canlinucd) 

impairmenl exist. We perform our annual impairmenl test during our fourth quarter. Goodwill for 
relevant reporting unils Is tested for impairmenl using a/discouiited cash How analysis based on 
forecasted fuiure results discounled using our weighted average cost of capital and by using a market 
approach based upon valuation multiples for similar companies. For inlangible assets wilh indefinite 
lives not subject to amortizalion, we review, at leastranniially, the conlinued use of an indefiniie useful 
life. If these intangible assels are detemiined to have a finite useful life, Ihey are amortized over their 
estimated remaining useful lives. 

Long-Lived Assets—We periodically evaluate the carrying value of long-lived assets to be held and 
used in accordance wilh ASC 'Ibpic 360, Properly, Plant and.Equipmenl ("ASC 360") which requires 
impairment losses to be recorded on long-lived asstils used in operalions when indicators of impairment 
are presenl and the undiscounled cash fiows estimated to be,generated by those assets are less than the 
assets' carrying amounls. In that evenl, a loss is recognized based on the amount by which the carrying 
amounl exceeds the fair market value of the long-lived assets. 

Deferred Financing Co.sts—The costs of issuing long-lerm debl are capilalized and amortized using 
ihe effective inierest method over the term of Ihe related debl. 

Self-Insurance—We are self-funded up lo a maximum amounl per claim for employee-relaled 
health care benefits, workers' compensation and.general liabilities. Claims in excess of this maximum 
are fully insured ihrough a stop-loss insurance policy. Wc accrue for workers' compensation and general 
liabilities on a discounled basis based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but nol reported. 
'I'he eslimales have been discounled al 2.0% and 4.1% at April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009, 
respectively. We ufilize independent consultants to assist in the determination of estimated liabiliues. 
As of April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009, our employee-related health care benefits program and 
discounled workers' compensation and general liabilities for unpaid and incurred bul nol reported 
claims are $32,739 and $29,001, respectively and are included in Accrued liabilities—payroll and related 
for health care benefits and workers' compensation liabilities and in Accrued liabilities—oiher for 
general liabiiily in the accompanying consolidated balance sheeis. While the total cost of claims 
incurred depends on fuiure developmenls, in management's opinion, recorded reserves are adequate to 
cover future claims payments. 

Derivative Instmme/us and Hedging Activities—ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging 
("ASC 815") requires we recognize all of our derivative instrumenls as either assets or liabllilies In the 
consolidaled balance sheet at fair value and disclose certain qualitative and quanlitativc information. 
We ulillze derivative financial instruments to manage inieresi rate risk associaied wiih a portion of our 
variable rate borrowings. Derivative financial Instruments arc intended to reduce our exposure to 
interest rate volatility. We account for changes in the fair value of a derivative instrument depending on 
the intended use ofthe derivative and the resulting designation, which is established at the inccplion of 
a derivative. ASC 815 requires thai a company formally document, at the incepiion of a hedge, the 
hedging relationship and the enlily's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, 
including Identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged Item or transaction, Ihe nature of the 
risk being hedged, the method used to assess effectiveness and the method thai will be used to measure 
hedge Ineffectiveness of derivative instruments that receive hedge accounting treatment. Pbr derivative 
instruments designated as cash flow hedges, changes in fair value, to the extent the hedge Is effective. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thou^and.s, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Summary'of Signincant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

are recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized in earnings and 
ineffective hedges are recognized as other Income or loss below operating Income. Hedge effectiveness 
is assessed quarterly. 

Revetwe Recognition—In accordance with gaming industry practice, we recognize casino revenues 
as the net win from gaming aclivities. Casino revenues are net of accruals for anticipated payouts of 
progressive slot jackpots and ceriain table games wherein incremental jackpot, amounts owed are 
accrued for games in which certain wagers add to the jackpot tolal. Revenues from rooms, food, 
beverage, entertainment and the gift shop are recognized al the time the related service or sale is 
performed or realized. 

Promotiotud Allowances—The retail value of rooms, food and beverage and other services 
furnished to guests without charge is included In gross revenues and then deducted as promotional 
allowances to arri\'e at net revenues Included in the accompanying consolidated statemenl of 
operalions. We also record the redemption of coupons and points for cash as a promotional allowance. 
The estimated cosi of providing such eomplimcnlaiy services from continuing operations arc included 
in casino expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operalions are as follows: 

FLscal Year Ended 
April,25. April 26. April 27, 

20IO 2009 2008 

Rooms $ 9,533 $ 8,830 $10,366 
Food and beverage 57,796 57,251 58,571 
Olher 833 534 585 

Ibtal cost of complimentary services $68,162 $66,615 S69,,522 

Players Club Awards—^We provide patrons with rewards based on Ihc dollar amounl of play on 
casino games. A liability has been eslabiished based on an estimate of the value of these outsianding 
rewards, utilizing the age and prior histor)' of redcinptions. 

Advertising—Advertising costs are expensed the lirsi time the related advertisemcnl appears. Total 
advertising costs, including direct mail costs, from conlinuing operalions were $32,981, $27,496, and 
$29,143 In fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respeclivcly. 

Development Costs—-We pursue development opportunities for new gaming facilities In an ongoing 
effort to expand our business. In accordance wiih ASC Topic 720, Other Expenses ("ASC 720), costs 
relaled to projects in the developmeni stage are recorded as a development expense, except for those 
costs capitalized in accordance with the guidance of ASC 720. Capitalized development costs are 
expensed when the developmeni is deemed less than probable. 'Ibtal developmeni costs e.xpensed from 
conlinuing operalions were recorded in the consolidated statements of operations In corporate and 
development expenses. 

Pre-Opening Co.sts—Wc expen.se prc-opening costs as incurred. Prc-opening costs Include payroll, 
outside services, advertising, insurance, ulilities, travel and various other expenses related to new 
operations. All such costs are recorded in the consolitlated statements of operalions in pre-tipening. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLVL STATE.MENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thou.sands, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Summarj' of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Pre-opening expenses from continuing operations in our consolidaled financial slalements were 
incurred in cf)nneclion with the opening of Walerioo in fiscal 2008. 

Income Taxes—We account for income taxes in accordance ASC Topic 740, Income Taxes 
('ASC 740"). ASC 740 requires the recognition of deferred income .tax assels, net of valuaiion 
allowances related to net operating loss carry forwards and certain lemporary. differences. Recognizable 
fuiure tax benefits are subject to a valuation re5er\'e, unlcss'such lax benefits are determined lo be 
more likely than not realizable. We recognize accrued interest and penalties related lo unrecognized tax 
benefits in income tax expense. 

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share—In accordance wilh the. guidance of ASC 260, Earnings Per 
Share ("ASC 260"), basic earnings (loss) per share ('"EPS") is computed by'divlding net Income (loss) 
applicable to common slock by the weighted average.common shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS reflects the addilional dilution for all potentially dilutive securities such as stock options. 
Any oplions with an exercise price In excess of the average market price.of our common stock during 
the periods presented are not considered when calculaling'the dilutive effect of slock options for 
diluted earnings per share calculations. 

Stock Compensalion—OUT stock compensation is accounted for in accordance with ASC Topic 718, 
Compensation—Stock Compensalion ('ASC 718"): Slock compensalion cost is measured at the grant 
date, based on the esrimaied fair value of the award and Is recognized as expense on a straighl-line 
basis over the requislie service period for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award 
was, in-subsiancc, multiple awards. 

Foreign Cunency Translation—Wc account for currency translation in accordance with ASC 
Topic 830, Foreign Currency Matters ('ASC 830"). Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the e.xchange rate in effect at each balance sheet date. 
Statement of operations accounts are translated monthly at the average rate of exchange prevailing 
during the period. Translalion adjustments !"esulting frpm this process are included in stockholders' 
equity as accumulaied other comprehensive (loss) income. The cumulative loss from foreign currency 
translation included In other comprehensive loss is ($133) and ($359) as of April 25, 2010 and April 26, 
2009, respectively. Losses from foreign currency transactions are included in Income (loss) from 
disconlinued operations and were $0, ($2) and ($356) in fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts—We reserve for receivables that may not be collected. 
Methodologies for eslimaiing the allowance for doubtful accounts range from specific reserves to 
various perccnlages applied to aged receivables. Historical collection rates are considered, as are 
customer relalionships, In determining specific reserves. 

Fair Value Measurements—Wc follow the guidance of ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements 
and Disclosures ('ASC 820") for our financial assels and liabilities including marketable securities and 
derivative instruments. ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring the fair value of financial assels 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Summar)' of SigniHcant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

and liabllilies. A descriplion of the valuation methodologies used to measure fair value, key Inputs, and 
significani assumptions follows: 

Marketable .securities—'The estimated fair values of our markelable securities are based upon 
quoted prices available in active markels and represenl the amounls we would expect to receive if 
we sold these marketable securities. 

Derivative instmtnents~The estimated fair value of our derivative instruments Is based on 
market prices obtained from dealer quotes, which arc based on interest yield curves and such 
quotes repre.senl the estimated amounts \vc would receive or pay to terminate the conlracts. 

Subsequent Events—'The Company evaluated all subsequent evenls through the date the 
consolidaled financial statements were Issued; (See Note 21). 

Recently Issued Accounting Standards—New Pronouncements—In June 2009, the Financial 
Accounting Slandards Board ("FASB") issued Stalemenl of Financial Accounling Standard ("SPAS") 
No. 168, "The FASB Accounting Slandards Codification"^' and the Hierarchy of Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles—a replacement of FASB Statement No. 162", which identifies the sources of 
accounling principles and the framework for selecting the principles.used In the preparation of financial 
slatemenls of nongovernmenlal entitles that are preseiilcd in conformity wiih GAAP In the United 
States (the GAAP hierarchy). SFAS 168 established the FASB'Accounting Standards Codification^''' as 
the source of authoritative accounting principles recognized by the FASB to be applied by 
nongovernmenlal eniiues in the preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAJ*. 
SFAS 168 is effectlve-for most financial slatemenls issued for interim and annual periods ending after 
September 15, 2009. "The adoption of this guidance has changed how we reference various elements of 
GAAP when preparing our financial statement disclosures, but did not have an Impaci on our 
consolidated financial statements. 

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, "Ninicontrolllng Interests In Consolidated 
Financial SlaiemenLs—Ah Amendmeni of ARB No. 5 1 " (''Sl-AS 160") which was codified primarily in 
ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations ("ASC 805"). SFAS 160 changes the accounling for 
noncontrolling (minority) interests in consolidaled financial statements, requires noncontrolling interests 
lo be reported as pan of equity and changes the income statement presentation of income or losses 
attributable to the noncontrolling interests. We adopted SFAS 160 as of April 27, 2009, as required, 
l l i e adoption of SPAS 160 did not have a maierial impaci on our consolidaled financial statements. 

3. Discontinued Operalions 

Discontinued operations include our former casinos: Dudley and Wolverhampton, England ('"'Blue 
Chip") sold in November 2009, Freeport, Grand Bahamas exited In November 2009; and Coventry, 
England sold In April 2009, 
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3. Discontinued Operations (Continued) 

TTie results of our discontinued operations are summarized as follows: 

Discontinued Opemluns 
Fiscal Year Ended 

April 25. April 26, April 27, 
2010 2009 2008 

Net revenues $ 7,406 $ 27,628 $ 33,207 
Valuation charges — (1,400) (78.658) 
Pretax (loss) gain on sale of discontinued operations (617) (12,016) — 
Pretax (loss) income from disconlinued operations. . (2,298) (27,545) (103,138) 
Income lax benefil (provision) from discontinued 

operations 566 9,887 43,902 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (1,732) (17,658) (59,236) 

During fiscal 2010, wc completed the sale of our Blue Chip casino properlies under a plan of 
administration and have no conlinuing Involvement In its operation. 'The assels and liabilities held for 
sale in our April 26, 2009 balance sheel were sold as^a part of this administrative process. 'The sale of 
our Blue Chip assets resulted in a pretax charge of $617 recorded In fiscal 2010. 'The administration 
process Is expected to be completed during fiscal 2011. 

During fiscal 2009, we recorded a pretax charge of $1,400 to reduce our Blue Chip assets held for 
sale to their estimated fair value less the cost to sell and we completed the sale of our assets and 
terminated our lease In the Arena Coventry Convention Center rclaling to our casino operations in 
Covenlry, England. Our lease lerminailon costs and other expenses, nel of cash proceeds from our 
assets sales, resulled in a pretax charge of $12,016 recorded.in fiscal 2009. 

During fiscal 2008, we recorded impairment charges al our United Kingdom ("UK") properties 
based upon a review of expected future operating trends and the curreni fair value of our long-lived 
assets. 'Hie current fair values used in our determination of the impairment charge were based upon a 
third party appraisal, a review of historical costs and other rclevanl informalion. 

Nel inierest income (expense) of $8, ($1,972). and ($1,907) for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, 
respeclivcly, has been allocated to discontinued operations. Intercsi e.vpense allocated to our former 
inlernalional operations was based upon long lerm debt and other long-terra obligations specific to 
such operalions as these eniilies are not guarantors linder our senior secured credii faciliiy. 

4. Acquisition.s 

Acquisition of Minority Interest in Black Hawk, Colorado Operalions—During January 2009, we 
finalized our purchase accounting for our January 2008 acquisilion of the 43% minority membership 
inieresi in our Black Hawk, Colorado subsidiaries. During January 2008, a preliminary allocation of the 
$64,800 purchase price, including iransaction costs and afier consideration of minority interest of 
$29,819, was made by us based upon the estimated fair value of the purchased assets and assumed 
liabilities. This preliminary purchase price allocation resulted in values being assigned of $14,000 to 
property and equipmenl, $10,600 to other inlangible assels and $10,381 lo goodwill. After completion 
of third party valuations of the assels acquired, the final purchase price allocation included a $8,331 
reduction in the acquired historical cost basis in property and final allocation amounls of $20,855 for 
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4. Acquisitions (Continued) 

intangible assets, $411 for other liabilities and $22,868 In goodwill. The inlangible assels included 
$2,021 of trademarks and $4,257 related to our gaming licenses both with indefiniie lives, as well as 
$14,577 relating to customers lists with a 4 year life. Goodwill resulting from our acquisilion of this 
minority iniercst is deductible for tax purposes. We accounted for the purchase using ihe purchase 
method of accounting In accordance with ASC 805. 

5. Property and Equipment, Net 

Property and equipment, net consists of the following: 

April 25. 
2010 

Properly and equipment: 
Land and land improvements $ 159,442 
Leasehold improvements 335,456 
Buildings and improvements 646,811 
Riverboats and floating pavilions 144,470 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment .508,177 
Construction in progress 11,458 

'Total properly and equipment 1,805,814 
Less accumulated depreciafion and amorilzatlon (706,872) 

Properly and equipmenl, nel $1,098,942 

April 26. 
2009 

$ 159,574 
332,762 
649,020 
142,715 
516,523 

12,537 

1,813,131 
(635,591) 

51,177,540 

6. Intangible Assets and Goodwill 

Intangible assets consist of the following: 

April 25, 2010 April 26. 2009 
Cross Nel Gross Nel 

Carrying Accum uLiltd Canning Carrying AecumuhitL'd Carrjing 
Amount Amorti/iition Amount Amount Amorli/aiJon Amount 

Indefinite-lived assets 
Gaming licenses $66,126 $ — $66,126 $66,126 S — $66,126 
'Trademarks 7,149 — 7,149 7,149 — 7.149 

Intangible assets—subject to 
amortization 

Customer lists 15,384 (8,984) 6,400 15,384 (5,071) 10,313 

TlMal $88,659 $(8,984) $79,675 $8S;659 $(5,071) $83,588 

Our indefinite-lived Inlangible assels consist primarily of gaming licenses and trademarks for which 
it Is reasonably assured that we will continue to renew indefinitely. Our finite-lived assels consist of 
customer lists amortized over 3 lo 4 years. 'Hie weighted average remaining life of our other inlangible 
assets subject to amortization is approximately 1.7 years. 
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6. Intangible Assets and Goodwill (Continued) 

We recorded amortizalion expense of $3,913, $4,624, and $549 for our intangible assets subject to 
amortization relaled to our continuing operations for the fiscal years ended 2010, 2009, and 2008, 
respeclivcly. 

Future amorfizallon expense of our amortizable Intangible assets is as follows: 

2011 $3,666 
2012 2,734 

'Total $6,400 

A roll forward of goodwill Is as follows: 

April 25, April 26, 
2010 2009 

Balance, beginning of period $313,136 $.307,649 
Acquisilion of minoriiy inierest in Black Hawk, Colorado 

operations — 12,487 
Impairmenl — (7,000) 

Balance, end of period $31.3^36 $313,1.36 

During fi,seal 2009, we recorded a pretax impairment charge of $7,000 for goodwill related to our 
Black Hawk, Colorado property. 

7. Expen.se Recoveries and Other Charges, net 

We recorded pretax expense recoveries and other charges from continuing operations as follows: 

Fiscal 2010—We recorded an expense recovery of $6,762 representing the discounled value of a 
receivable for reimbursement of development costs expended in prior periods rclaling lo a terminated 
plan to develop a casino in Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. This receivable was recorded following a revised 
assessment of colteclabiilty. 

Fiscal 2009—An impairment charge of $18,269 was recorded at our Black Hawk, Colorado 
properly as a result of our annual impairment test required under ASC 350. The Black Hawk 
impairment charge included $7,000, $7,072 and $4,197 related to goodwill, trademarks and gaming 
licenses, respectively. Fair values were determined using methods as follows: discounted cash flow and 
multiples of earnings for goodwill, relief from royally method for trademarks; and the co.sl approach for 
the gaming license. The impairment was a result of decreased operating performance caused by a 
smoking ban which became effective In January, 2009 and declines in the economy resulting in lower 
inarket valuation multiples for gaming assets and higher discount rates. 

Following our decision not lo complete our construction plan as originally designed for our Biloxi 
property, we recorded a valuation charge of $11,856 to construction in progress-

Following our termination of an agreement for a potential development of a casino project in 
Portland Oregon, we recorded a $6,000 charge consisting of a non-cash write-off of $5,000 representing 
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7. Expense Recoveries and Other Charges, net (Continued) 

our rights under a land option and $1,000 termination fee. Under the terms of the agreement, we 
retain certain rights but no continuing obligations wilh regard lo this development project. 

Fi.scal 200S—We recorded valuation charges of $6,526 relaled lo the termination of the Company's 
plans to develop a new casino in west Harrison County, Mississippi and the cancellation of construction 
projects In Davenport, Iowa and Kansas City, Missouri. 

8. Long-Term Debt 

Long-lerm debl consists of the following: 

April 25, April 26. 
2010 2009 

Senior Secured Credii Facility: 
July 2007 Credii Facility: 

Revolving line of credit, expires July 26, 2012, Interest 
payable at least quarterly at either LIBOR and/or 
prime plus a margin $ 21,500 $ 112,000 

Variable rate term loans, mature November 25, 2013, 
principal and interest payments due quarterly at 
either LIBOR and/or prime plus a margin 817,256 82.5,651 

Senior Subordinated Notes: 
7% Senior Subordinaied Notes, Inierest payable 

semi-annually March 1 and September 1 357,275 357,275 
Olher 4,858 6,146 

1,200,889 1,301,072 
Less curreni maturities 8,754 9,688 

Long-lerm debt $1,192,1.35 $1,291,384 

Credit Facillt}', as amended—The Credit Facility as amended ("Credii Facility") consists of a 
$375,000 revolving line of credit and a $875,000 term loan. The Credit Facility is secured on a first 
priority basis by substantially all ofour assets and guaranteed by all ofour significant domestic 
subsidiaries. 

Our Credii Facility was amended on Fcbruarj' 17, 2010. 'The amendment, among other things, 
(1) modified the leverage ratio and interest coverage.ratio to provide for greater flexlblliiy through 
April 30, 2012, afler which dale ihe ratios return lo the original levels as outlined In the Credit Facility; 
(2) reduced the capaciiy oflhe revolving line of credii by $100,000 to $375,000; (3) increased the 
Interest rate of both the revolving line of credit and lerm loan portions lo LIBOR + 3.00% with a 
I..IBOR floor of 2.00%; and (4) allows us to issue senior unsecured notes, provided the proceeds are 
used to repay the term loan under the Credit Facility. As a result of the amendment, we incurred a 
charge of approximalcly $2,143 related to fees and the write-off of certain unamortized deferred 
financing costs, of which appro.ximately $309 was non-cash and recorded deferred financing costs of 
$.3,874. 
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8. I^ng-Term Debt (Continued) 

Our net line of credii availability al April 25, 2010 as limited by our maximum leverage covenant 
was approximately $109,000, after consideration of $20,449 in outstanding letters of credit. We have an 
annual commilmenl fee relaled to the unused porfion-of the Credit Facility of up to 0.75% which is 
included In Interest expense in the accompanying consolidaled statements of operalions. The weighted 
average effective interest rales ofthe Credii Facility for the fiscal years 2010 and 2009 were 4.83% and 
5.33%, respectively. 

'Hie Credit Facility Includes a numberof afiirmative and negative covenanls. Additionally, we musl 
comply with certain financial covenanls including maintenance of a leverage ratio and minimum iniercst 
coverage ratio. The Credii F"acility also restricts our ability ;io make ceriain Inveslmenls or distributions. 
We are in compliance with the covenants as of April 25; 2010. 

7% Senior Subordinated A'ofe.̂ —During.2004,. we issued $500,000 of 7% Senior Subordinaied Notes 
due 2014 (''7% Senior Subordinated Notes"). 'Hie 7%' .Senior Subordinaied Notes are guaranteed, on a 
joinl and several basis, by all ofour significant domcsUc subsidiaries and ceriain other subsidiaries as 
described In Note 18. All ofthe guarantor subsidiaries are wholly owned by uS- 'The 7% Senior 
Subordinated Notes are general unsecured obligations and rank junior to all of our senior 
indebtedness. 'Hie 7% Senior Subordinaied Noles are redeemable, in whole or in part, at our option at 
any time on or afler March 1, 2009, wiih call premiums as defined in the Indenture governing the 7% 
Senior Subordinated Noles. 

TTie indenture governing the 7% Senior Subordinated Notes limits, among other things, our ability 
and our restricted subsidiaries ability to borrow money, make restricted payments, use assels as security 
in other iransaclions, enter into transactions wilh affiliates, pay dividends, or repurchase stock. The 
indeniure also limits our ability to issue and sell capilal stock of subsidiaries, sell assets in excess of 
specified amounts or merge wjth or into other companies. 

Gain (I^.ss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt—During Februar)- 2009, we retired $142,725 of ihe 
7% Senior Subordinated Notes, ihrough a lender offer, for $82,773 from our available Cash and cash 
equivalenls. After expenses related lo the elimination of deferred finance costs and Iransaclions costs, 
we recognized a pretax gain of $57,892 during fiscal 2009. During March 2009, we repaid $35,000 of 
our term loans under our Credii Faelllly resulting in a loss on early extinguishment of debt of $199 due 
to the write-off of deferred financing cosi. 

During fiscal 2005, we recorded a lotal of $15,274 in losses associated with the redemption of 
$200,000 of 9% Senior Subordinated Notes refinanced by our Credit Facility and the replacement of 
our previous credii facility with the Credit P'acility and the eariy extinguishment of other debl 
instruments. 

61 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCUL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

8. Long-Term Debt (Continued) 

Future Principal Payments of I.xmg-tenn Debt—'The aggregate principal payments due on long-term 
debl as of April 25, 2010 over the nexl five years and thereafter,.are as follows: 

Fiscal Years Ending: 
2011 $ 8,754 
2012 8,768 
2013 30,288 
2014 1,149,755 
2015 439 
Thereafter 2,885 

Tolal $1,200.889 

y. Other Long-Term Obligations 

Quad Cities Waterfront Convention Center—We.entered into agrecmenls with the Cllv of 
Beltendorf, Iowa under which the Ciiy constructed a convention center which opened in January 2009, 
adjacent to our holel. We lea.se, manage, and provide financial and operaiing support for the 
conveniion center. 'The Company was deemed^ for accounting purposes only, lo be the owner of the 
conveniion cenler during the construction period. Upon eptiiplction of the convention center we were 
precluded from accounting for the transaction as a sale and leaseback due lo our conlinuing 
involvemenl. Therefore, we are accounling for the iraiisaction using the direct financing method. As of 
April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009, we have recorded In olher long-lerm obligations $17,166 and 
$17,314, respectively, related lo our liabiiily under ASC 840 related lo the convention cenler. Under 
the lerins ofour agreements for the convenfion center, we have guaranteed certain obligalions related 
lo $13,815 of notes Issued by the City of Bettendorf, Iowa for the conveniion center. 

TTic olher long term obligation will be reflected In our consolidaled balance sheels until 
completion of the lease term, at which ilmc the related fixed assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
will be removed from our consolidated financial statements and the net remaining obligation over the 
net carr\'ing value of the pLxed asset will be recognized as a gain (loss) on sale of the facility. 

Future minimum payments due under other long-term obligalions, Including interest, as of 
April 25, 2010 as follows: 

P̂ iscal Years Ending: 
2011 $ 1,100 
2012 1,100 
2013 1,100 
2014 1,267 
2015 1,600 
Thereafter 17,536 

Total minimum payments $23,703 
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10. Common Stock 

Earnings per Share of Common Stock—'The following table sets forth the compulation of basic and 
diluted earnings (loss) per share (in ihousands, except share and per share amounls): 

Fiscal I'rar Rndtd 

April 25. April 26. April 27. 
2010 2009 2008 

Numeralor: 
Income (loss) applicable lo common shares: 

Income (loss) from conlinuing operations attributable to 
common stockholders $ (1,541) $ 61,233 $ (37,638) 

Loss from discontinued operations (L732) (17,6.58) (59,236) 

Net income (loss) attributable to the comnion stockholders . . $ (3,273) $ 43,575 $ (96,874) 

Denominator: 
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share— 

weighted average shares -. 32,245,769 31,372,670 30,699,457 
Effect of dilutive securities 

Employee slock options — 6,346 — 

Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share— 
adjusied weighted average shares and assumed 
conversions 32,245,769 31,379,016 30,699,457 

Basic earnings (loss) per share attributable to common 
stockholders 

Income (loss) from continuing operalions $ (0.05) $ 1.95 $ (124) 
Loss from discontinued operations (0.05) (0.56) (1-92) 

Net income (loss) attributable tocommon stockholders $ (O.IO) $ 1.39 $ (3.16) 

Diluted earnings (loss) per share attributable to common 
stockholders 

Income (loss) from conlinuing operations $ (0.05) $ 1.95 $ (L24) 
Loss from discontinued operations (0.05) (0.56) (L92) 

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (0.10) $ 1.39 $ (3.16) 

Due to the loss from continuing operalions, siock options representing 116,511 shares, which are 
potentially dilutive, and 495,474 shares, which arc anti-dilulive, were excluded from the calculation of 
common shiircs for diluted earnings (loss) per share for fiscal 2010. Stock oplions reprcseniing 
1,520,040 and 3,872.513 shares, which were antidllutive, were excluded from the calculalion of common 
shares for diluted earnings (loss) per share for fiscal 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

Stock Based Compensation—Under our amended and restated Long Term Incentive Plan, we have 
Issued stock options and restricted slock. 

Stock Options—We have issued incentive slock oplions and nonqualified slock oplions which have 
a maximum term of 10 years and are, gcneraily, exercisable in yearly installments of 20% commencing 
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10. Common Stock (Continued) 

one year afler the date of grant. During fiscal 2010, our estimale of forfeiiures increased lo 12%. 'The 
impact of these changes in estimated forfeiiures decreased expense by $737 and was recorded as a 
cumulative adjustment in the consolidated staiemenlsof operafions for fiscal 2010. 

The fair value of each opiion grant is estimated on the dale of the grant using the Black-Scholes-
Mcrton option-pricing model with the range of assumptions disclosed ih ihe following table: 

Fiscal Year Ended 

April 25, April 26, April 27. 
2010 2009 2008 

Weighted average expected volalility 67.86% 42.29% 43.02% 
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
Weighled average expected term (in years) 7 6.79 6.79 
Weighted average risk-free Interest rate 3.07% 3.50% 3.94% 
Weighted average fair value of oplions granted $ 7.53 $ 2.73 $ 7.72 

Weighled average volatility Is calculated using the historical volatility ofour stock price over a 
range of dates equal lo the expected term of a grant's oplions. T'he weighled average expected term is 
calculated using hisiorical data that is rcprcsentalive of the opiion for which the fair value is to be 
determined. TTic expected term represents the period of iifne that oplions granted are expected lo be 
oulstanding. The weighted average risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve In effect at 
the time of the grant for the approximate period of lime equivalent to the grant's expecied term. 

Tender Offer—On October 7, 2008, we completed a lender olTer whereby certain employees and 
directors exchanged 2,067,201 of then outstanding slock options for 293,760 shares of restricted 
common stock and the paymeni of $155 in ca.sh to eligible participants in accordance with the terms of 
the tender offer. Restricted shares issued as pari of the lender offer vest three years from the date of 
issuance. During fiscal 2010, our estimale of forfeiiures decreased from 20.8% lo 7.7%. T'he impact of 
these changes in estimated forfeiiures increased expense by $384 and was recorded as a cumulative 
adjustment in the consolidated statements of operations for fiscal 2010. 

Restricted Stock—We issue shares of resirictcd common slock to employees and directors under our 
Long T'enn Incentive Plan. Restricted stock awarded to employees vests one-third on each anniversary 
of the grant date and for direclors vests one-half on the grant date and one-half on the first 
anniversary of the granl date. Our estimate of forfeitures for restricted slock for employees and 
directors is 10% and 0%, respectively. 

Stock Compensation Expense—Total stock compensation expense from continuing operations In the 
accompanying consolidaled slalements of operations was $7,628, $7,103, and $7,263 for the fiscal years 
2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. We recognize compensalion expense for These awards on a 
straighl-line basis over ihe requisite ser\'lce period for each separately vesting portion of the award. 
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Activity Under Our Share Based Plans—A summary of restricted slock and option activity for fiscal 
2010 Is presented below: 

Weighted Woiglilcd 
Average Average 

Ri'Slricled Gninl-Unle E.\erci.se 
Slock Fair Value Options Price 

Outstanding at April 26, 2009 761,530 $ 5.55 1,520,040 $12.30 
Granted 647,861 12.63 100,000 11.25 
Exercised — (21,602) 9.47 
Vested (306,700) 7.00 — 
I-'orfeiied and expired (23,974) 7.16 (163,253) 20.94 

Outsianding at April 25, 2010 1,078,717 9.35 1,435,185 $11.29 

As of April 25, 2010: 
Outsianding exercisable options n/a 760,585 $13.36 
Weighted average rcmaining contractual term 1.2 years 6.5 years 
Aggregate Intrinsic value: 

Outsianding exercisable n/a $ 4.15 
Outstanding $ 9.35 $ 3.84 

Nonvested: 
Unrecognized compen.saiion cost $ 5,999 $ 1,437 
Weighted average remaining vesting period 1.2 years 3.1 years 

Additional informafion relafing to our share based plans is as follows: 

April 25, April 26. April 27. 
2010 2009 2008 

Restricted Slock: 
Fair value of restricted stock vcsicd during the year . . $2,146 $512 $ — 

Stock Oplions: 
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised 30 141 5,423 
Income lax benefil from stock options exercised — — 977 
Proceeds from stock option exercises 204 110 4,770 

We have 2,220,296 shares available for future issuance under our equiiy compensation plan as of 
April 25, 2010. Upon issuance of restricted shares or exercise of sloek options, shares may be issued 
from available treasuiy or common shares. 

Stock-Based Compensation—Deferred Bonus Plan—Our stockholders have approved the Deferred 
Bonus Plan which provides for the issuance of ntm-vesicd slock to eligible officers and employees who 
agree to receive a deferred bonus In the form of non-vesled stock. T'he vesting of the stock is 
dependenl upon conlinued service to the Company for a period of five years and the fair value of the 
non-vesied stock at the granl date Is amortized ratably over the vesting period. Compensation expense 
related to stock-based compensation under the Deferred Bonus Plan for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 
2008 lotaled $100, $175, and $265, respectively. We do noi plan lo award any furlher compensalion 
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under the Deferred Bonus Plan, however, any grants that have been awarded prior to the Deferred 
Bonus Plan's discontinuation will be paid provided ihc vesting requirements are met. 

A summary of aclivity for fiscal 2010 under the deferred bonus plan Is as follows: 

Weighted 
Number Average 

of Cram Date 
Shares Fair Value 

Non-vested stock at April 26, 2009 29,701 $22.86 
Shares granted — — 
Shares vested (14,859) 18.60 
Shares forfeited (4,196) 26.05 

Non-vested stock at April 25, 2010 10,646 $27.54 

T'he total weighted average fair value of shares vested related to the Deferred Bonus Plan for 
fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $276, $515, and $873, respectively. 

Stock Repurchase—Our Board of Direclors has approved a slock repurchase program, as amended, 
allowing up to 6,000,000 shares of our common stock to be repurchased. As of April 25, 2010, we have 
repurchased 4,895,792 shares of common stock, and retired 553,800 shares of common slock under this 
stock repurchase program. No shares were repurchased In fiscal years 2010, 2009 or 2008. 

U. Deferred Compen.satioD Plans 

2005 Defened Compensation Plan—Our 2005 Deferred Compensation Plan (the ''Plan"), as 
amended and restated, is an unfunded deferred com'pen.sation arrangement for ihe benefil of key 
management officers and employees of the Company and its subsidiaries. T'he terms of ihe Plan Include 
Ihe ability of the participants to defer, on a pre-tax basis, salary, and bonus payments in excess of the 
amount permitted under IRS Code Seciion 401(k). T'he terms also allow for a discretionary annual 
matching contribution by the Company. 'The Plan allows for the aggregation and investment of deferred 
amounls in nolional investment allernalives, including units representing shares ofour common stock. 
The liabiiily related lo the Plan as of April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 was $3,069 and $2,726, 
respectively, and is included in long-icrm oiher accrued liabilities in the consolidated balance sheels. 
Expense for our contributions related to the Plan was $83, $104 and %S5 in fiscal years 2010. 2009 and 
2008, respectively. 

12. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Inlbrmaliun 

For the fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 wc made cash payments for interest, net of capitalized 
inierest of $71,623, $90,706, and $108,090, respectively. We collected an income tax refund net of 
payments of $1,561 and $20,164 for fiscal years 2010 and 2009, respeclivcly. Wc paid Income taxes, net 
of refunds, of $7,949 in fiscal 2008. 

For fiscal 2009, we purchased properly and equipment financed wilh a long lerm obligation of 
$14,384 as discussed in Note 9. Also for the fiscal year ended April 27, 2008. we purchased land 
financed with a note payable for $3,096. 
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13. Income Taxes 

Income lax (benefil) provision from conlinuing operalions consists of the following (in ihousands): 

F'iscal Vear Ended 

April 25, April 26, April 27. 
2010 2009 200« 

Current: 
Federal $ (868) $ — $(14,022) 
State '. . 718 3,010 — 

(150) 3,010 (14,022) 
Deferred: 
Federal '. (2,976) 35,309 (5,189) 
State - (5,248) 2,720 (1,707) 

(8,224) 38,029 (6,896) 

Income lax (benefit) provision $(8,374) $41,039 3(20,918) 

A reconciliation of Income laxes from continuing operations at the statutory corporate federal tax 
rate of 35% to the income lax (benefit) provision reported in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of operations is as follows (in ihousands): 

Fiscal Vear Ended 

April 25. April 26, April 27. 
2010 2009 2008 

Slatutor}' tax (benefil) provision $(3,469) $35,794 $(18,720) 
Effects of : 

State ta.xes 197 5,7.30 (1,707) 
Reduction of unrecognized tax benefits (4,727) — — 
Other 

Various permanent differences 537 1,302 1,586 
Employmenl tax credits (784) (1,333) (1..351) 
Noncontrolling interest — — (1,943) 
Qualified stock opfion expense (benefit) (240) 644 814 
Other n 2 (1,098) 403 

Income tax (benefit) provision $(8,374) $41,039 $(20,918) 
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13. Income Taxes (Conlinued) 

Significant components of our domestic net deferred income lax assel (liability) are as follows (In 
Ihousands); 

Fisral Year Funded 

April 25. April 26. 
2010 2D09 

Deferred tax liabilities: 
Properly and equipment $ (83,830) $ (85,122) 
Gain on early extinguishment of debl (22,416) (22,450) 
Olher '. (8^696) (8,583) 

Total deferred lax liabilities (114,942) (116,155) 

Deferred tax assels: 
Accrued expenses 11,289 17,111 
Alternative minimum lax credit 1,696 3,610 
Employment tax credits 1.5,893 1.3,609 
Capilal toss carryover 1,576 1,576 
Net operating losses 71,723 63,9.59 
Olher . 9,951 17.702 

Tolal deferred tax assets 112,128 117,567 

Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (9,553) (10,087) 

Net deferred tax assel 102,575 107,480 

Net deferred tax assel/(liabilily) $ (12,367) $ (8,675) 

At April 25, 2010, we have federal net operaiing loss canyforwards of $173,521 for income tax 
purposes, with expiration dates from fi.scal 2011 to 2030. Approximately $41,882 of these net operating 
losses arc attributable lo IC Holdings Colorado, Inc. and lis wholly-owned subsidiary CCSO 
Blackhawk, Inc. ("IC Holdings, Inc. & Sub") and can'only be used to offset income earned by these 
entities. The remaining federal net operaiing losses are subject to limitations under the internal 
revenue code and underiying treasury regulations, which may limit the amount ultimately utilized: 
however, we believe thai all federal net operaiing losses will be utilized prior lo expiralion. IC 
Holdings, Inc. & Sub also has a federal capital loss cariyforward of $4,146 that expires in 2011 for 
which it has established a full valuation allowance because il does nol expect lo benefit from the capilal 
loss. We also have various state income tax net operafing loss carryforwards totalling $237,010 wiih 
expiration dates from fiscal 2011 to 20.30. We have determined thai it is more likely than not that wc 
will not be able to utilize $160,483 of the state income lax net operating losses and have established 
valuation reserves accordingly. If or when recognized, the tax benefits relating to any reversal of the 
valuation allowance on deferred lax assets as of April 25, 2010 will be accounted for as a reduction of 
Income lax expense Wc also have a federal general business credit carryforward of $15,893 for income 
tax purposes, which with expiration dates from fiscal 2018 lo 2030. We believe that these credits will be 
utilized prior to expiration. Deferred income taxes relaled lo NOL carryforwards have been classified 
as noncurrent to reflect the expected utilization of the carryforwards. 
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13. Income Taxes (Continued) 

We account for unrecognized tax bcnefils in accordance wilh ASC 740. A reconciliation of the 
beginning and ending ainounis of unrecognized tax benefits as follows: 

April 25, April 26, 
2010 2009 

Beginning Balance $19,482 S21,S19 
Gross increases—tax positions in current period — — 
Gross increases—tax positions in prior periods — 347 
Gross decreases—tax positions in prior periods (5,254) — 
Settlements (2,102) (.5.50) 
Lapse of statute of limitations — (2,134) 

Ending Balance $12,126 $19,482 

Included In the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at April 25. 2010 are $3,613 of lax benefits 
thai. If recognized, would affecl the effeciive tax rate. Also included in the balance of unrecognized tax 
benefits at April 25, 2010 are $6,7CM of tax benefits that; if recognized, would result In adjustments tp 
deferred laxes. 

We recognize accrued Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits In Income tax 
expense Related to the unrecognized tax benefits noted above, we recorded inierest expense of (S722), 
recorded interest income of $2,266 related to prior periods, and settled $1,001 of accrued interest 
during the fiscal year ended 2010. We accrued no penalties during the fiscal year ended 2010. In total, 
as of April 25, 2010, we have recognized a liability of $2,826 for interest and no amount for penalties. 

We believe that an Increase in unrecognized tax benefits relaled to federal and state expo.sures in 
the coming year̂  though possible, cannot be reasonably estimated and will not be significant. In 
addition, we believe that il is rea.sonably possible that an amount between $7,700 and $12,100 of our 
currently remaining unrecognized tax positions mav be recognized by the end oflhe fi.scal year ending 
April 24, 2011. 'These amounls relate lo positions taken on'federal and Mississippi income tax returns 
for the fiscai years ending April 2002 through April 2008. 'These amounls are expecied lo be resolved 
during the next twelve months as a result ol" the anticipated completion of Mississippi ineomc lax 
examinations and Federal statute expirations. 

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. During 
fiscal 2010, the IKS completed Its examination of our federal income tax returns for the 2006 and 2007 
lax years which relate to our fiscal years ended April 29, 2007 and April 27, 2008, respectively. We 
recorded a tax benefil of $168 in fiscal 2010 related to the examination. T'he income tax examination 
changes are subjecl to review by the U.S. Congress Joint Committee on T'a.xalion. We expect this review 
to be completed prior to the end of fiscal 2011. T'he statute of limitations expires January' 2011 and 
January 2012, respectively, for the tax years Included In the audit. In addition, various slate jurisdiciions 
arc currently exaiuining our siate income tax returns for various subsidiaries. The tax returns for 
subsequent years arc also subject lo examination. 

We file in numerous slate jurisdictions with varying statutes of liniltations. Our unrecognized stale 
lax benefits are related to state lax returns open from tax years 2001 through 2010 depending on each 
stale's statute of limitations. 

69 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

14. Hurricane and Other Insurance Recoveries 

During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, we received Insurance recoveries related lo various claims. 
These Insurance recoveries are fn>m claims filed pertaining to our properlies In Biloxi, Mississippi, 
Lake Charles, Louisiana and Pompano Beach, Fioridii,.which were struck,in the fail of 2005 by 
Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Wilma, respectiycly. Additionally, we received Insurance recoveries 
relating to flood claims at our Davenport property during fiscal 2009 and al our Natchez property 
during fiscal years 2008 and 2009. 

Business interruption insurance proceeds are included as revenues under Hurricane and other 
insurance recoveries in our consolidated statement of^opcralions. Other insurance proceeds, afler 
collection of insurance receivables are included as aTcduction of operating expenses under hurricane 
and other Insurance recoveries in our consolidated slatcmentof operations. 

'The significant component of our fiscal 2009 lnsurance:rccoveries.ls the final paymeni ofour 
$225,000 settlement related to-Hurricane Katrina which had darnaged our Biloxi, Mississippi pi'operty. 
As a result of this settlement, we received an addilional $95,000 in insurance proceeds. Afler first 
applying the proceeds lo our remaining Insurance receivable, we recognized $92,179 of pretax Income 
Including $60,000 of business Interruption proceeds included In nel revenues and olher insurance 
recoveries of $32,179 are recorded as a reduction of operating expenses. 

15. Employee Benefil Plan 

401(k) Plan—We have a 401 (k) plan covering substantially all ofour employees who have 
completed 90 days of service. Expense for our contributions for continuing operations related to the 
401 (k) plan was $1,465, $1,500, and $741 In fiscal years 2010, 2009, anti 2008, respectively. Our 
contribution is based on a percentage of employee contributions and may include an additional 
riiscretionar\' amount. 

16. Relaled Parly Transactions 

A member of the Board of Directors has provided consulting services related to on-going contracts 
and transactions in the United Kingdom. The lotal fees paid under this contract were $0, $10, and $60 
in fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. 

In fiscal 2008 we paid $78 plus expenses to a member of the Board of Directors for consulting 
services relaled to certain contracts and real estate transactions. 

Effective February' 2010, wc amended a lease with an enlily owned by certain of our stockholders 
resulting a payment of $5pcr month for a parking area adjacent lo one of our casinos. Prior to this 
lease amendment, wc leased on a month lo month basis ibis parking area and a warehouse for $23 per 
month. 

In fiscal 2008, we reimbursed a private entity owned by certain ofour directors for annual lease 
payments of approximately $34, for properly leased by the private entity. TTie land was leased al our 
request in order to secure sites for possible casino operalions. 

In 2005, one ofour wholly owned subsidiaries, isle of Capri Bettendorf, L.C, entered inu) a 
Development Agreement with the City of Bettendorf, Iowa and Green Bridge Company relating to the 
development of a conference/events cenler in Beltendorf, Iowa, the expansion of the holel al 
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16- Related Party Transactions (Continued) 

Bettendorf and related faeiliiies, including a skywalk belween the hotel and conference/events cenler 
and a parking facility.. Green Bridge Company is indirectly owned by certain of our directors. As part 
of the transaction, Isle of Capri Beltendorf, L.C. purchased certain real estate owned by Green Bridge 
Company at its fair market value of $393 in fiscal 2008. Isle of Capri Bctlendorl', L.C. will hold Green 
Bridge Company harmless from certain future increases in assessments on adjacent property owned by 
Green Bridge Company, capped at $4,500. 

I 
17. Fair Value Measurements 

Interest Rate Hedge Agreements—Wc have entered into various intercsi rate swap agreements 
pertaining to the Credit Facility for an aggregate notional value of $400,000 with maturity dates 
through fiscal 2014. In addition, during.the third quarter of fiscal 2010, we entered into an interest rate 
cap contracl with a nononal value of $20,000 having a maturity date in fiscal 2012 and paid a premium 
of $105 at incepiion. We entered into these hedging-agrcemenis in order to manage market risk on 
variable rate term loans outstanding, as well as comply with, in part, requirements under the Credit 
Facihty. 

As a result of the amendment to our Credit Facility in the fourth quarter of 2010, our interest rate 
swaps no longer meel the criteria for hedge effectiveness, and therefore future changes in the fair value 
of the swaps are recorded in other income (expense) in the consolidated statement of operations. As of 
April 25, 2010, tlie weighted average fixed LIBOR inierest rate of our interest rate swap agreements 
was 4.58%. The interest rale cap agreement meets the criteria for hedge accounling for cash flow 
hedges and has been evaluated, as of April 25, 20I(), as being fully effective. As a result, there is no 
impact on our consolidaled statement of operalions from changes in fair value of the intertst rate cap. 

The fair value of derivatives included in our consolidaled balance sheel and change In our 
unrealized loss are as follows: 

'I\pe or t>erivative Instrumenl Balance Sheel l.oratii>n April 25, 2IM0 April 26.20U9 

Interest raie cap contract Prepaid deposits and other $ 24 $ — 
Interest rate swap conlracts Accrued interest 6,704 2,258 
Interest rate swap contracts Olher long-lerm liabilities 6,247 21,454 

TTie change in unrealized loss on our derivatives was 57,139 and $9,998 for fiscal years 2010 and 
2009,. respectively. 

'The fair value of our intercsi swap and cap contracts are measured using Level 3 inputs at the 
present value of all expecied future cash flows based on the LIBOR-based yield curve as of the date of 
the valuafion. The fair value of our interest rale swap conlracls as recorded in our consolidated balance 
sheet Is recorded net of deferred Income tax benefits of $4,704 and $8,879, for fiscal years 2010 and 
2009, respectively. 

T'he amount of the gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated oiher comprehensive income (loss) 
Into earnings and its location in the consolidated statements of ineomc is as follows: 

, Fiscal Year Ended 
Incoine 

"Iype of Dfirivaiive ln.':lrmncnt Stalemenl Un-nlion April 25, 2010 .April 26, 2009 April 27, 2008 
Interest rale swap conlracls Interest expense $(19,174) $(10,165) $(70) 

Other expense (3,912) — — 

71 



ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATE.MENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, excepi share and per share amounls) 

17. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

The Company recorded Income of $3,541 In olher expense relaled lo the change In fair value of 
the inierest rate swaps no longer qualifying for hedge accounling. 

ITie amounl of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) related to inieresi rate swap 
conlracls maturing In the next twelve months was $5,718 as of April 25, 2010. 

The amounl of gain (loss) recognized in accumulated olher comprehensive income (loss) Is as 
follows: 

Fiscal Year Knded 
Type of Derivaiive Instrumenl April 25, 2010 April 26, 2009 April 27, 2008 

Interest rate cap contracts (50) — — 
Interest rate swap contracts 6,955 (6,255) (8,555) 

Tolal • $6,905 $(6,255) $(8,555) 

A detail of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) Is as follows: 

Type of Derivaiive Instrument April 25, 2O10 April 26. 2009 

Interest rale cap contracts $ (50) $ — 
inierest rale swap conlracts (7,877) (14,832) 
I-breign currency translation gain (loss) (133) (359) 

$(8,060) 5(15,191) 

Financial Instniments—The esiimaled carr '̂ing amounts and fair values of our olher financial 
instruments are as follows: 

April 25, 21)10 April 26. 2009 

Carrjing Carrying 
Amounl Fair Value Amnuiil Fair Value 

Financial assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $-68,069 $ 68,069 5 96,654 $ 96,654 
Markelable securities 22,926 22,926 17,548 17,548 
Reslricied cash 2,774 2,774 2,774 2,774 
Notes receivable 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Financial liabilities: 
Revolver $ 21,500 $ 20,855 5112,000 $112,000 
Variable rate lerm loans 817,256 800,911 825,651 652,264 
7% Senior subordinaied noles 3.57,275 326,013 .357,275 262,597 
Olher long-term debt 4,858 4,858 6,146 6,146 
Olher long-term obligalions 17,166 17.166 17,314 17,314 
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17. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

'The following methods and assumptions were used lo estimate the fair value of each class of 
financial insiruments kn which it Is practicable to estimale that value: 

Cash and cash equivalenls, restricted cash and notes receivable are carried ai cost, which 
approximates fair value due to iheir short-term maturities. 

Markelable securities are based upon Level.1 Inpulsobtained from quoted prices available in 
active markets and represent the amounts we would expect to receive if we sold these marketable 
securities. 

The fair value of our long-term debt or olher long-term obligations is estimated based on the 
quoted market price of the underlying debl issue or, when a quoted markel price Is not available, 
the discounled cash flow of future payments utilizing current rates available to us for debt of 
similar remaining maturities. Debl obligations with a short remaining maturity are valued al the 
carrying amount. 

18. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Information 

Certain of our wholly owned subsidiaries'have fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a joinl and 
several basis, the payment of all obligations under our 7% Senior Subordinaied Noles. 

The following wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company are guarantors, on a joint and several 
basis, under the 7% Senior Subordinaied Noles: Black Hawk Holdings, L.L.C: Casino America of 
Colorado, Inc.: CCSC/Blackhawk, Inc.; Grand Palais.Rivcrboal, Inc.; IC Holdings Colorado, Inc.; 
IOC-Black Hawk Distribution Company, L.L.C; lOG-Boonville, Ine; lOC-Caruthcrs-ville, L.L.C: 
IOC-Kansas City, Ine; lOC-Lula, Inc.; lOC-Natchcz, Inc.; IOC-Black Hawk County, Ine; 
iOC-Davcnport, Ine: IOC Holdings, L.L.C.: IOC Services, L.L.C.; Isle of Capri Bahamas 
Holdings, Inc.; Isle of Capri Bettendorf Marina Corporation.: Isle of Capri Bettendorf, L.C: lsle of 
Capri Black Hawk Capital Corp.; Isle of Capri Black Hawk,, L.L.C; lsle of Capri Marquette, Inc.; 
P.P.I, Inc.; Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi: Rivcrboal Services, Inc.; and St. Charies Gaming 
Company, Ine Each of the subsidiaries' guarantees is joint and several with ihe guarantees of the other 
subsidiaries. 
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18. Consolidating Condensed Financial Informalion (Continued) 

Consolidaling condensed balance sheets as of April 25, 2010 and April 26, 2009 are as follows (in 
thousands): 

A<i of April 25, 2010 

lsle ofCupr i 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Ual.ince Sheet Obligor) 

Current assels $ 35,835 
Inicrcompany receivables 990,557 
Investmenis in subsidiaries 390,369 
Property and equipmenl, net 7,579 
Other assets 57,092 

Total assels 51,481,432 

Current habilities $ 46,581 
Intercompaiiy payables 
Long-lerm debt, less curreni 

maturifies 1,187,631 
Olher accmed liabilities 7,001 
Stockholders' equity 240,219 

'Total liabilities and stockholders' 
equiiy $1,481,432 

(iuuruntor 
Sulisidiaries 

Non-
( luamnlor 

Subsidiaries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Rliminating 
Ifnt rie.<; 

lsle of Capri 
Caisinos, Inc. 
Consolitlated 

$ 71,976 
(185,612) 
(63,110) 

1,059,147 
409,106 

$1,291,507 

$ 43,193 
(-54,177) 

32,216 
11,150 

$ 32,382 

$ (1,100) 
(750,768) 
(327,259) 

(51.354) 

$(1,130,481) 

$ 149,904 

1.098,942 
425,994 

$1,674,840 

$ 80,884 $ 30,790 $ (1,100) $ 157,155 
— 750,768 — (750,768) 

3,760 
116,815 
339,280 

744 
12.869 

(12,021) 

— 
(51,354) 

(327,259) 

1,192,135 
85,331 

240,219 

$1,291,507 $ 32,382 $(1,130,481) $1,674,840 

As or April 26. 2009 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
Balanee Sheel Obligor) 

Current assels $ 38,145 
Intercompany receivables 1,145.-395 
Investments In subsidiaries 333,012 
Pro[Krrty and equipment, net 10,158 
Olher assets 53,805 

'Ibial assets $1,580,515 

Current liabllilies S 40,440 
Intercompany payables 
Long-lerm debt, less current 

maturities 1,286,526 
Other accrued habilities 25,123 
Stockholders' equit>' 228,426 

Tolal liabilities and stockholders' 
equity $1,580,515 

(jiiarantnr 
i^nhsidiaries 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidinries 

Consolidaling 
and 

Eliminating 
Enlries 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos. Ine. 
Con.solidated 

$ 95,971 $ 45,772 $ (2,295) $ 177,593 
(257,297) 
(58,041) 

1.134,553 
415,013 

— 790,562 

(97,536) 

32,829 
8,021 

(790,-562) 
(274,971) 

(49,310) 
1,177,540 

427.529 

$1,330,199 $(10,914) $(1,117,138) $1,782,662 

$ 97,576 $32,272 $ (2,295) $ 167,993 
— (790,562) 

3,995 
106,976 
331,090 

863 
12,070 

(56.119) 

— 
(49,310) 

(274,971) 

1,291,384 
94,859 

228.426 

$1,330,199 $(10,914) $(1,117,138) $1,782,662 
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IS. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Informalion (Conlinued) 

Consolidating condensed staiemenis of operalions for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, 
April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 are as follows: 

Kor the Fiscal Vear Ended April 25, 2010 

Lsle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Parent 
statement of Operations OI>ligor) 

Revenues: 
Casino $ — 
Pari-muluel, rooms, food, beverage 

and Olher 1,320 

Gross revenues 1,320 
Less promoiional allowances — 

Net revenues 1,320 

Operaiing expenses: 
Casino — 
Gaming laxes — 
Pari-muluel, rooms, food, beverage 

and olher 45,479 
Managemeni fee expense (revenue) . . (26,197) 
Depreciation and amonlzaiicm 4,115 

Total operating expenses 23,397 

Operating Income (loss) (22,077) 
Interest expense, nel (10.827) 
Cain on exllngulshment of debt — 
Olher (370) 
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 14,671 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income laxes and 
nonconlolling inieresi 

Income tax (provision) benefit 

Income (loss) from coniinuining 
operalions 

Income (loss) of discontinued 
operations 

Nel income (loss) $ (3,273) 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

$1,013,386 

176,599 

1,189,985 
(191,551) 

998,434 

153,838 
262,241 

370,311 
26,197 

104,779 

917,366 

81,068 
(62,.545) 

Non-
Guaranlor 

.Subsidiaries 

$ -

9,654 

9,654 
— 

9.654 

— 

3,979 
— 

610 

4,589 

5,065 
(229) 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminating 
Entries 

$ -

(9,572) 

(9,572) 
— 

(9,572) 

. 

— 

(9,572) 
— 
— 

(9,572) 

— 
— 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

$1,013,386 

178,001 

1,191387 
(191,551) 

999,836 

153,838 
262,241 

410,197 
— 

109,504 

935,780 

64,056 
(73,601) 

(3,268) — (11,403) 
(370) 

(18,603) 
17.062 

(L54I) 

(1,732) 

$ (3,273) 3 

15,255 
(6,719) 

8,536 

(1,167) 

> 7,369 

4,836 
(T969) 

2.867 

(2,300) 

$ 567 

(11,403) 

(11,403) 

3,467 

$ (7,936) : 

(9,915) 
8,374 

(1,541) 

(1,732) 

I (3,273) 
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18. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Ended April 26, 2009 

Statement of Operations 

Revenues: 
Casino 
Parl-muluel, rooms, food, beverage 

and other 

Gross revenues 
Less promotional allowances 

Nci revenues 368 

Operaiing expenses: 
Casino — 
Gaming laxes — 
Pari-mulucl, rooms, food, beverage 

and Olher 47,098 
Managemeni fee expense (rcvenue) . . (30,681) 
Depreciauon and amortizalion 4,852 

Total operaiing expenses 21,269 

Operating Income (loss) (20,901) 
Intercsi e.xpense, nel (19,776) 
Gain on cxlinguishmcnl of debt 57,693 
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 53,133 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operations before income taxes and 
noncontrolling interest 70,149 

Income tax (provision) benefit (8,916) 

Income (loss) from continuining 
operations 61,233 

Income (loss) from disconlinued 
operalions, net of lax (17,658) 

Net income (loss) $ 4.3,575 

Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. 

(Pareni 
Obligor) 

$ -

368 

368 
— 

Guarantor 
Subsidiaries 

$1,055,694 

247,489 

1,303,183 
(195,603) 

Non-
Guarantor 

Subsidiaries 

$ -

9,514 

9,514 
— 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminaling 
Entries 

$ — 

(9,427) 

(9,427) 
— 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidaled 

$1,055,694 

247,944 

1,303,638 
(195,603) 

1,107,580 9,514 (9,427) 1,108,035 

151,610 
269,928 

382,196 
30,681 

116.983 

951,398 

156,182 
(69,765) 

(15,537) 

70,880 
(33,175) 

37,705 

• (2,038) • 

$ 35,667 

— 

9,658 

605 

10,263 

(749) 
(412) 

(1,161) 
1,052 

(109) 

(39,614) 

5(39,723) 

— 

(9,427) 

(9,427) 

(37,596) 

(37,596) 

(37,596) 

41,652 

$ 4,056 

151,610 
269,928 

429,525 

122,440 

973,503 

134,532 
(89,953) 
57,693 

102,272 
(41,039) 

61,233 

(17,658) 

$ 43,575 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCUL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, excepi share and per share amounts) 

18. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Informalion (Conlinued) 

For Ihc Fiscal Year Ended April 27, 200S 

$1,092,293 

199,990 

1,292,283 
(200,900) 

1,091,383 

151,090 
285,370 

460,837 

128-935 

lsle of Capri Consolidaling 
Casinos,.Inc. Non- and Lsle ofCapri 

(Parent Guaranlor Guarantor Eliminaling Ca.tinos, Inc. 
Statement of Operalions Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidaled 

Revenues: 
Casino $ — $1,092,293 $ — S — 
Pari-mulucl, rooms, food, beverage 

and other 359' 199,393 13,253 (1.3,015) 

Gross revenues 359 1,291,686 13,253 (13,015) 
Less promotional allowances — (200,900) — — 

Nel revenues 359 1,090,786 13,253 (13,015) 

Operating expenses: 
Casino — 151,090 — — 
Gaming ta.\es — 285,370 — — 
Pari-muluel, rooms, food, beverage 

and other 55,475 407,752 10,625 (13,015) 
Managemeni fee expense (revenue) . . (29,600) 29,600 — — 
Depreciafion and amortization 5,089 123,264 582 — 

Total operaiing expenses 

Operating income (loss) 
Interest expense, net 
Gain on extinguishment of debt 
Equity In Income (loss) of subsidiaries 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operalions before Income taxes and 
including noncontrolling interest. . 

Income tax (provision) benefil 

Income (loss) from continuing 
operalions including noncontrolling 
interest 

Income (loss) from disconlinued 
operalions, net of lax 

Net income (loss) Including 
noncontrolling interest 
Net Income altribuiable to 

noncontrolling inieresi 

Net income (loss) attributable lo 
common siockholders 

30,964 

(30,605) 
(32,900) 
(1-3,660) 
16,569 

(60,596) 
27,826 

(32,770) 

(59,236) 

(92.006) 

(4,868) 

$(96,874) 

997,076 

93,710 
(70,716) 
(1,614) 
(2,761) 

18,619 
7,806 

26,425 

(627) 

25,798 

(4,868) 

$ 20,930 

11,207 

2,046 
51 

2,097 
(14,714) 

(12,617) 

(110,779) 

(123,396) 

— 

$(123,396) 

(13,015) 

(13,808) 

(13,808) 

(13,808) 

111,406 

97,598 

4,868 

$102,466 

1,026,2-32 

65,151 
(103,565) 

(15,274) 

(53,688) 
20,918 

(32,770) 

(59,236) 

(92,006) 

(4,868) 

$ (96,874) 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(aniounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

18. Consolidaling Condensed Financial Information (Conlinued) 

Consolidaling condensed statements of cash fiows for the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010, 
Aprii 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008 are as follows: 

For Ihe Fiscal Year Ended April 25, 2010 

Isle of Capri Consolidaling 
Casinos, Inc- Nod- and Isle of Cnpri 

(Parent Guarantor Guaranlor Eliminating Casinos, Inc. 
Slaiemetii of Cash Flows Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Enlries Consolidated 

Net cash provided by (used In) 
operating activities $ (9,849) $ 120,337 $(4,106) $ — 5 106,382 

Nel cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities 110,144 (30,321) 722 (111„535) (30,990) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
financing acllvhics (102,565) (111,703) "(1,225) 111,535 (103,958) 

Effect of foreign currency e.xehange 
rates on cash and cash equivalenls. . — — (19) — (19) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
ca.sh equivaicnts . .'. (2,270) (21,687) (4,628) — (28,585) 

Cash and cash equivalents al 
beginning of the period 8,776 68,681 19.197 — 96,654 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the period $ 6,506 $ 46,994 $14,569 $ — $ 68.069 

For Ihe Fiscal Vear Ended April 26, 2i)W 

Isle ofCapri Consolidating 
Casinos, Inc. Non- and Isle of Capri 

(PareiU Ctiaranlor Cuarnnlor Eliminating Casinos, Ine. 
SlateinenI of Cash Flows Obligor) Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidated 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operaiing activilies $ 10,189 $ 200.621 $(20,200) $ — $ 190,610 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activilies 1.38,049 (26,177). (2,382) (137,357) (27.867) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
financing activities (144,824) (173,151) 23,435 137,357 (157,183) 

Effect of foreign currency e.xchange 
rates on cash and cash equivalents. . — — (696) — (696) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalenls 3,414 1,293 157 — 4,864 

Cash and cash equivalents at 
beginning of the period 5,362 67,388 19.040 — 91,790 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the period S 8,776 $ 68,681 5 19,197 $ — $ 96,654 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIN.VNCLVL STATE.MENTS (Continued) 

(amounls in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

18. Consolidating Condensed Financial Information (Continued) 

For the Fiscal Year Endtd April 27, 2008 

Statement of Cash Flo\ts 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activilies 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
investing activities , . . . . 

Nel cash provided by (used in) 
financing aclivities 

Effect of foreign currency exchange 
rates on cash and cash equivalenls 

Nel increase (decrease) in cash and 
cash equivalenls 

Cash and cash equivaicnts at 
beginning of the period 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of 
the period 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Ine. 

CParenl 
Obligor) 

$ (-50,627) 

(310,374) 

283,469 

— 

(77,532) 

82,894 

$ 5,-362 

Guaranlor 
Suhsitliaries 

$ 213,017 

(272,573) 

41,792 

— 

(17,764) 

85,152 

$ 67,388 

Non-. 
Gtiamnlnr 

Subsidiaries 

$(29,033) 

(25,714) 

53,468 

251 

(1,028) 

20,068 

$ 19,040 

Consolidating 
and 

Eliminaling 
Enlries 

$ -

306,215 

(306,215) 

— 

— 

— 

$ — 

Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. 
Consolidated 

5 133,357 

(302,446) 

72,514 

251 

(96,324) 

188,114 

$ 91,790 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, excepi share and per share amounts) 

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Informatiun (unaudited) 

Our selected quarterly financial information has included reclassifications for amounts show in our 
previously filed repons on Forms lO-Q to reflect the discontinued operalions presentation for our 
Freeport, Grand Bahama and UK casino properlies. 

Fiscal Quarters End(.-d 
Julv 26. 

2009 

Net revenues $ 257,914 
Operaiing income 19,939 
Income (loss) from continuing operalions . - . . 1,055 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of income la.xes (150) 
Net income (loss) 905 
Earnings (loss) per common share basic: 

Income (loss) from conlinuing operalions. . . $ 0.03 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of income ta.xes — 

Net income (loss) $ 0.03 

Earnings (loss) per common share diluted: 
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . $ 0.03 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, 

net of income taxes — 

Net income (loss) $ 0.03 

Weighted average basic shares 31,779,100 
Weighted average dilutive shares 31,885,101 

October 25, 
2009 

$ 246,055 
13,822 
2,373 

(811) 
1,562 

$ 0.07 

(0.02) 

$ 0.05 

$ 0.07 

(0.02) 

$ 0.05 

32,319,789 
•32,511,462 

.Innuar?' 24. 
2010 

$ 227.071 
2,676 

(11.400) 

775 
(10,625) 

$ (0.35) 

0.02 

$ (0.33) 

$ (0.35) 

0-02 

$ (0.33) 

32,438,809 
32,438,809 

April 25. 
2010 

$ 268,796 
27,619 
6,431 

(1,546) 
4,885 

$ 0.20 

(0.05) 

$ 0.15 

$ 0.20 

(0.05) 

$ 0.15 

32,445,378 
32,515,829 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

(amounls in Ihousands, except share and per share amounts) 

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Infurmalion (unaudited) (Continued) 

Fiscal Quarters Ended 

Julv 27, October 26, January 25. April 26, 
2008 2008 2009 2009 

Net revenues $ 273,922 $ 247,.588 $ 301,916 $ 284,609 
Operating income 21,586 6,690 101,988 4,268 
Income (loss) from continuing operalions . . . . (3,282) (9,307) 48,269 25,553 
Income (loss) from discontinued operalions, 

nel of Income taxes (344) (4,193) (2,156) (10,965) 
Net income (loss) (3,626) (13,500) 46,113 14,588 
Earnings (loss) per common share basic; 

Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . $ (OH) $ (0.30) $ 1.52 $ 0-80 
Income (loss) from disconlinued operations, 

net of Income taxes (0.01) (0.13) (0.07) (0-34) 

Net income (loss) $ (0.12) $ (0.43) $ 1.45 $ 0.46 

Earnings (loss) per common share diluted: 
Income (loss) from continuing operations. . . $ (OH) $ (0.30) $ 1.52 $ 0.80 
Income (loss) from discontinued operalions, 

net of Income ta.xes (0.01) (0.1.3) (0.07) (0.34) 

Nel Income (loss) $ (0.12) $ (0.43) $ 1.45 $ 0.46 

Weighted average basic shares 30,866,687 31,171,903 31,765,365 31,770,653 
Weighted average dilutive shares .30,866,687 31,171,903 31,765,365 31,770,653 

A summary of certain revenues and expenses from our continuing operations Impaciing our 
quarterly financial results Is as follows: 

Fiscal Quarters Ended 

Julv 26. Oclober 25, January 24, April 25, 
2009 2009 2010 2010 

(E-xpense) Revenue: 
Expense recoveries and other charges, net $— $6,762 $— $— 

Fiscal Quarters Ended 

Julv 27. October 26. Januarv 25. April 26. 
2008 2008 2009 2009 

(Expense) Revenue: 
Hurricane and other Insurance recoveries $ — $— $92,179 $ 3,030 
Expense recoveries and oiher charges, nsl (6,000) — — (30,125) 
Gain on early extinguishment of debt — — — 57,693 

Hurricane and other Insurance Recoveries—Reflect receipts relating to property and business 
interruption claims. During the third quarter of fiscal 2009, we received our final settlement of 
Hurricane Katrina claim. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCUL STATEMENTS (Conlinued) 

(amuunis in thousands, excepi share and per share amounts) 

19. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited) (Continued) 

Expense recoveries and other charges, net—During the second quarter of 2010 we recorded an 
expense recovery of $6,762, representing the discounted value of a receivable for reimbursement of 
development costs. During first quarter of 2009 we terminated a potential development agreement for a 
casino project In Portland, Oregon and as a result recorded a S6,0(X) charge. During the fourth quarter 
of 2009 our valuation charges included $18,269 In goodwill and intangible asset Impairment at our 
Black Hawk, Colorado properly as a result of our amiual Impairmenl lesiing under required under 
ASC 350 and $11,856 to write-off construction In progress at our Biloxi properly. 

Gain (loss) on Extinguishment of Debt—During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, we retired 
$142,725 of our Senior Subordinated NtJtes through a lender offer^for $82,773 from our available cash 
and cash equivaicnts. Afier expenses related to the elimination of deferred finance costs and 
transactions costs, we recognized a pretax gain of $57,892 during fiscal 2009. During the fourlh quarter 
of fi.scal 2009, we permanently repaid $35,000 of our variable rate lerm loans under our 2007 Credit 
facility wilh proceeds froiri our hurricane insurance selllemenl resulting in a loss on eariy 
extinguishment of debl of $199 due to the write-off of deferred financing costs. 

Discontinued Operations—The fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 includes losses of $13,416 associated 
with the sale of our Coventrv', England operations and the planned disconiinuancc of our other Untied 
Kingdom operations. 

20. Commitmenls and Contingencies 

Operating Leases—Future minimum payments over the lease term of non-cancelable operating 
leases wilh initial terms of one year or more consisted of the following al April 25, 2010: 

Fi.scal ^'ears Ending: 

2011 $ 20,510 
2012 16.596 
2013 16,290 
2014 16,238 
2015 15,684 
TTierafler 423,479 

Tolal minimum lease payments $508,797 

Rent expense from continuing operations was $31,672, $33,109, and $35,357 In fiscal years 2010, 
2009, and 2008, respectively. Such amounts include contingent rentals of $5,739, $6,2.59, and $8,037 in 
fiscal years 2010, 2009 and'2008, respectively. 

Legal and Regulatory Proceedings—Lady Luck Gaming Corporation (now our wholly owned 
subsidiary) and several joint venture partners have been defendants In the Greek C'M\ Courts and the 
Greek Administrative Couris In similar lawsuits brought by the country of Greece- TTie actions allege 
thai the defendants failed to make specified payments in connection with the gaming license bid 
process for Pairas, Greece. Although it Is difficull to determine the damages being sought from the 
lawsuiLs, the action may seek damages up lo that aggregate amounl plus inierest from the date of the 
action. 
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LSLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCLVL StATE.MENTS (Continued) 

(amounts in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

20. Commitmenls and Contingencies (Continued) 

In the Civil Court lawsuit, the Civil Court of First Inslance ruled in our favor and dismissed the 
lawsuit In 2001. Greece appealed to the Civil Appeal Court and, in 2003, the Courl rejected the appeal. 
Greece then appealed to the Civil Supreme Court and, in 2007, the Supreme Courl ruled that the 
matter was not properly before the Civil Couris and should be before the Administrative Court. 

In the Administrative Courl lawsuit, the Administrative Courl of First Instance rejected the lawsuil 
stating that it was noi competent to hear the mailer. Greece then appealed lo the Administrative 
Appeal Courl, which court rejected the appeal in 2003. Greece then appealed to the Supreme 
Administrative Court, which remanded the mailer back to the Administrative Appeal Court for a 
hearing on the merits. The re-hcaring look place In 2006, and in 2008 the Adminislrafive Appeal Courl 
rejected Greece's appeal on procedural grounds. On December 22,,2008 and January 23, 2009, Greece 
appealed the ruling lo the Supreme Administrative Courl. A hearing has leriialively been scheduled for 
November 2010. 

The outcome of this matter is still in doubt and cannot be predicted with any degree of ccriainly. 
We intend to continue a vigorous and appropriale defense to the claims asserted In this mailer. 
Tlirough April 25, 2010, we have accrued an esiimaled liability including interest of $10,690. Our 
accrual Is based upon management's estimate of the original claim by the plaintiffs for lost payments. 
We continue to accrue Inierest on the asserted claim. Wc arc unable to esiimaie a lolal possible loss as 
informalion as to possible addilional claims, if any, have not been asserted or quantified by the 
plaintiffs at this time. 

During Januar)', 2010, we entered into an agreement to provide managemeni services for a 
potenlial casino to be located at the Nemacolin Woodlands Resort In P"armingion, Pennsylvania, ('"the 
Resort"). TTie developmeni of ihls casino is subject ,lo numerous regulatory approvals including 
obtaining a state gaming license, which is a competitive award process among several applicants. If the 
Resort Is successful In obtaining a gaming license, wc have agreed to complete the build-out of the 
casino space- Wc currendy estimate the projeci cosl ai approximalcly $50 million. 

We are subjecl lo certain federal, stale and local environmental protection, heallh and safety laws, 
regulations and ordinances that apply to businesses generally, and are subject to cleanup requirements 
al certain ofour facilities as a result ihercoL We have nol made, and do nol anticipate making maierial 
expenditures, nor do wc anticipate incurring delays wilh respect to environmental remediation or 
protection- However, in part because our present and fiiture development sites have. In some cases, 
been used as manufacturing facilities or oiher facilities that generate materials that are required to be 
remediated under envlronmenlal laws and regulations, there can be no guarantee that additional 
pre-exisfing conditions will not be discovered and we will not experience material liabilities or delays. 

Wc are subjecl to various contingencies and litigation matters and have a number of unresolved 
claims. Although the ulllmale liabiiily of these contingencies, this litigation and these claims cannot be 
determined at this time, we believe ihey will not have a maierial adverse effect on our consolidated 
financial position, resulis of operalions or cash flows. 

21. Evenl (Unaudited) Subsequenl to Ihe Date of the Independent Auditor's Report 

On June 8, 2010, we completed our acquisition of Rainbow Casino located in Vicksburg, 
Mississippi for $80,000. TTie acquisilion was financed ihrough borrowings under our Credit Facility. 
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ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 

(In thousands) 

Accounts Receivable Reserve 

i'eriod 

Ualance al 
Beginning of 

Year 

Year Ended April 25,2010 $5,106 
Year Ended April 26, 2009 4,258 
Year Ended April 27, 2008 4^335 

Other Receivables Rescr>e 

Charged lo 
Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,400 
973 

3,407 

Deduction^ from Balance al End 
Reserves of Year Reserves 

$(4,551) 
(125) 

(3.484) 

$1,955 
5,106 
4,258 

Period 

Year Ended April 25, 2010 
Year Ended April 26, 2009 
Year Ended April 27, 2008 

Balance al' 
Beginning of 

Year 

$3,194 
3,194 
3.194 

Cliarged lo 
Costs and 
E.vpenses 

$ -

Deductions fn>m 
Reserves 

5(312) 

Balance at End 
of Year 

$2,882 
.3,194 
3,194 
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ITE.M 9. CFLVNCES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTTNC AND 
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

None. 

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of DLsclo.sure Controls and Procedures;—Based on their evaluation as of April 25, 2010, 
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in Rules I3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) were sufficiently 
effective to ensure that the Informalion required lo be disclosed by us in this Annual Report was 
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and 
Instructions for Form 10-K. 

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting—Our'mana^^cmenl is responsible 
for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined In 
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act). Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and 
Chief Financial Officer, assessed the effectiveness of our internal conlrol over financial reporting as of 
April 25, 2010. In making this assessment, our managemeni used ihc criteria set forth by the 
Committee of Sponsoring Organizalions of the Treadway Commission in Internal Conlrol—Integrated 
Framework- Our management has concluded that, as of April 25, 2010, our internal control over 
financial reporting is effective based on these criteria. Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered 
public accounting firm, who audited and reporlcd on the consolidated financial statements included in 
this Annual Reporl on Form 10-K, has issued an ailesiation report on the effectiveness of the 
Company's internal control over financial reporting as stated in their reporl which is included in 
Ilem 8. 

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting—There have been no changes in our intemal 
controls over financial reporting during the quarter ended April 25, 2010 that have materially affected, 
or are reasonably likely to materially affecl our internal controls over financial reporting, other than the 
remediation of the material weakness discussed below. During the quarter ended April 25, 2010, we 
implemented a redacted accounling chart of accounts lo improve our overall processes as well as 
implemented a new financial reporl writing software. TTie internal controls over our general ledger and 
financial reporting remained consistent before and after these changes. 

Inherent Limilations on Effectiveness of Controls—Our management, including t)ur Chief Executive 
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our 
internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control syslem. no matter how well conceived 
and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control 
syslem arc met. Further, the design of a conlrol sysiem tntisi refiect ihe fact that there are resource 
constraints, and the benefits of controls inust be considered relative to their costs. Because of the 
inherent limitations In all control systems, no evaluallon of controls can provide absolute assurance that 
all conlrol issues and Instances of fraud. If any. within our company have been detected. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION 

None. 
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PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

DIRECTORS 

Each of the Individuals listed below is currently serving on the Company's Board of Directors. 

Name Age 

James B. Pcrr>' 60 
Robert S. Goldstein 55 
W. Randolph Baker 63 
John G. Brackenbur)'* 73 
Alan J. Glazer 69 
Jeffrey D. Goldstein 57 
Richard A. Goldslein 49 
Shaun R. Hayes 50 
Gregory J. Kozicz •. . - : 49 
Lee S. WIelanskv 59 

• John G. Brackenbury, a direcior currently serving on the Company's Board of Directors, 
Is retiring and will not be standing for re-election. 

fames B. Perry has been a director since July 2007 and wasmamed Chairman of the Board in 
August 2009. Sitice March 2008. he has sei-ved as our Chief Executive Officer. Prior to beins named 
Chairman, Mr. Perry was E.vecullve Vice Chairman from March 2008 lo Augusi 2009 and Vice 
Chairman from July 2007 to March 2008. Mr. Perry .served as a,Class III Director oti ihe board of 
Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc. from May 2005 until J illy 2007. From July. 2005 to July 2007, 
Mr. Perry served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Trump Enlertainmeni Resort, Inc., which 
filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcj' In February 2009. Mr. Perr '̂ was President of Argosy Gaming Company 
from April 1997 ihrough July 2002 and Chief Executive Officer of Argosy Gaming Company from April 
1997 ihrough May 2003. Mr. Perry also served as a member of the Board of Directors of Argosy 
Gaming Company from 2000 to Jtily 2005. Mr. Perry brings more than 25 years of industr}- experience 
to the Board and his day-to-day leadership ofthe Company provides our Board of Dircciors with 
Intimate knowledge of all aspects of our business. He also has extensive experience in executive 
management and strategic planning. 

Robert S. Goldstein has been a director since Februar)' 1993 and was named Vice Chairman of the 
Board In March 2008. Prior to being named Vice Chairman, Mr- Goldslein was Executive Vice 
Chairman from October 2(X)5 to March 2008. Mr. Goldslein Is the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer 
and President of Alter Trading Corporation, a company engaged in the business of scrap metal 
recycling, and has been associated wiih that company since 1977. Mr- Goldstein serves as Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer of Goldstein Group, Inc., a private company. Additionally, Mr. Goldstein was a 
director, officer, and stockholder of the Steamboat Companies and has been an officer of several 
affiliated companies engaged In river transiX)rlation, stevedoring and equipment leasing since 1980. 
Mr. Goldslein is the brother of Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein. Mr. Goldstein has 
extensive experience in managemeni of operalions, corporate governance and strategic planning. 
Mr. Goldslein has .served as a member of our Board for inore than 16 years and brings to the Board 
an In-depih understanding of the Company's business, history and organization. 

W. Randolph Baker has been a direcior since September 1997. In July 2008, Mr. Baker resigned 
from his position as Chair of the Sycuan Institute on Tribal Gaming at San Diego State Umversily, the 
nation's first academic program dedicated to the study of tribal gaming, where he served since August 
2006. He is currently a principal in Randolph Baker & Associates, a consulting firm located in San 
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Antonio, Texas. Previously Mr. Baker served as'Hxeculivc Direcior of the Shelby County SchtK>ls 
Education Foundation, a nonprofit organization dedicated lo enhancing the quality of K-12 education 
in Shelby Couniy, Tennessee. From June 1996 to Spring 2004, he served as Vice Chairman and Chief 
Executive Officer of TTiompson Baker & Berry, a regional public relations and public affairs firm 
localed in Memphis, Tennessee. Prior lo that. Mr. baker served as the Harrah's Visiting Professor of 
Gaming Studies in the College of Business al the University of Nevada,.Reno, and as Director of 
Public Affairs for TTie Promus Companies Incorporaled, then a holding company for casino and hole! 
brands (including Harrah's casino hotels) In Memphis, Tennessee, Mr. Baker has extensive experience 
In management of operalions, regulatory matters, public policy, corporate governance, corporate 
finance and accounling and brings to the Board a significant level of knowledge regarding tribal 
gaming. 

foim G. Brackenbury, C-B.E. has been a director since Januar>' 2004. He also serves as Chairman of 
the Board of Directors of our wholly owned subsidiary. Isle of Capri Casinos, Ltd. and Blue Chip 
Casinos Pic, both of which were sold in fiscal year 2010. Mr. Brackenbury, who has over 40 years of 
experience in the leisure sector in the United Kingdom, is involved In numerous organizations. 
Mr. Brackenbury has serv'cd a.s chairman of Business In Sport & Leisure since 1985 and was made Life 
President on March 17, 2005 and as chairman,of Brackenbur)' Leisure Limiled since 1996. He has 
served as Chairman of Avanti Screeninedia sijicc 2002 and on the demerger of Avanti Screenmedia and 
Avanti Communications In April 2007, he was a non-exccutivc direcior of Avanti Screenmedia and 
resigned and became chairman of Avanti Commuhlcaiions Group Pic and ceased to be chairman of 
Active Media Capital in April 2007 when it was acquired by Avanti Screenmedia. From November 1996 
to December 2003, he was Chairman of Pubmaslcr Limited, which was one of the United Kingdom's 
leading Independent pub operators. Mr. Brackenbury previously served as a non-executive dirccior of 
ITolslen (UK) Limited, Holel &. Catering Training Company, Western Wines Limited, Aspen 
Group Pic, SPT Holdings Limited, Brewing Research I-'oundation and as an executive director of Brent 
Walker Group, Pie and Chairman of People l'̂ . Blue Chip Casinos Pic, a company on which 
Mr. Brackenbury' serves on the Board of Directors, and of which we own a majority inierest, filed for 
Adminislralion in the United Kingdom under the Insolvency Act 1986 in March 2009. Additionally, 
during fiscal year 2010, we completed the sale of our Blue Chip casino properties under a plan of 
adminislralion and have no continuing Involvement In its operation. Mr. Brackenbury' has extensive 
experience in international operations, strategic planning and corporate governance. Mr. Brackenbury 
has been invaluable to the Btiard in connection with the Company's U.K. operations. 

Alan f. Glazer has been a director since November 1996 and In October 2009, was named Lead 
Director. He is currently a Senior Principal of Morris Anderson & Associates, Ltd., a national 
managemeni consulting firm, where he has worked since 1984. Prior to joining Morris Andersen. 
Mr. Glazer was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer for Consolidaled Foods Corp., a 
large inlernalional manufacturer and distributor of branded consumer producLs. Before joining CFC, 
Mr. Glazer spent 13 years at Arthur Andersen &. Co., the last five as a General Partner. Mr. Glazer 
also serves as a direcior of Goldslein Group, Inc., a private company owned by the Goldslein family. 
Mr. Glazer has extensive experience in management of operalions, corporate finance and accounling 
and brings to ihe Board extensive knowledge of the financial and accounting Lssues facing public 
companies. TTic Board has designated Mr- Glazer as an ''audit committee financial expert" as that lerm 
is defined in the SEC's rules adopied pursuanl lo the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. 

Jeffrey li. Goldstein has been a director since Oclober 2001. Mr. Goldstelti is Chairman and 
President of Alter Company and its relaled barge and other transportation entities. Mr. Goldstein has 
been a.ssoclated with Alter Company for over thirty years, serving In various managemeni roles-
Mr. Goldstein serves as a director of Gold.slein Group, Inc.. a private company. Additionally, 
Mr. Goldslein was a director, officer, and stockholder of the Steamboat Companies. Mr. Goldstein is 
the brother of Robert S. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein. Mr. Goldstein has extensive experience 
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in managemeni of operalions, corporate governance and strategic planning and brings to the board 
invaluable perspectives on ail aspects of the Company's busincss-

Ricliard A. Goldstein has been a direcior since Oclober 2009. Mr. Goldstein serves on the Board of 
Directors, and is an Executive Vice President, of Alter Trading Corporation, a company engaged In the 
business of-scrap metal recycling, and has been associated wilh that company since 1983. Mr. Goldslein 
aLso ser\'es as the President of Alter Energy, LLC, and .serves on the Board of Directors, and is an 
Execufive Vice President, of Alter Company. Mr. Goldstein serves as a director and Executive Vice 
President of Goldstein Group, Inc., a private company. Mr. Goldstein was a direcior, officer and 
stockholder of the Steamboat Companies. Mr. Goldslein is the brother of Jeffrey D. Goldslein and 
Robert S. Goldslein. Mr. Goldslein has extensive experience,in management of operations, corporate 
governance and strategic planning and brings to the Board invaluable perspectives on all aspects of the 
Company's business. 

Shaun R. Hayes has been a direcior since January' 2006. Since August 200S, Mr. Hayes has served 
as Presidcnl and CEO of Sun Security Bank, a wholly-owned subsidiary' of Sun Financial, a Missouri-
based bank holding company. Mr. Hayes was president and.chief executive officer of Missouri banking 
for National Cily bank from April 2004 lo July 2008. Mr. Hayes has extensive experience in 
managemeni of operations, banking, corporate finance and accounting and his experience and expertise 
have proven especially raluablc to the Board in,Its financing mailers. 

Gregory J. Kozicz has been a direcior since January 2010. Mr. Kozicz Is president and chief 
executive officer of Alberici Corporation, a St. Louls-bascd diversified construction, engineering and 
steel fabrication company, and Alberici Constructors Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Alberici 
Corporation. He also serves on the Eighth District Real Estate Industry Council of the Federal Reserve 
Bank of St. Louis. He has .served as president and chief executive officer of Alberici Corporation and 
Alberici Constructors since 2005 and June 2004, respectively. Prior lo his current roles, Kozicz was 
president of Alberici Constructors Ltd. (Canada). ;Before joining Alberici in 2001, Kozicz served as a 
corporate officer and divisional president for Aecon, a publicly-traded construction, engineering and 
fabrication company. Mr. Kozicz has extensive experience.in management of operations, the 
construction industr>', real estate invesiments, corporate governance and strategic planning- Mr- Kozicz 
brings lo the Board a wide range of experience, particularly wilh respect to construciion and 
development mailers. 

Lee S. Wielansky has been a director since Pebruary 2007. Since March 2003, Mr. Wielansky has 
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Midland Development Group, Inc., a commercial 
real estate development company wilh locations in Sl. Louis, Mis.souri and Jacksonville, Florida. From 
November 2000 to March 2003, Mr. Wielansky served as President and Chief E,xecuiive Officer of JDN 
Developmeni Company, inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of JDN Corporation, a publicly traded real 
estate inveslmenl trust engaged in the development qf retail shopping centers. Prom 1998 lo 2000, 
Mr. Wielansky was a Managing Director of Regency Centers Corporation, a publicly traded real estate 
investment irust. In 1983, Mr. Wielansky co-founded Midland Developmeni Group, Inc. and ser '̂ed as 
Chief Executive Officer until 1998 when the company was acquired by Regency Centers Corporation. 
Mr. Wielansky scr\'es as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Pulaski Financial Cor[)., ihe holding 
company for Pulaski Bank, and serves as a director of Acadia Really Trust, a real estate inveslmenl 
trust. Mr. Wielansky has extensive experience in nianagement of ()peralions, real estate inveslmenls and 
management, corporate governance, corporate finance and accounling. Mr. Wielansky brings to the 
Board important perspectives with respect to real estate and developmenls. 

With re.speci to each of our curreni directors, wc own a majority interest in Blue Chip Casinos Pic, 
a United Kingdom entity which owns and operates two casinos In the United Kingdom. In March of 
2009, Blue Chip filed for Administration In the United Kingdom under the Insolvency Acl 1986. 
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During fiscal year 2010, we completed the sale of our blue Chip casino pnjperties under a plan of 
administration and have no conlinuing involvement in its operation. 

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS 

Below Is a table that identifies our execufive officers as of the date of fifing of this Amendment, 
other than Mr. Pcrr)-, who is identified in the seciion above entitled 'Directors." 

Name Age rosilion{s) 

Virginia M. McDowell 52 Presldenl and Chief Operafing Officer 
Dale R. Black 47 Senior Vice President and Chief Pinancial Officer 
Arnold L- Block 63 Seriior Vice President, lsle Operations 
R. Ronald Burgess 66 Senior Vice President of Human Resources 
D. Douglas Burkhalter 43 Senior Vice President of Marketing 
Roger W. Deaion 63 Senior Vice Presidcnl, Lady Luck Operations 
Eric L- Hausler 41 Senior Vice President, Strategic Initiaiives 
Paul B. Keller 56 Senior Vice President and Chief Development Officer 
Donn R. Milchell, II 42 Senior Vice President 
Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr 40 Senior Vice Presidcnl, General Counsel and Secretary 
Jeanne-Marie Wilkins 51 Senior Vice President, and Chief Informalion Officer 

Virginia M. McDowell has been our President and Chief Operating Officer since July 2007. From 
Oclober 2005 to July 2007, Ms. McDowell served as Executive Vice President and Chief Informalion 
Officer at Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc., which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy In Februaiy 2009. 
From 1997 Ihrough Oclober 2005, Ms. McDowell served In a variety of positions at Argosy Gaming 
Company, Including Vice President of Sales and Marketing, and Senior Vice President of Operalions. 
Prior to working at Argosy, Ms. McDowell served as the East Coast General Manager for Casino Dala 
Systems and held management positions at a number of Atlantic Cily gaming properlies beginning in 
1981. 

Dale R. Black has been our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer since December 
2007. From November 2005 to December 2007, he served as Executive Vice President—Chief Financial 
Ofllccr of Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc., which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy In February 2009. 
PYoni April 1993 ihrough Oclober 2005, Mr. Black worked at Argosy Gaming Company In Alton, 
Illinois, becoming Chief Financial Officer in 1998 after .serving as Vice President and Corporate 
Controller- Prior to joining Argosy, he spent seven years in the audit practice of Arthur Andei'sen LLP. 

Arnold L. Block has been our Senior Vice Presldenl, isle Operalions .since December 2008, Prior lo 
that, Mr. Block served as senior vice president and general manager of ibe Harrah's, St- Louis properly 
from Oclober 2005 to January 2008. From July 1993 lo October 2005, Mr. Block worked In a variety of 
leadership capacities for Argosy Gaming Company, including serving as regional vice presldenl from 
June 2002 unfil October 2005 when the company was sold. In thai role, he was responsible for three 
Argosy properties: Lawreneeburg, Indiana, Kansas City, Missouri, and Baton Rouge, Louisiana. He 
began his career as general manager and later owner of a 150-room holel in Alton, lUiiiois and from 
1986 to 1988 he owned and operated two restaurants in Sl. Louis, Missouri. 

R. Ronald Burgess has been our Senior Vice President of Human Resources since September 2007-
From October 2005 to September 2007, Mr. Burgess served as a consultant lo Norwegian Cruise Lines 
and on the launch of gaming In Macau for Galaxy Entertainment. From July 1999 through October 
2005, Mr. Burgess served as Senior Vice President of Human Resources for Argos\' Gaming Company. 
From 1986 to 1999, Mr. Burgess was Corporate Director of Human Resources for Harrah's 
Enlertainmeni, Inc. Prior lo joining Harrah's in 1986, he was responsible for human resources at a 
major operating unit of RCA, ultimately managing the merger with General Electric. 
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I). Douglas Burkhalter has been our Senior Vice Presidcnl of Markeiing since September 2007. 
From November 2005 lo July 2007, Mr. Burkhalter served as Vice President of Marketing Strategy for 
Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc., which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy in F'cbruary 2009. He also 
held the position of Corporate Director of Marketing for Argosy Gaming Company from June 2002 
until November 2005. 

Roger W. Deaton has been our Senior Vice President, Lady Luck Operations since December 2008. 
Mr. Deaion joined us in 1992 and has served iri a variety of roles inclijding regional vice president, vice 
president and general manager of the Company's properties in Vicksburg, Mississippi, which was sold 
in July 2006, and Lake Charles, Louisiana. Prior lo his current position, Mr. Deaton sen-'ed as our 
Regional Vice President of Operations since.P"ebruary2000. Mr. Deaion spent the early years of his 
gaming career in Nevada in positions with Nevada Lodge, Crystal Bay Club, Ponderosa Reno, Harvey's 
Lake Tahoc and King's Castle before moving lo Atlantic City as part of the original Resort's 
International team. 

Eric L. Hausler has been our Senior Vice; President, Strategic Iniliallyes since September 2009. 
From Oclober 2006 to Augusi 2009, Mr. Hausler sen'ed as Senior Vice President of Development for 
Trump Entertainment Resorts, Inc., which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy In February' 2009. Prom 
August 2005 to September 2006, Mr. Hausler served asa Managing Director in Fixed Income 
Research, covering the gaming, lodging and,leisure^lndustries;for Bear Stearns & Co. Inc., and as a 
Vice President in Equity Research from Deccmbcrl999 to July 2002. From Oclober 2003 to August 
2(M)5, Mr. Hausler served as the Senior Equity Analyst covering the gaming industry for Susquehanna 
Financial Group. From July 2002 lo September.2003, Mr. Hausler served as an Associate Analyst in 
Equity Research covering the gaming and lodging,Industries for Deutsche Bank Securities. From 
December 1996 to November 1999, Mr. Hausler served as the Governmental and Coninuinity Relations 
Coordinator for the New Jersey Casino Conlrol Conimlssion, among other positions. 

Paul B. Keller has been our Senior Vice Pre.sident and Chief Development Officer since May 2008. 
From September 2007 lo May 2008. Mr. Keller was a'consultant for us. From October 2005 to July 
2007, Mr. Keller served as Executive Vice President of Design and Construction for Trump 
Entertainment Resorts, Inc., which filed for Chapter l i bankruptcy in February 2009. P'rom September 
1993 lo Oclober 2006, he served as Vice President of Design and Construciion for Argosy Gaming 
Company. 

Donn R. Mitchell, 11 has been our Senior Vice President since December 2007- Previously, he 
served as Senior Vice President, Chief Flnaticia! Officer and Treasurer from Januar>' 2006 to Deceiuber 
2007. Mr. Milchell joined us In June 1996 as Director of Finance and served as Vice Presidcnl of 
Finance from July 2001 to December 2005. Mr. Mitchell's prior experience includes serving as an audit 
manager for Arthur Andersen LLP in New Orleans, Louisiana from July 1990 until June 1996. 

Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr. has been our Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secrelary since 
July 2008- Prior lo joining us, Mr. Quaimann was ihe Senior Vice Presldenl and General Counsel of 
IPCS, Inc., a wireless telecommunications company based in, Schauinburg, Illinois, where he was 
employed from November 2004 to June 2008. Prior lo that, Mr. Quatmarin practiced law in the 
corporate and sccuriiies groups of Mayer Brown LLP (Oclober 1998 to November 2004) and Bryan 
Cave LLP (September 1996 to October 1998). 

Jeanne-Marie Wilkins has been our Senior Vice President and Chief Infomnation Officer since April 
2008. Prior to thai, she was a consultant to the Company from September 2007 until April 2008. From 
Oclober 2005 lo July 2007, Ms. Wilkins sen-ed as Vice Presidcnl of Business Strategy for Trump 
Entertainment Resorts, Inc.. which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy In Febmary 2009. From May 2002 
ihrough September 2005, she served as the business strategy leader for Argosy Gaming Company. She 
began her gaming career working for Bally Technologies f/k/a Bally Gaming and Systems as a 
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consultant from March 1996 lo March 1998. She served as a regional manager for Bally Technologies 
from March 1998 lo May 2002 in state regulated, tribal and International gaming jurisdictions. 

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLUNCE 

To the Company's knowledge, with respect to the fiscal year ended April 25, 2010, the Company's 
directors, officers and 10% stockholders complied with all applicable Section 16(a) filing requirements; 
provided, however, that Form 4 filings for each of Arnold L. Block, Virginia M. McDowell and 
James B. Perry reporting their respective fiscal 2(H)9 long-term incenlive awards were filed late. The 
filings were due on July 27, 2009 and were filed on July 29. 2009. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

As required by Nasdaq Rule 5610, the Board of Dircciors has adopied a Code of Business 
Conduci thai applies lo all of the Company's direclors, officers andemployees. In addition, the 
Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies lo its principal executive officer, principal financial 
officer, principal accounting officer, controller and others performing similar functions and specifics the 
legal and ethical conduct expected of such officers. Tlie Company'sCodc of Business Conduci and 
Code of Ethics are posted on the Company's wcb.slic at www.i.slecorp.com under Investor Relations— 
Corporate Governance and will be provided free of charge upon request lo the Company. 

AUDIT CO.MMITTEE 

Messrs. Glazer, Baker, Hayes and Wielansky are members of the Audit Committee. Mr. Glazer 
acts as chairman of ihe Audit Commiliee T"he Audit Committee's responsibilities include seleciing our 
independent registered public accounling firm, reviewing the plan, scope and results of the independent 
audit, revicw'ing the fees for the audit services performed, reviewing and pre-approving the fees for the 
non-audil services to be performed and reviewing all financial statements. Each member of the Audit 
Commiliee is "independent" as defined in Nasdaq Rule 5605(a)(2). TTie Board has determined that 
each member of the Audit Committee Is free from any relationship that would Interfere with the 
exercise of independent judgment as a committee member. Mr. Glazer has been designated as our 
''audit committee financial expert" under the SEC Rules. The Audit Committee is governed by a 
written charier approved by the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee Charier is posted on ihc 
Company's website at www.islecorp.com under Investor Relations—Corporale Governance. 

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

Cunipensatiun Discussiun and Analysis 

For purposes of the following Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the terms ''executives" and 
'executive officers" refer to ihe Named E.xecutive Officers of the Company as set forth in the Summary' 

Compensation T'able below, and the lerm the "Commiitee" refers to the Stock Option and 
Compensation Commiitee. 

Executive Summary 

In fiscal 2010 the Company reduced operating expenses, improved customer satisfaction scores, 
improved its.balance sheet and prudently explored options for deploying capital, resulting In a 
management opportunity in Pennsylvania and a strategic acquisilion in Mississippi. The Committee 
remains committed to its executive compensation philosophy and key objectives. Including relating total 
compensation opportunities for executives lo the Company's financial performance. T'he Committee 
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believes that the compensation paid lo the executive officers in fiscal 2010 Is commensurate wilh the 
Company's performance in a challenging economic environment. 

Company Performance 

The Commiitee believes that the Company's fiscal 2010 results show that it remains committed to 
iis goal of fiscal responsibility ihrough this difficult economic cycle TTic Company re-engineered the 
costs associaied with its business while conslslentlyimproving the guesi experience across its porifolio. 
Specifically, the Company reduced property-level opcratingc.xpenses by approximately $12.0 million, 
totaling over approximately $32.0 million in cosi reductions over the past two fiscal years, while 
increasing See. Say. Smile, customer satisfaction scores to approximalcly 90%, an increase from 
approximaiely 60% two years ago. 

Tiie Companv also conlinued to make efforts to Improve its balance sheet, reducing Its oulstanding 
debl from approximately $1.5 billion as of April 27, 2008 to approximaiely $1.2 billion as of April 25, 
2010, a reduction of approximately $300 million. In fiscal 2010 the Company entered Into an 
amendment to its senior secured credii facility that permits Increased flexibility in operations and 
capilal spending. 

The Company actively explored oplions for deploying capital to maximize value for its 
shareholders, including possible acquisitions, greenfield developmenls and management opportunities in 
a variety of jurisdictions. Specifically, 

• The Company formed lsle Gaming Managemeni, a management and consulting division of the 
Company, to leverage iLs experienced.and respected managemeni team and intellectual properly 
assels by managing and operating casinos owned by third parties in exchange for managemeni 
and other fees without requiring extensive capilal Investment by the Company. 

• In January 2010, the Company entered into a managemeni agreement wiih Nemacolin 
Woodlands Resort, located in southwestern Pennsylvania. Nemacolin Is one of four applicants 
for the one remaining resort casino license in Pennsylvania. If Nemacolin Is awarded the license 
and the Company is granted an operator's license, the Company has agreed to make ceriain 
improvements to an exisling building at the resort, which will house a Lady Luck casino that we 
will manage. 

" In April 2010, the Company agreed lo acquire Rainbow Casino in Vicksburg, Missis.sippi, for 
$80 million In cash. The acquisition closed In June 2010. We believe that Rainbow will fit well 
into the Company's portfolio and will benefit from the operational expertise ofour management 
team. 

Operating free cash flow for fiscal 2010 was approximately $76.0 million, or approximately 96% of 
the target established under our annual non-equiiy bonus plan. 

P"or a complete discussion of the Company's performance in fiscal 2010, reference should be made 
to Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condilion and Results of Operations herein. 

Peer Group 

For fiscal 2010, the Committee used a peer group consisting of comparably sized gaming 
companies as well as a couple of companies in the broader hospitality/entertainment business. T'he 
Committee believed that this peer group was appropriale for determining relallve industry performance 
as well as for recruiting and retention purposes. Generally, ihe companies that make up the Company's 
peer group are Its business compelilors as well as lis primary source of, and primary compeiliion for, 
executive talent. Many of the Company's executives have been recruited from olher gaming operalions. 
In addition, since gaming and racing are highly reguiaicd industries, it takes a high degree of 
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experience and prior knowledge to provide effective oversight to multiple gaming and racing properties 
In a variety of jurisdictions. Also, the Company's executive officers are required to submil lo extensive 
investigations conducted by the state police or an equivalent Invcsllgatory agency of their personal 
financial records, their character and their competency in order lo be found ".suliablc" lo serve In their 
respective capacities in each of the jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Accordingly, the pool 
for executives capable and willing lo serve in an executive capaciiy in a publicly traded, mulll 
jurisdictional gaming and racing company lends lo consist mostly of individuals vvho are already 
working within the gaming Industry and among our peer group. 

For fiscal 2010, the peer group used for benchmarking.purposes consisted of the following seven 
companies: Amerislar Casinos, Inc., Boyd Gaming Corp., Gayiord Entertainmenl, Co., Pcnn National 
Gaming, Inc., Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Trump Enlerlalnmeht Resorts and Vail Resorts, Inc. As 
discussed below In "Fiscal 2011 Compensation Aeiions" the Committee revised the peer group for 
fiscal 2011. 

Executive Compensation Philosophy 

The Commiliee designed the executive compcnsafion program to attract and retain .superior 
executive talent, incentivlze our executives lo drive proniable growth and enhance long-icrm value for 
our shareholders. Key elements of the program include base salary and performance-based incentives 
(including both cash and equity opportunillcs). 

Key objectives of our executive compensation policy Include: 

• Administering a competitive executive compensalion program in which total compensation 
opportunities will be comparable lo those in our peer group; 

• Relating total compensalion opportunities for executives lo the financial performance of the 
Company, bolh overall and in compari-son lo our industry: and 

• Establishing and ensuring internal equiiy and measurements for organizational effectiveness/ 
contribution of executives. 

The executive compcnsation-program is designed to reward the achievement of difficull bul fair 
performance criteria and enhance stock ownership among the executive team. TTic following principles 
provide the framework for the Company's executive compensadon program: 

• Targeted tolal compensalion 

Overall total compensalion opportunities and individual program elements are compared to our 
peer group. Actual pay may vary depending on the level of performance achieved under the 
Company's short- and long-term Incenlive programs. 

A number of factors are considered when establishing targeted pay levels, including the value to 
our shareholders, future leadership potential, level of job responsibility, critical experience/skills, 
the level of sustained performance, and the maikei demands for laleni-

• Stockholder alignment 

Tolal compensation opportunities are lied to quantifiable performance metrics, such as operaiing 
free cash flow, and, ihrough the use of equiiy grants, the Company's stock price. 

• Total compensation mix 

TTie Company's targeted pay mix (salary vs- performance-based incentive pay) Is designed to 
reflect a combination of competitive market, practices and strategic business needs. The degree 
of performance-based incentive pay ("at risk" compensalion) and. the level of total compensation 
opportunities should increase with an executive's responsibility level, because executives that are 
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at higher levels in the organization are more likely to affecl the Company's results. Accordingly, 
the Committee determined that the targeted tolal compensalion mix for the executive officers 
for fiscal 2010 were as follows: Messrs. Perry and Black and Ms. McDowell, 25% of lolal 
compensation delivered in base salary, 15% in bonus compensation and 60% in long-term 
incentive; and Messrs. Quatmann and Keller: 40% of lolal compensalion delivered In base 
salary, 20% in bonus and 40% in long-term incenlive. 

TTie Committee analv'zes market data and evaluates Individual executive performance wiih a goal 
of setting compen.salion at levels it believes, based on lis general business and industry' knowledge and 
experience, are comparable with compensatioii levels of executives in olher companies of similar size 
operating in the gaming industry. The Committee engages compensation consulting firms to provide 
guidance regarding compeiiiive compensation practices, Industry peer analysis and recommendations. 
Using this guidance and peer group compensation information as a point of reference, the Committee 
then focuses on the Company's and executives' Individual performance in determining each component 
of annual compensalion. 

Overview of Executive Compensation Elements 

TTie use of the below compensation elements enables the Company to reinforce its pay for 
performance philosophy as well as strengthen its ability lo attract and retain high performing executive 
officers. The Company believes that this combination of programs provides an appropriate mix of fixed 
and variable pay, balances short-term operational performance with long-term shareholder value 
creation, and facilitates executive recruitment and retention In a high-performance culture. 

The Committee reviews pay competitiveness from a total compensalion perspective. TTie Company 
relies primarily on market data to determine pay opportunities for each component. 

TTie principle elements of the Company's executive compensation program are described below. 
Please see "Analysis of Fiscal 2010 Compensalion" below for a discussion of ihe specific actions taken 
with respect to executive compensation for fiscal 2010. 

Base Salary. Base salar\' pays for competence in the executive role. Base salary levels at the 
Company reflecl a combination of faciors, including competitive pav levels, the executive's experience 
and tenure. Internal pay equity, the need lo attract and retain excellent management talent, the 
Company's overall annual budget for merit Increases and the executive's Individual performance. 

Annual IncentivelNon-Ecptity. The purpo.sc of The Company's annua! Incenlive plan is to tie 
compensation directly lo specific business goals and nianagement objectives. T"he Commiliee believes 
that basing annual cash bonuses for execuilve officers on pre-dctermlned company performance metrics 
establishes a direct and powerful link beiween our executives' pay and our financial and operational 
success. The Committee further believes that the achievement of the goals for these operating 
performance metrics are closely correlated to the creation of long-lerm shareholder value. 

Annual incentive opportunities are expressed as a percentage of base salary and arc initially set 
forth In each executive's employment agreement. Targets are developed considering compeiiiive 
practices and consistency with the Company's internal structure. Executives are grouped together In our 
Internal structure according to iheir posili(m and relallve importance to the Company. Tlie Commiitee 
sets the ranges of bonuses payable for each executive as a percentage of base salarj', taking Into 
consideration the incentive programs and practices used by the Company's peer group. For fiscal 2010, 
the target for each executive as a percentage of base salary' was ()0%. For the executives, the target 
annual Incentive opportunity as a percentage of base salary is generally the median of market practices. 
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TTie Committee sels the ranges of bonuses payable lor each executive as a percentage of base 
salary, consistent w-lth the Incenlive programs and practices used by the Company's peer group. For 
fiscal 2010, the target for each executive as a percentage of base salary was 60%. 

Long-Tenn Incentive/Equity. The primary long-term incentive for executives is shares of restricted 
stock vesting ratably over three years. Until the shares vest they remain subject to forfeiture upon 
termination of employment or position as a direcior and restrictions on transfer. If and when the shares 
vest, they are no longer "reslricied," and the recipient is free to hold, transfer or sell ihem, subject lo 
required tax withholding and compliance with applicable securities laws, our securities trading pollc>', 
our holding policy and any other legal requircmeiits; The Committee's practice Is lo deliver 25% of the 
value of the long-ierm incenlive In cash and 75% in shares of restricted stock. The rationale for paying 
25% of the long-term incenlive in cash is to promote and facilltaie retention of ihe shares of restricted 
slock by providing cash to enable the award recipient to,pay taxes if he or she chooses lo do so. 
Long-term incenlive awards with respect to a particular fiscal year are lypically made within the first 
three months of the succeeding fiscal year. For example, the long-lerm incenlive award for fiscal 2010 
(i.e., the year ended April 25, 2010) was awarded in July 2010 (during fiscal 2011)- The long-tenn 
incenlive amount for each executive, as described in furlher detail below, is based on the Company 
meeting a ceriain threshold level of performance 

Deferred Compensalion. The Company does not maintain any defined benefil pension programs 
for Its executives. Instead, consistent wilh ihe conipetllive practices of the Company's peer group, the 
Company mainiains an elective non-qualified deferred compensation plan for executives. The plan is 
unfunded and benefits are paid from the Company's general assets. T'he Company generally sets aside 
separaiely the amounts deferred by the executives and the matching contributions ihereon. None of the 
executives participate in this plan. 

Benefits and Perquisites. T'he Committee believes that executives sh(juld be offered customary 
benefits and perquisites thai are reasonable lelative ip the benefits provided to all employees and 
consistent with competitive practices among the Company's peer group- TTie standard benefits offered 
lo all oflhe Company's employees Include medical, denial and vision Insurance, group life insurance, 
short and long-term disability and a 401(k) with certain coniribuiions matched by the Company. In 
addiiion, all executives are enrolled in the Medical Executive Reimbursement Plan (the "MERP") in 
which an allocation In amounl up to 5% of each executive's base salary aids with paymeni of certain 
medical expenses other than premiums. All such supplemental benefits and perquisites are subjecl to 
applicable federal, state and local taxation. T'he benefil paid under the MERP Is grossed-up for taxes. 

Role of Executive Officers and Board of Direclors in Compensation Decisions 

The Chief Executive Officer assists the Committee In making compensation decisions for the 
executives primarily by making recommendations and evaluating day-to-day performance of the 
executives. TTie Chief Executive Officer and other executives do nol play a role in determining their 
own compensation and arc not present al the executive sessions in which their pay Is discussed. 

The Commiltee's analysis and recommendations are presented to Ihe Board of Directors for 
ralif lea lion. 

Role of Compensation Consultant 

Since 2008, Ihe Commiliee has engaged the firm of Towers Watson (formerly known as Watson 
Wyatt) as ihe Committee's independent compensation consultant. Generally Tbwcrs Wai.son performs 
the following duties for the Committee: 

• Review of compensation philosophy, peer group and competitive positioning for reasonableness 
and appropriateness; 
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• Review of executive compensation program and plans or practices that might be changed lo 
improve effectiveness: 

• Select and review the peer group and survey data for competitive comparisons; 

" Review the Compensation Discussion and Analysis and compensation tables for inclusion in our 
pro.x>' statement or annual report; and 

• Advise the Committee on best-practice Ideas for execufive compensation as well as areas of 
concern and risk in the Company's program-

Towers Watson receives no fees or compensation from the Company for services other than for its 
services as compensation consultant. 

Analysis of Fiscal 2010 C(m)pensalion 

Base Salary. Early in fiscal 2010, we determined that the fiscal 2009 base salary of each executive 
officer generally continued to be competitive, fair-and reasonable after reviewing the base salaries of 
the Company's peer group and consideration of the oiher factors noted above. TTie Committee deemed 
it appropriate to increase each executive officer's base salary for.fiscal 2010 by 3%. TTie Committee 
arrived at Its decision based on Its view that it was importanl to convey that, despite the general 
economic conditions and the Impact of the economy on the Company's results of operations, the 
Company remained healthy- financially secure and comniittedto paying competitive compensation lo its 
curreni employees and to future candidates for employmenl vvith the Company. 

In November 2008, Mr. Perry and Ms. McDowell vokiniarily requested a 25% reduction in their 
base salaries for one year. In making their request, Mr. Perry and Ms. McDowell expressed, among 
other Uiings. their desire to accentuate the greater prominence the Committee is placingon the 
long-term performance based aspect of their overall compensalion. On December 12, 2008, the 
Committee ratified the request and, effective November 1, 2008, their salaries were reduced by 25%. 
Ms. McDowell's salary was restored to 100% on November 2, 2009, bul Mr. Perrj' and the Commiliee 
agreed to continue Mr. Pcrr\''s salary reduction for another year. 

Annual InccniivelNon-Equity. During fiscal 2009, the Commiitee established criteria for the 
annual non-cquliy incentive plan for five fiscal years for ihc executives in order to incenl them to take 
a long-term view ofthe business and lo encourage retention. TTie Committee determined that operating 
free cash How growth was the appropriate criteria for the executives because il takes Into consideration 
financing decisions and capital allocation as well as operating results- TTie Commiitee established fiscal 
2008 operating free cash flow of approximately 563 million as the base and set a target for each oflhe 
nexl five years of 12% compounded growth in operating free cash flow- P̂ or each fiscal year In which 
operating free cash flow growth is al leasi target, then ihe bonus payout to the chief executive officer 
and his direct reporis shall be at target. Measurementswould be made quarterly and payments would 
be made quarterly al 80% of the calculated result. A final calculalion would be made at fiscal ycarrcnd 
and the payments "'trucd-up" to actual, If necessary. TTie Commiliee retained discretion to increase the 
amounl actually paid by up to 25% of llie bonus aitiount based on individual performance. In the event 
that aciual operating free cash flow growth for any fiscal year exceeds target, then the chief executive 
officer and his direct reports will earn a percentage ofeach executive's salary, which will be "banked-" 
If operafing free cash flow for fiscal 2013 meets or e.xceeds the established target, then the chief 
executive officer and his direct reports will be paid targei for fiscal 2013, plus the entire banked 
amounl. 
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Long-'Term IncentivelF^qiiiiy. 

As discussed above, long-lerm incentive awards made during fiscal 2010 were based on 
performance during fiscal 2009. Based on performance iii fiscal,2009 the Committee granted restricted 
stock to the executives in July 2009 as follows: 

E.xei;uti>e Shares(#) ,Cash($) Tolal Value($) 

Mr. Perr>' 175,612 $762,454 $3,049,800 
Mr. Black ,. . .61,464 266,861 1,067,430 
Ms. McDowell 107,065 464,839 1,859,361 
Mr. Quaimann ., 17,795 77,266 309,046 
Mr. Keller 19,610 85.141 340,561 

Each executive's fiscal 2009 award was at target based on the targeted lolal compensalion mix 
established by the Commiitee. T'he awards for fiscal 2009 were at targei because the Company's growth 
in operating free cash flow In fiscal 2009 met targei. 75% dfisuch value was delivered in shares of 
reslricied stock and 25% in cash. The shares of resirlctedsiock vest in three (3) equal annual 
installments beginning on July 23. 2010. The dollar value of each executive's award was determined 
based on Company performance In fiscal 2009 andMr. Perry's .rccommcndatipn. 

Based on performance in fiscal 2010 the Committee granted restricted stock to the executives in 
July 2010 as follows: 

Executive Shares(#) Casb($) Total Valne(S) 

Mr. Pern' 49,012 $142,380 $569,520 
Mr. Black 24,506 71,190 284,760 
Ms. McDowell 40,843 118,653 474,600 
Mr- Quatmann 24,506 71,190 284,760 
Mr. Keller 24,506 71,190 284,760 

The basis for each executive's fiscal 2010 award was a targeted total compensalion mbc established by 
the Committee (see discussion above), adjusted so that ihe two-year average value of each executive's 
long-lerm incentive award approximated the median for the peer group. Consistent with pasl practice, 
75% of such value was delivered In shares of restricted sloek and 25% In cash- Tlie shares of restricted 
slock vest in three (3) equal annual installments beginning on July 26, 2011- The dollar value of each 
executive's award was determined based on Company performance in fiscal,2010 and Mr. Perry's 
recommendation. 

Employmenl Agreements 

The Company generally -seeks to enter into employmenl agreements with corporate executives 
having the title of vice president and above and with the general manager of each of Its gaming 
properlies. In arriving at this deienninaiion, the Company sought lo minimize ihe number of 
individuals vvith whom it bad employment agreements while at the same time achieving the objectives 
sel forth below. Relevant to this approach, the Company considers the standard competitive practices 
in the gaming industry. 

There arc a number of strategic objectives thai the Company expects to achieve by entering into 
employment agreements with certain key employees: 

• Attract and retain talented executives; 

" Limit potential liability emanating from the termination of executives, including the total 
severance that may be paid to an executive In the evenl that the Company elects to terminate 
him or her without cause: 
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• Provide an effective retention mechanism; and 

• Provide the Company with effective and comprehensive protection of lis strategic plans, 
intellectual properly and human capilal. 

Some of the key lerms of the Company's employment agreements with Named Executive Officers 
are: 

Tenn. TTie initial lerm ofthe employment agreements for the Named E.xecutivc Officers is one 
year: provided however that the CTiairman and Chief Executive'Officeris two years. TTie emploj-ment 
agreements renew for successive one-year terms unless nofice is provided or the agreemerit is 
terminated earlier. The Company believes that the term oFeach employmenl term represents a 
reasonable period for which the Company and the executive will mutually commit to maintain the 
employment relationship. Lor the tympany, this provides siabllily and predictability among its 
leadership ranks. For the executive, this provides a reasonable but limiled assurance of job security 
designed to foster an environment of entrepreneurial risk taking where the executive can focus on 
building long-term shareholder value. 

Tenninalion and Restrictive Covenants. TTie Company offers ceriain addilional payments lo its 
Named Executive Officers If the Company elects to terminate the executive's employment without 
"cause" or as a result of death or total disability. Each employmenl agreement contains a set of 
restriciive covenants designed to provide the Company with a reasonable degree of protection of its 
strategic plans, Inteileciual property and human capital. Generally,each employmenl agreement 
contains prohibitions on (I) competition, (il) solicitation of employees, and.(ill) disclosure and use of 
confidential information, which prohibitions remain in place for one year;following termination- TTie 
Board selected this lime period based on its (ielerniinatlon aboui the extent to which each Individual's 
tenure with, and knowledge of, the Company might be used to adversely impaci the Company's 
strategic plans, intellectual properly or human capital, 

Change in Conlrol. In the evenl of a change In control, each Named Executive Officer Is entitled 
to receive certain addilional payments if emploj'menl is terminated. T'he Company believes thai these 
payments provide an effective retention mechanism In connection wilh a change In control. 

For a detailed discussion of the lerms contained in each Named Executive Officer's employment 
agreemeni, please see below "Etnploymcnt Conlracls". 

Other Compensalion Policies 

Equity Grant Policy 

The Committee's procedure for liming of equity grants help to provide assurance that grants are 
never manipulated or timed to result in favorable pricing for executives. The Company schedules Board 
and Committee meetings In advance. Meeting schedules and award decisions are made without regard 
to the fiming of Company SEC filings or press releases-

Equity awards are granted on the dale approved by the Committee or, in the case of new hires, 
pursuanl to the terms of an employment agreement. If the equiiy award is a slock opiion, the slock 
option exercise price is based on the average market price of the trading dale on which the oplions are 
granted. TTic average price is calculated by adding the highest and lowest price for that date and 
dividing by two. 

Slock Holding Policy 

TTie Committee encourages executives lo manage from an owners perspective by having and 
maintaining an equity stake in the Company. Tb that end, all of our executives are also stockholders of 
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the Company. In January 2009, the Board adopted the lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Slock Holding Policy. 
TTic Stock Holding Policy provides that members of the Board of Directors and certain members of 
managemeni are required to hold a ceriain percenlage of the shares of our common stock received by 
them upon lapse of the rcslrlcllon.s on restricted slock and upon exercise of slock oplions (nel of any 
shares utilized to pay for tax withholding and the exercise price of the option). Ttie percenlage ranges 
from 20% for our general managers to 50% for members of our Board of Directors, our chief 
executive officer and his direct reports. 

Impact of Prior Compensaiiim 

Amounts realized from prior compensation grants did nol serve lo Increase or decrease, fiscal 2010 
compensalion grants or amounts. The Company's and the Committee's primary focus is competitive pay 
opportunities on an annual basis. 

Risk Managemeni Practices and Risk-Taking Incentives 

In fiscal 2010 we reviewed our maierial compensation policies and practices and reported to the 
Commiliee that we concluded that these policies and practices do nol entail risks reasonably likely to 
have a maierial adverse effect on the Company. 

Tax Deductibility of Compensation Programs 

Seciion 162(m) ofthe Code limits our deduction for compensation paid to the Named Execufive 
Officers lo $1 million unless certain requirements are mel. T'he polic7 of the Committee vvith regard to 
Section I62(ni) of the Code is lo establish and maintain a compensalion program that will optimize the 
deductibility of compensalion. The Committee reserves the right to use its judgment, where merited by 
the Committee's need for flexibilliy to respond lo changing business conditions or by an executive's 
individual performance, to aulhorize compensalion that may nol, in a specific case, be fully deductible. 

Fiscal 2011 Compensalion Actiuns 

In April 2010, the Committee reviewed the peer gn)up to determine whether any changes were 
warranted from ihe prior year's peer group. For fiscal 2011, the Committee determined, based on 
Towers Watson's recommendation, that the peer group to be used for benchmarking purposes would 
consist of the following publicly traded ganiing/entcriainment companies: Amerislar Casinos, Inc.. Boyd 
Gaming Corp., Gayiord Entertainmenl, Co., Las Vegas Sands Corp., MGM Mirage, MT'K Ganiing 
Group, Inc., Pcnn National Gaming, Inc., Pinnacle Entertainment, Inc., Vail Resorts, inc. and Wynn 
Resorts Ltd. In addition, the Committee will take into consideratlori any available compensation data 
from the following privately held companies: Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., Jacobs Entertainmenl Inc.. 
Mohcgan T'ribal Gaming Authority and Peninsula Gaming LLC. 

Summarj' Compensalion Table 

Tlie following lable sets forth information concerning the compensalion earned during the fiscal 
year ended April 25. 2010 by the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, and 
three other most liighly compensated individuals serving as executive officers on the last day of such 
fiscal year (collectively, the "Named Executive Officers"). Additionally, to the extent the Named 
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Execufive Ofticer was Included in last year's lable, ihe table also Includes compensalion earned during 
the fiscal years ended April 25, 2010. April 26, 2009 and April 27, 2008: 

Stock Options 
Fiscal Salarv Bonus Awards /Vwards 

•Name & Principal PosiUon Vear ($) ($)(i) [$)(3) ('i)(2) 

James B Perrj' 2010 617,308 762,454 2,287.346 — 
Chairman and Chief 2009 707.692 78,421 ' 235,259 — 
Executh'c Officer(5) 2008 92,.308 — — 1,86.5,797 

Dale R. Black 2010 462,987 266,861 800,569 — 
Senior Vice President and 2fMI9 436,538 75.286 225,847 — 
Chief Financial Officcr(6) 2008 138.462 — — 681,313 

Virginia M. McDowell 2010 596,576 464,839 1,.394,522 — 
President and Chief 2009 587,385 275,251 825,766 — 
Operating Officcr(7) 2008 475,000 — — 2,552,400 

Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr 2010 375,578 77,266 231,780 — 217.152 
Senior Vice President, 
General Counsel and Secrelaiy 

Paul B. Keller 2010 344,624 S5,14I 255,420 — 199,248 
Senior Vice President and 
Chief Development Officer 

Non-F3t|uily 
Incentive Flan 
Compensalion 

(S)(3) 

462,025 
480,000 

267.686 
262J0O 
57,067 

398,496 
399,000 
20S,650 

All Other 
Compensalion 

(S)(4) 

560 

12,739 
139,081 

2,547 

7,563 

I'ouil 
(S) 

4,129,133 
1,-501,-372 
1,958,665 

1,810,842 
1,139.252 

879,389 

2,854,433 
2,087,402 
.3,243,613 

44,851 

14,492 

946,627 

898,925 

(1) The amounts in this column relate lo cjish awaids granted under the aiinuul long-term incentive plan, 

(2) The amounts in this column represent the aggregate grant date fair value of awards granted during the respective fiscal 
year computed in accordance'wjih FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. The awards granted in fiscal 
2010 were for penormance in fiscal 2009. The a.ssumptions used in the calculation of these amounLs arc disclosed in 
Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements included herein with ihe cxcepdon that for the employees no forfeiture 
rate is applied. 

(3) The amounls in this column relate to cash awards granted undei the annual incentive l>onus plan, 

(4) Other compensation less than 510,000 lotal for Ilic 2010 fiscal year is not included. The amounls in this column consist of 
the following: for Mr. Black, $4,125 in matching contiibiilions under the 40Uk} plan, $4,591 in expenses icimbur-scd under 
the MERl^ $90 in company-paid life in.sur3ncc premiums, $3,933 in tax gross-up expenses; for Mr. Quaimann, S4.125 in 
matching contributions under the 40l(k} plan, 5810 in expcn.scs reimbursed under the MERP, $56 in company-paid life 
insurance premiums, $33,333 in sign-on incentives, 1512 in tax gross-up expenses, $6,015 in relocation reimbursements; and 
for Mr. Keller, $4,858 in matching contributions under the 401(k) plan, $5,610 in expenses reimbursed under ihc MERP-
SZ5S in company-paid life insurance premiums, $.3,766 in tax gross-up expenses. 

(5) Mr. Penv began serving as our Chief Hxcfutive Officer effective March 10, 2008. 

(6) Mr, Black joined the Company on December 12, 2007. 

(7) Ms. McDowell joined the Company on July 30, 20<r7. 
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Crants of Plan-Based Awards 

The following table sets forth certain information regarding grants of plan-based awards during 
fiscal 2010: 

Kslimatt-d future pa.vmenis under 
non-equity inetntive plan 

awards(l) 
Grant Thresliolit Tarj;cl Maximum 

Name Bate (S) ($) IS) 

James B. Perry 4/27/2iHI9 384,00(1 480,(H10 
7/23/2009 — — 

Dale R. Black 4/27/2009 222,480 278,I(K) 
7/23/2009 — — 

Virginia M. McDowell 4/27/2009 331,200 414,000 
7/23/2009 — ~ 

Edmund L. Quaimann, Jr 4/27/2009 180,480 225,61X1 
7/23/2009 — — 

Paul B. Keller 4/27/2009 165,600 207,000 
7/23/2009 — — 

All other stock 
au'ards: 

numl>cr nt Granl date Tair 
shares of stock value of slock 

or units and opiion 
(#)(2) award.s($)(3) 

N/A 
— 

N/A 
— 

N/A 

— 
N/A 

— 
N/A 

— 

17.5,612 

61,464 

107.1165 

] 7,795 

19,610 

2,287,346 

800,569 

1,-394,522 

231,780 

255.420 

(1) These amounts reflect awards for fiscal 2010 pursuant to the Company's annua! incentive plan, which provides for the 
paymeni of iricentive compcn,sation upon the Company's achievement of a pre-established goal. Based on the Company's 
operaiing free cash flow for fiscal 2010, the executives received 96% of the annual target as a payout. Sec the discussion 
above in 'Compensation Discussion and Anaijsis"-

(2) The awards granted in fiscal 2010 were for performance in fi.scal 2009. The restrictions on Ihe reslricied .slock awards lapse 
in 33.33% insiallmenis on each of Ihe first, second and third auiiiversaries of the date of grant. In the event of a change of 
control, the forfeiture resiriclions on restricted snx!k'lapse immediately, 

(3) The amounts in ihis column represent the aggregate grant dale fair value of awards gitinlcd during the 2010 fi-scal year 
computed in acmrdance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Stock Compensation. The as.sumptions used in the 
calculation of these amounts for stock opiion awards arc disclosed in Note 10 to our Consolidated Financial Statements 
included herein with the exception that for the employees no forfeiture rate is applied. 
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End 

The following lable sets forth informafion concerning outstanding equity awards as of April 25, 
2010, the last day of fiscal 2010: 

Name 

James B. Perry-

Dale R. Black 

Virginia M. McDowell. . , 

Edmund l_ Quatmann. Jr. 

Paul B. Keller 

Number of Seeurilies 
tJndcrlving 
Unexercised 

Options 
Exercisable (#) ( ! ) 

2(K).000 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
^ 

22,000 

— 
20,000 

— 

Option awards 

Number of .Securities 
Underlying 
Une.xureised 

Options 
Unexercisable (# ) ( ! ) 

-300,(KHI 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

88,000 

— 
80,(XH7 

— 

Option 
Exercise 

Price 
(S) 

$8.44 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

4,62 

— 
6.69 

-— 

Option 
Kxpi ration 

Dale 

3/10/2018 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

7/1/201R 

— 
5/1/2018 

— 

Slock 

Number 
of 

shares or 
units nf 

slock Ihal 
have cul 

vested 
(*)(2) 

25,296 
3.572 

175,612 

24,284 
27,778 
61,464 
88,792 
41.667 

107.065 

— 
17.795 

— 
19.610 

anflrds 

Market value 
of shares or 

' unit!) of stock 
that.have not 
vested ($)(3) 

— 
$ 295,457 

41.721 
2,05 L14S 

283,637 
324.447-

717.900 
1,037,091 

486,671 
1,250,519 

— 
207.846 

— 
229,045 

(1) l"he vesting schedule for ihe options is five years with the firsi vcsdng occurring on ihe one year anniversaiy of the gram 
date and then annually thereafter. 

(2) .Set fonh bcic>w is ihe grant date, vesiing schedule and the date, each award is vested in full for the stock ihat ha,s not 
vested: 

Number of 
.shares of 
snx'k that Vesting Dale (dale 
have not award is vested in 

Name vested (# ) Grant Date Vesiing Schedule fuil) 

James B. Perry 25,296 10/6fl8 Ratably over 3 years 10/6/2011 
3.572 10/8/08 100% in Year 3 10/8/2011 

175,612 7/23/09 Ratably over 3 years 7/23/2012 
Dale R. Black 24,284 10,'6/08 Ratably over 3 years 10/6/2011 

27.778 I0.'8/08 t(Hl% iri Year 3 I0/8/20I1 
61,464 7/23/09 Riitably over 3 years 7/23/2012 

Virginia M- McDowell 88,792 10/6/08 Ratably over 3 >'cars 10/6/2011 
41,667 10/8/08 100%in Year 3 1Q/8/20I1 

107,065 7/23/09 Ratably over 3 yeam 7/23/2012 
Edmund I.- Quatmann, Jr 17,795 7/23/09 • Ratably over 3 years 7/23/2012 
Paul B, Keller I9,(,il) 7/2-3/09 Ratably over 3 years 7/23/2012 

(3) The aggregate market value of the shares of stock thai have not vested was computed by multiplying $11.68 (the closing 
markel price of a share of Company common .stock on April 23, 2010) by the number of unvested shares outstanding as of 
April 25, 2010, for such executive. 

Potenlial Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control 

The Information below describes and quantifies compensalion that would become payable under 
exisling arrangemenls in the event of a lerminailon of each Named Executive Officer's employmenl 
under several different circumstances or a change in conlrol. The amounts shown assume that such 
termination or change in control was effeciive as of April 25, 2010, and thus include amounts earned 
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through .such time and are esiimates ofthe amounts that would be paid lo the Named Executive 
Officers upon their termination or a change in control- The actual amounts to be paid can only be 
determined al Ihe lime of such Named Executive Officer's separation from the Company or a change 
In control. 

The following tables quantify the amounts payable lo each of the Named Executive Officers under 
the described termination circumstances and upon a change in control. 

Jame.s B. Perry 

Change 
Resignation Involunlary Invnluntary In 

Voluntary for Good Tenninalion Termination Conlrol 
Resignation Reason For Cause w/o Cause Dealh Disabilily Only 

Change In 
Control and 
Terminal ion 

Vested Stock Opiion 
Spread Value S648,(XlO $648,000 $648,000 S 64.S,{KI0 $ 64«,0IH1 $ 648,(HK) $ 648,000 % 648.000 

Unvested Slock Option 
Spread Value — — — $ 324,000 5 972,000 $ 972,000 $ 972,000 S 972,(K)0 

Restricted Stock \^luc . . — • — — — $2,388,326 $2,388,326 $2,-388.326 $2.388326 
Cash Severance—Salary 

Continuation — — — S 800,000 $ 800,000 5 800,000 — $1,600,000 
Ca.sh Severance—Annual 

Bonus(I) — — — — 5 240,000 $ 240.000 — $ 240,000 
Bonus for Year of 

Tcrminaiion(2) — — — $ 462.025 $ 462.025 S 462,025 — $ 462,015 
Conlinued Health and 

Welfare — — — $ 42,994 $ .[2,994 $ 42,994 — $ 85,988 

Toujl $6^8,000 $648,000 $648,(H)0 $2,277,019 S5.553,345 $5,553,345 $4,1108326 $6,.3963-39 

Dale R. Black 

Ve-sted Stock Option 
Spread Value 

Unvested Stock 
Opiion Spread 
Value 

Restricted Stock Value 
Cash Severance— 

Salary Continuation 
Cash Severance— 

Annual Bonas(I) . . 
Bonus for Year of 

T e r m i n a i i o n ( 2 ) . . . . 
Continued Health and 

Welfare 

lotal 

Resignation Involuntary Involuntary 
Voluntary for Good Tenninalion termination 

Kesignalion Ri'ason For Cause w/o Cause Death 

Change 
In 

Disabilily Conlrol Only 

Change 
In 

Contml and 
Terminalion 

$— - $ — 

— 

$4633(KJ 

— 

$267,686 

S 35,269 

$1,325,984 $1,325,984 

$ 463.5(X) $ 463.500 

$ 199.730 $ 199,730 

S 267.686 $ 267,686 

$ 35,269 $ 35,269 

- $ - $ -

$1,325,984 

$— 

$1,325,984 

S 927,0IHI 

3 199.7.30 

$ 267,6S6 

$ 70,538 

$766,455 $2,292,170 $2,292,170 $1,325,984 52,790.939 
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Virginia M. McDowell 

Resignation Involuntary 
Voluntary for Good Termination 

Resignation Reason I'or Cause 

Change 
Involuntary Change In 
Termination In Control and 
w/o Cause Dealh Disabilily Control Onlv Terminalion 

Vested Stock Opiion 
Spread Value 

Unvested Stock 
Opiion Spread 
Value 

Resiricted Stock Value 
Cash Severance— 

Salary Continuation 
Cash Severance— 

Annual Bonus(l) . . 
Bonus for Year of 

Tetminalion(2).... 
Continued Health and 

Welfare 

$ - J— S — $ — - $ — 

Total $— 

— $2,774,280 $2,774,280 $2,774,280 52,774,280 

$ 690,000 $ 690,000 $ 690,0ai — SI,.380,000 

— $ 331,279 $ 331.279 — $ 331.279 

$ 398,496 5 398,496 $ 398,496 — $ 398.496 

$ 48,036 $ 48.036 $ 48.036 — $ 96.073 

$1,136,532 $4,242,091 $4,242,091 $2,774,280 $4,980,128 

Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr. 

Resignation Involuntary 
Voluntary for Good Termination 

Resignation Reason For Cause 

Change 
Involunlary Change In 
Terminalion In Control and 
w/o Cause Dealh Disabilily Conlrol Only Termination 

Vested Stock Opiion 
Spread Value $155,320 

Unvested Stuck 
Opiion Spread 
Value — 

Resirictcd Slock \^iue — 
Cash Severance— 

Salary Continuation — 
Cash Severance— 

Annual Bonus(l) . . — 
Bonus for Year of 

Termination(2)... - — 
Continued Health and 

Welfare — 

$155320 $155320 $155320 $ 155.320 5 155,320 $155320 $ 155,320 

$15.5,320 $ 621,280 $ 621.280 $621,280 $ 621,280 
— $ 207,846 $ 207.846 $207,846 $ 207,846 

$376,000 $ 376,000 $ 376,000 

— $ 182,500 .$ 182,500 

$217.1.52 S 217.1.52 % 217,152 

$ 30,894 '$ 30,894 $ 30,894 

$ 752,000 

S 182300 

$ 217,152 

$ 61,778 

Tolal $155,320 $155320 $155320 $934,686 $1,790,992 $1,790,992 $984,44 .̂ $2,197,886 
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S 399.600 $ 399.600 
$ 229,045 $ 229,045 

$ 345,tl00 $ 345,000 

$ 20I,(K)0 $ 201.000 

$399,600 
$229,045 

— 

— 

$ 399,6(X) 
$ 229,045 

$ 69(1.000 

$ 201.000 

Paul B. Keller 

Change 
Resignation Involuntary Involunlary Change In 

Voluntary for Good Termination Terminalion In Control and 
Kesignalion He.ison For Cause w/o Cause Dealh Disability Conlrol Only Terminalion 

Vested Stuck Option 
Spread'Value $99,900 $99,900 $99,900 S 99,9fl0 $ 99,900 $ 99,900 $ 99,900 $ 99,900 

Unvested Stock 
Option Spread 
Value — — — — 

Resirictcd Slock Value — — — — 
Cash Severance— 

Salaiy Continuation — — — $345,0(H1 
Cash Severance— 

Annual Bonus(l) . . — — — — 
Bonus for Year of 

Termination! 2) - . . . — — — — — — — — 
Canlinucd Health and 

Welfare — — — :S 30.786 $ -30.786 $ 30.786 — $ 46,180 

'lotal $99,900 $99,900 $99,900 5475.686 $1,-^5,331 $1305331 $72S,.545 $1,665,725 

Note: No retirement scenario shown as no executive is retirement eligible. 

(!) Partial year bonuses have been annualized for- purpo.scs of the calculation ofthe three-year average 

(2) Based on actual bonus paid for FY 10 performance 

Employment Contracts 

We have employment agreements with each of our Named Executives Officers. Below Is a 
summan-' of each agreemeni as currently In effect: 

In July 2007. we entered into an employment agreemeni wilh Virginia M. McDowell, our current 
President and Chief Operating Officer. The material terms of Ms. McDowell's employmenl agreement 
are sel forth below: 

• One-year term that continues for a series of successive one-year tenns unless earlier tennlnated 
pursuant to the terms of the agreement. 

• An initial base salary of $650,000 and eligibility for an annual Incenlive bonus of 60% of annual 
base salary If she meets minimum targets. Ms. McDowell also received an Initial slock option 
grant to purchase 250,000 of the Company's common slock, vesiing over a five-year period. 

• If employee voluntarily terminates the term of employment due to Retirement (as defined in the 
employment agreemeni), then all slock oplions shall become fiilly vested and exercisable and 
employee's deferred bonus payments shall be fiiliy vested and paid. 

• The maximum period of salary and benefil continuation in the event of termination, death or 
disability is 12 months, and the agreemeni provides for severance payments equal to two times 
annual base salary In the event of termination following a change of conlrol, plus all stock 
oplions shall become fully vested and exercisable. 

In December 2007, we entered into an employmenl agreement with Dale R. Black, our current 
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. The material terms of Mi". Black's employment 
agreemeni are substantially the same as Ms. McDowell's agreement. Mr. Black's Initial annual base 
salary was $400,000 and he is eligible for an annual incentive bonus of 60% of his annual base salary. 
Mr. Black also received an Initial stock opiion granl to purchase 125,000 shares of the Company's 
common stock, vesiing over a five-year period. 
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In Mareh 2008, we entered into an employment agreemeni wilh James B. Pern', our current Chief 
Executive Officer. The material terms pf Mr. Perry's employment agreement arc substantially the same 
as Ms. McDowell's agreement: provided, however, that Mr. Perry's initial term was two years. 
Mr. Perry's initial annual base salary was $800,000. Mr. Perry also received an initial stock option grant 
to purchase 500,000 shares of the Company's common slock, vesiing over a five-year period. Mr. Perry's 
agreement also provides that, in the evenl of a termination without cause, any unvested sloek oplions 
that would have vested had employee remained employed for one year following the date of 
termination shall vest and become exercisable. 

In May 2008, we entered into an employmenl agreement wiih Paul B. Keller, our curreni Senior 
Vice Presldenl and Chief Developmeni Officer. 'ITie material lerms of the employment agreemeni are 
as follows: 

• One-year lerm that continues for a series of successive one-year lernis unless earlier terminated 
pursuanl to the lerms of the agreement-

• An iniiial annual base salary of $335,000 and eligibility for an annual incentive bonus of 50% of 
annual base salar>'. 

• If employee dies or becomes disabled during the employment lerm, employee (or employee's 
estate) is entitled to "Basic Severance" (consisting of (I) ihe continuation of employee's 
annualized base compensation for 12 months, (ii) the bonus due under the Company's annual 
Incentive plan with respect to the Company's'mosl recently completed fiscal year to the extent 
such bonus has not already been paid and (lii) subject to employee making a timely election lo 
continue coverage, a monthly amounl equal to the Company's portion of employee's premium or 
similar contribution required under the Company\s group medical plan, such amount to be paid 
for the 12-month period following the termination date). 

• If we terminate the term of employment without "cause" (as defined in the employment 
agreement), employee is entitled to Basic Severance in the event thai employee executes a 
general release. 

• If the Company terminates employee's employment without cause or if employee lerminales 
employee's employment on account of "Good Reason" (as defined in the emplovmcni 
agreement). In either case, wiihin the 12-month period following the occurrence of a "Change of 
Conlrol" (as defined in the employment agreemeni) then the employee shall be entitled to 
(1) an amount equal to 200% of eiuployee's annualized base compensation, (2) the average of 
employee's annual bonus payable under the Company's annual incentive plan during the 
Company's three most recently completed fiscal years (or such shorler period as employee has 
been employed by the Company), (3) the bonus due under the Company's annual incentive plan 
with respeci to the Company's most recently completed fiscal year to the extent such bonus has 
not already been paid, (4) subject to employee making a timely election to coniinue coverage, a 
monthly amount equal lo the Company's portion of employee's premium or similar conlrlbulion 
required under the Company's group medical plan, such amount lo be paid for the IS-month 
period following the termination date, (5) any stock oplions granted lo employee outstanding as 
of the occurrence of a Change of Control shall be deemed fully vested. 

In July 2008, wc entered into an employment agreement with Edmund L. Oualmann. Jr., our 
curreni Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Seerelar\'. The maierial terms of the employmenl 
agreemeni are substantially the same as Ms. McDowell's agreement and Mr. Black's agreement. 
Mr. Ouatmann's Iniiial annual base salary was $365,000 and he is eligible for an annual incentive bonus 
of 60% of his annual base salary, Mr. Quatmann also received an Iniiial st(x:k opiion grant to purchase 
110,000 shares of the C(Jmpany's common slock, vesting over a five-year period. 
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In December 200S, we amended the employmenl agreements between us and each of 
Messrs. Perry, Black and Oualmann and Ms. McDowell to comply with Section 409A of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 19S6, as amended. 

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS 

For the one-year term ihat commenced October 6, 2009, our non-employee directors received a 
$50,000 annual retainer, addifional compensation of $4,000 for each in-person board meeting attended, 
$2,000 for each in-person meeting with management that they were required to attend and $1,000 for 
any olher in-person meeting ihey were required to attend; provided, however, that the Vice Chairman 
of the Board received an annual retainer of $100,000 in lieu of ihe standard annual retainer and per 
meeting fees. The Chairmen of the Company's Audit Committee and Slock,Option and Compensalion 
Commiltce, Messrs. Glazer and Hayes, respectively, each receive an addilional annual retainer of 
$25,000 and S7,500, respectively, for chairing those Committees, and the Chairman of the Company's 
Compliance Commiitee, Mr. Baker, receives a fee of $2,000 per meeting. Direclors are also eligible for 
annual long-term Incenth'c awards. F̂ or the one-year term that commenced October 6, 2009, each 
non-employee direcior at-large was awarded 13,202 shares of reslricied slock, our Vice Chairman was 
awarded 24,204 shares of restricied slock. The awards-vesl 50% upon issuance and 50% on the 
one-year anniversary of issuance. Directors who are our employees (i.e., our Chairman) receive no 
additional compensation for serving as directors. All direclors are reimbursed for travel and other 
expenses incurred in connection with attending board meetings and meetings with management that 
they may be required to attend. 

Director compensation for the one-year term commencing Oclober 5, 2010 has not yet been sel. 

Fiscal 2010 Director Compensation 

'ITie following table sets forth informafion with respeci to all compensation awarded the 
Company's directors during fiscal 2010: 

Fees earned 

•Named) 

W. Randolph Baker 
John G. Braekcnbury(4) 
Alan J. Glazer 
Jeffery D. Goldstein 
Richard A. Goldstein 
Robert S. Goldstein 
Shaun R. Mayes 
Gregory J. Kozicz(5) 
Lee S. WIelanskv 

or paid in 
cash 
($) 

72,000 
70,000 

100,000 
78,000 
71,000 

100,000 
86,500 
43,000 
75,000 

Stock Awards 
(S)(2) 

150,173 
150,173 
165,199 
150,173 
188,086 
275,321 
160.194 
28,181 

150,173 

All olbcr 
compensation 

($)(3) 

— 
60,000 

— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 
— 

Tolal 
($) 

222,173 
280.173 
265,199 
228,173 
259,086 
375,321 
246,694 
71,181 

225,173 

(1) James B. Perry, our Chief Executive Officer and the Chairman of our Board of Direclors, is a 
Named Executive Officer and his compensalion as Chief Executive Officer Is included in the 
Summary Compensation 'lable. He does not receive additional compensation for his service as a 
riirector. 

(2) The amounts In this column represenl the aggregate granl date fair value of awards granted during 
fiscal 2010 computed In accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, Compensation—Sltxk 
Compensalion. 'ITie a.ssumptions used In the calculation of these amounls for stock awards are 
disclosed In Note 10 to our Consolidaled Financial Statements included herein with the exception 
that for the direclors no forfeiture rate is applied. 
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(3) Occasionally the spouse of a director accompanies the director on travel to Board mcedngs at our 
expense. This column does not include this cosi, which is minimal. 

(4) Mr. Brackenbur>' received $60,000 in fees for serving on the Board of Direclors of The lsle 
Casinos Limited. 

(5) Mr. Kozicz joined the Board on January 27, 2010- The amount included in the "Slock Awards" 
column for Mr. Kozicz refiects his initial award of 3,333 shares of restricted stock for joining the 
Board. 

COMPENSATION CO.MMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION 

There are no Slock Option and Compensalion Committee Inlcrlpcks (i.e., none ofour e,vecullve 
officers serves as a member of the board of direclors:or Ihe'compensalion committee of another entity 
that has an executive officer serving as a member ofour Board orthe Slock Option and Compensalion 
Committee ofour Board). 

STOCK OPTION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT ON EXECUTIVE 
COMPENSATION 

'ITie Stock Opiion and Compensalion Committee.has reviewed and discussed the Compensalion 
Discu-ssion and Analysis coniained herein and,;based on.such review and discussions, the Slock Option 
and Compensalion Committee recommended'that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be 
included here. 

By: The Slock Option and Compensalion Committee: 

Shaun R. Mayes, Chair 
W. Randolph Baker 
John G- Brackenbury 
Alan J. Glazer 
Gregory J. Kozicz 
Lee S. Wielansky 

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGE.MENT 
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDERMATTERS 

Equity Compensalion Plans. The following table provides information about securities authorized 
for issuance under our 2009 Long-'lferm Slock Incentive Plan for the fiscal 2010. 

(a) (b) (c) 

Number of sccuriiies 
remaining available 

iNumbcr of securities for future issuance 
to be issued Weighled-average under eipiily 

upon exercise of exercise price of compensation plans 
outsianding oplions, onl.<:ianding options, (excluding securities 

Plan eulcgory warrants and rights warmnts and rights reflected in column (a» 

Equity compensation plans approved by 
security holders 1,435.185 $11.29 2,220,296 

Equity compensation plans not approved 
by security holders — — — 

Total 1,435,185 $11.29 2,220,296 

Ownership of Our Capital Stock The following lable sels forth informalion with respeci lo the 
beneficial ownership of our common stock as of August 13, 2010 (unless otherwise indicated) by: 
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(1) each director and nominee for director, (2) the Individuals named in the Summary Compensation 
Table (i.e., the Named E.xccutivc Officers), (3) all direclors, nominees for director and executive 
officers (including the Named Executive Officers) as a group, and (4) based on informalion available lo 
us and filings made under Sections 13(d) and 13(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as 
amended, each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stCH:k. 
Unless otherwise Indicated, all persons lisied have sole voting and dispositive power over the shares 
beneficially owned. 

.Name and Address of Beneficial 0"ners{11 

Robert S- Goldsiein(3)(4) 
Jeffrey D. Goldsiein(3)(5) 
Richard A. Goldstein(3)(6) .• 
B.I.J.R.R- Isle, lnc.(3)(7) 
B.I. Isle Partnership, L.P.(3)(8) 
Goldstein Group, Inc.(3)(9) 
Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley LLC(IO) 
W. Randolph Baker(ll) 
John G. Brackenbury(12) 
Alan J. Glazer(13) .' 
Shaun R. Mayes(14) 
Gregory J. Kozicz (15) 
James B. Perry(16) 
Lee S. Wielansky(17) 
Virginia M. McDowell(18) 
Dale R. Black(19) : 
Arnold L. Block(20) 
R. Ronald Burgess(21) 
D. Douglas Burkhalicr(22) 
Roger W. Deaton (23) 
Eric L. Hausler (24) 
Paul B. Kellcr(25) 
Donn R- Milchell, 11(26) 
Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr.(27) 
Jeanne-Marie WJlkins(2S) 
Direclors and Executive Officers as a Group (21 persons)(29) . . . . 

.Niiml>cr of Shares of 
Common Slock 

Benefictally OHTied(2) 

14,160,133 
13,642,746 
13,495,126 
9,273,115 
4,502,625 
2,898.243 
1,712,948 

47,830 
36,431 
91,589 
34,123 
3,.333 

516,141 
37,237 

342,763 
1.57.675 
32,020 
44,653 
60.353 

140.774 
40,422 
84,116 
97,851 
86,301 
58,512 

19,301,409 

Percenlage of 
Outstanding 

Shares 0"ned(2) 

43.2% 
41.6% 
41.2% 
28.3% 
13.7% 
8.8% 
5.2% 

* 
t 

» 
* 
• 

1.6% 
* 

1.0% 
* 
V 

+ 

* 
• 

• 
4 

* 
* 
* 

58.1% 

* Less than 1%. 

Notes: 

(1) Unless otherwise indicated below, the business address for each member or affiliated entity of the 
Goldstein family lisied below is 2117 Slate Street, Beltendorf, Iowa 52722. 

(2) Calculated pursuant to Rule 13d-3 under the Securities Exchange Acl of 1934, as amended. Under 
Rule i3d-3(d), shares not currently oulstanding that arc subjecl to optlotis, warrants, rights or 
conversion privileges exercisable wiihin 60 days of August 13, 20l0, are deemed outstanding for the 
purpose of calculating the number and percentage owned by such person, bul are not deemed 
outsianding for the purpose of calculating the percentage owned by any other person lisied. 

(3) Information regarding beneficial ownership of our common stock is included herein in reliance on 
Schedule 13D/A as filed with the SEC on May 14, 2010 and June 29, 2010. Further, on April 30, 
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2010, members of the Goldslein family, including Robert S. Goldstein, Jeffrey D. Goldstein, 
Richard A. Goldstein and various family trusts and oiher eniilies associated with members of the 
Goldstein family (the "Goldstein Group") entered Inio an Agreemeni relaled to ibeir ownership of 
our common stock (the "Goldslein Family Agreement"). The Goldstein Family Agreement 
Includes, among other things, an agreement by the parties to coordinate iheir efforts with each 
olher with respect lo their ownership ofour common stock and to ensure that the Interests of ihe 
Goldstein Group are appropriately considered by our Board of Directors. As of June 29, 2010, the 
Goldstein Group beneficially owned In the aggregate approximaiely 50.1% of the Issued and 
oulstanding shares of our common slock. 

(4) The number of shares beneficially owned by Robert S. Goldstein includes 9,273,115 shares of 
which Robert S. Goldstein, as Co-Chalrman arid Chief Executive Officer of B.I.J.R.R. lsle, Inc., 
has Indirect beneficial ownership, 2,898,243 shares held by the Goldstein Group, Inc., of which 
Robert S. Goldslein has indirect beneficial owner-ship, 540,000 shares held in the Richard A. 
Goldstein Irrevocable Trust, ofwhich Robert S. Goldstein,'as co-lruslee, has indirect beneficial 
ownership, 540,000 shares held in the Jeffrey D. Goldstein Irrevocable 'Trust, of which Robert S. 
Goldstein, as co-lruslee, has indirect beneficial ownersliip, 75,000 shares In a family private 
foundation of which he is a director, 24,476 shares held in an IRA account over which 
Mr. Goldstein has a power of attorney which Incliides voling and dispositive power and 28,333 
shares of restricied slock subjecl lo vcs;ting. Suchrindircct beneficial ownership arises from the 
power to vote or to direct the vole or the power to dispose or direct the disposilion of such shares 
and docs not necessarily consfiiule a personal owriership interest in such shares. The business 
address of Robert S. Goidstein Is 700 Office Parkway, Sl. Louis, Missouri 63141. 

(5) The number of shares beneficially owned by Jeffrey D. Goldslein includes 9,273,115 shares of 
which Jeffrey D. Goldslein, as Co-Chalrman and Chief E.\ecutive Officer of B.I.J.R.R. lsle. Inc. 
(the sole general,partner of B.l. Isle Partnership, L-P,, Rob Isle Partnership, L.P., Rich lsle 
Partnership, L.P., Jeff lsle Partnership, L.P. and I.G. Isle Partnership, L.P), has indirect beneficial 
ownership, 2,898,243 shares held by the Goldstein Group, Inc., ofwhich Jeffrey D. Goldstein has 
indirect beneficial ownership, 540,000 shares held in the Richard A. Goldslein Irrevocable Trust, of 
which Jeffrey D. Goldslein, as co-trustee, has Indirect beneficial ownership, 75,000 shares in a 
family private foundation ofwhich he is,a director, 24,476 shares held in an IRA account over 
which Mr. Goldstein has a power of attorney which includes voting and dispositive power and 
14,803 shares of restricted stock subjecl to vesting. Such indirect beneficial ownership arises from 
the power to vote or to direct the vote or the power lo dispose or direct the dispt'>sition of such 
shares and does nol necessarily cohslltute a personal ownership intercsi in such shares. The 
business address of Jeffrey D. Goldslein is 2117 Stale Street, Suite 300, Beltendorf. Iowa 52722. 

(6) The number of shares beneficially owned by Richard A. Goldstein includes 9,273,115 shares of 
which Richard A. Goldstein, as Co-Chalrman and Chief Execufive Officer of B.I.J.R.R. Isle, Inc. 
has indirect beneficial ownership, 2,898,243 shares held by the Goldstein Group, Inc.. of which 
Richard A. Goldslein has indireci beneficial ownership, 540,000 shares held in the Jeffrey 0. 
Goldslein Irrevocable Trust, of which Richard A. Goldslein, as co-trustee, has Indirect beneficial 
ownership, 75,000 shares in a family private foundation ofwhich he Is a direcior, 24,476 shares 
held in an IRA accouni over which Mr. Goldstein has a power of attorney which includes voting 
and dispositive power and 8,268 shares of restricted slock subjecl to vesiing. Such Indireci 
beneficial ownership arises from the power lo vole or lo direct the vote or the power to dispose or 
direct the disposition of .such shares and does not necessarily constitute a personal ownership 
Inierest in such .shares. The business address of Richard A. Goldslein is 700 Office Parkway, 
St. Louis, Missouri 63141. 

(7) B.I.J.R.R. Isle. Inc. Is the general partner of B.l. Isle Partnership, L.R, Rob Isle Partnership, L.P, 
Rich Isle Partnership, LP., Jeff lsle Parinership, L.P. and I.G- Isle Partnership, L.P. and, as such, 
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has Indirect beneficial ownership of the shares held by each limited partnership. Such indireci 
beneficial ownership arises from the power lo vote or to direct the vote or the power to dispose or 
direct the disposition of such shares and does not,necessarily conslilule a personal ownership 
interest in such shares. Jeffrey D. Goldstein, Richard A. Goldstein, and Robert S. Goldstein, each 
as a Co-Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of B.LJR.R. Isle, Inc., have indireci beneficial 
ownership and reporl shared voling and dispositive power as to these shares. Such indirect 
beneficial ownership arises from the power io vote or to direct the vote or the power to dispose or 
direct the disposition of .such shares and di>es not necessarily conslilule a personal ownership 
Interest in such shares. The address for B.I.J.R.R. Isle, Inc. Is c/o Michael Newmark, Bryan 
Cave LLP, 211 N. Broadway, Sle. 3600, St. Louis, Missouri 63102. 

(8) Jeffrey D. Goldstein, Richard A. Goldstein, and Robert S. Goldslein, each as a Co-Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer of B-l.J.R.K. Isle, Inc., have Indireci beneficial ownership and report 
shared voling and dispositive power as lo these shares. Such indirect beneficial ownership arises 
from the power lo vote or to direct the vole or Ihe power to dispose or direct the disposilion of 
such shares and does not necessarily conslilule a personal ownership interest in such shares. 'ITic 
address of B.I. Isle Partnership is c/o Michael Newmark, Bryan Cave LLP, 211 N. Broadway, Sic. 
3600, Sl. Louis, Missouri 63102. 

(9) Shares owned by Goldstein Group,.Inc. are reported as beneficially owned by Jeffrey D. Goldstein, 
Robert S. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldstein. The address for Goldslein Group, inc. Is 2117 
State Streei, Suite 300, Beltendorf, Iowa 52722. 

(10) As refiecled on a Form I3F filed on May 14, 2010 by Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley LLC. 'I'he 
address for Thompson, Siegel & Walmsley LLC is 6806 Paragon Place, Suite 300, PO Box 6883, 
Richmond, VA 23230. 

(11) Includes 2,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options that arc exercisable wiihin 
60 days and 14,622 shares of resirictcd stock subject to vesiing. 

(12) Includes 14,679 shares of restricted stock subjecl to vesting. 

(13) Includes 8,000 shares Issuable upon the exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 
60 days, 16,577 shares of restricted stock subjecl to vesting and 1,000 shares owned by Mr. Glazer's 
wife. 

(14) Includes 13,331 shares of restricted stock subject lo vesiing. 

(15) Includes 1.666 shares of reslricied stock subject to vesting. 

(16) Includes 200,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of stock oplions that are exercisable within 
60 days and 194,954 shares of restricted stock subjecl to vesting. 

(17) Includes 9,885 shares of resiricted stock subject to vesiing. 

(18) Includes 242,678 shares of restricted slock subject to vesiing. 

(19) Includes 117,544 shares of restricted slock subject to vesting. 

(20) Includes 24,123 shares of restricted stock subject to vesting. 

(21) Includes 38,895 shares of restricted slock subject to vesting. 

(22) Includes 38,895 shares of restricted stock subject to vesiing. 

(23) Includes 80,975 shares Issuable upon the exercise of stock oplions that arc exercisable within . 
60 days and 22,154 shares of restricted stock subject lo vesting. 
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(24) Includes 20,000 shares issuable upon exercise of stock oplions that are exercisable within 60 days 
and 20,422 shares of restricted siock subject to vesting. 

(25) Includes 40,000 shares issuable upon exercise of stock options that are exercisable within 60 days 
and 37,579 shares of restricted stock subjecl lo vesiing. 

(26) Includes 30,700 shares Issuable upon the exercise of slock options that are exercisable wiihin 
60 days and 34,705 shares of restricied stock subject to vesiing. 

(27) Includes 44,000 shares issuable upon the exercise of slock oplions that arc exercisable within 
60 days and 36,369 shares of resiricted stock subjecllo vesting. 

(28) Includes 40,000 shares Issuable upon the exercise.of stock^oplions thai are exercisable wiihin 
60 days and 14,451 shares of restricted stock subject to vesting. 

(29) Informalion provided Is for the individuals who were our executive officers, direclors and nominees 
for director on Augusi 13, 2010, and includes 465,675 shares issuable upon exercise of stock 
options that arc exercisable wiihin 60 days and ,944,933 shares of restricted slock subject to vesiing. 

ITE.M 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR 
INDEPENDENCE 

CERTAIN RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Green Bridge Company, a company that is.indirectly wholly owned by members of the Goldslein 
family, including Robert S. Goldstein, Jeffrey D." Goldstein and Richard A. Goldslein, provides an 
easement to the lsle of Capri Casino & Hotel in Bettendorf,.Iowa for parking at an annual renl of 
$60,000. Robert S. Goldstein, Jeffrey D. Goldstein and Richard A. Goldslein are members ofour 
Board of Directors- Robert S. Goldstein Is Vice Chairman ofour Board of Direclors. 

ll is our written policy thai the Company expeclslhal any transaction, arrangement or relationship 
or series of similar transactions, arrangements or relalionships (including any indebtedness or guarantee 
of indebledness) in which (1) the aggregate amounl involved will or may be expected to exceed 
$120,000 In any calendar year, (2) the Company is a participant, and (3) any related party has or will 
have a direct or indirect inierest will be eilher approved or ratified by the unrelated Directors of the 
Board of Direclors. In deciding whether to approve a related party transaction, the Board of Directors 
will lake into account, among olher faciors It deems appropriale, whether the transaction is on lerms 
no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third-parly under the same or similar 
circumstances and the extent of the relaled parly's interest in the transaction. If a relaled parly 
transaction will be ongoing, the Board of Direclors may establish guidelines for the Company's 
managemeni to follow In its ongoing dealings with the related party. Thereafter, the Board of 
Direclors, on at least an annual basis, would review and assess ongoing relationships wilh the related 
party lo see that the transaciicjn remains appropriate. 

INDEPENDENCE 

The Board of Direclors has determined that the following direclors arc Independent as defined in 
Nasdaq Rule 5605(a)(2): 

W. Randolph Baker 
John G. Brackenbury 
Alan J. Glazer 
Shaun R. Hayes 
Gregory J. Kozicz 
Lee S. Wielansky 
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Additionally, each of ihe Slock Opiion and Compensalion Commiliee, Audit Committee and 
Nonilnatlng Commiltce is composed cnfircly of indcpendcnl directors. 

ITE.M 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

'Hie following table summarizes the fees billed to the Company for professional services by 
Ernst & Young, LLP for fiscal 2010 and 2009: 

2010 2009 

Audit Fees $2,278,035 $2,563,865 
Audit-Related Fees 49,500 22,825 
Tax Fees 10,000 — 
All Other Fees —- — 

$2.337,5.35 52,586,690 

Audit fees include fees for professional services rendered for the audit of our annual consolidaled 
financial statements and reporis on internal conlrol over financial reporting,' the review procedures on 
the consolidated financial statements included in our Forms lO-Q, as well as accounting consultations, 
statutory audits, consents, and oiher services related to Securities and Exchange Commission filings. 
Audit-related fees for 2010 include fees for the audit of our employee benefil plan- Tax fees consist of 
amounts billed for tax compliance assistance and taxplannlng and advice. 

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and pre-approving any non-audit services to be 
performed by the Company's outside accounting firm. The Audit Committee may delegate Its 
pre-approvat authority lo the Chairman of the Audit Commiliee to act between meetings of the Audit 
Commiitee. Any prc-approval given by the Chairman of the Audit Committee pursuanl to this 
delegation is presented to the full Audit Committee at its next regularly scheduled meeting. The Audit 
Committee or Chairman of the Audit Committee reviews, and if appropriate, approves all non-audit 
service engagements, taking into accouni the proposed scope of the non-audil services, ihe proposed 
fees for the non-audil services, whether the non-audii services are permissible under applicable law or 
reguiaiion, and the likely impact of the non-audit services on the principal accountant's Independence. 

The Audit Commiitee pre-approved each engagement of the Company's independent regisiered 
public accounting firm to perform non-audil related services during fiscal year 2010. 

'Hie Audit Committee has considered whether the provision of non-audit services is compatible 
with maintaining ihe principal accountant's independence and believes the provision of the services 
referenced above is compatible. 
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PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCLVL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AND REPORTS ON FOR.M 8-K 

'Hie following documents are filed as part of this Form iO-K. 

(a) Consolidated financial statements filed as part ofthis report are listed under Part II, Item S-

(b) The exhibits lisied on the "Index lo Exhibits" are filed with this reporl or Incorporated by 
reference as set forth below. 

All other schedules are omitted because they are nol applicable or nol required, or because the 
required informalion is included In the consolidaled financial statemenl or notes thereto. 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuanl lo the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Acl of 1934. the 
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly 
authorized. 

ISLE OF CAPRI CASINOS, INC. 

Daied: August 23, 2010 By hi JAMES B. PERRY 

James B. Perry, 
Chief Executive Officer and 

Chainnan. of the Board 
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS 

E.\H1BIT NU-\IBER DESCRIPTION 

3.1A Certificate of Incorporation of Casino America, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to 
the Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed September 3, 1993) 

3.1 B Amendment to Certificaie of Incorporation of Casino America, Inc. (Incorporaled 
by reference to the Proxy Statement for the fiscal year ended April 26, 1998) 

3.2A By-laws of Casino America, Inc. (Incorporated by reference lo the Registration 
Statement on Form S-1 filed September .3, 1993) 

3.2B Amendmeni lo By-laws of Casino America, Inc., dated February 7, 1997 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 3-2A lo llie Annual Report on Form 10-K 
filed on July 28. 1997) 

4.1 Indenture, dated as of Mareh 3, 2004, among Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc-, ihc 
•subsidiary guarantors named therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
Trustee (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 4.3 to the Registration Siaiement on 
Form S-4 filed on May 12, 2004) 

4.2 Reglstrafion Rights Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2004, among Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc., the subsidiary guarantors named therein and Deutsche Bank 
Securities Inc. and CIBC World Markets Corp. on behalf of themselves and as 
representatives of the other initial purchasers (Incorporated by reference to 
Exhibit 4.4 to the Rcgislraiion Statcmeril on Form S^ filed on May 12, 2004) 

tO.lf Amended Casino America, Inc. 1993 Slock Option Plan (Incorporated by reference 
lo the Proxy Stalemenl filed on.August 25, 1997) 

10.2t Amended and Restated Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 2009 Long-Term Stock Incenlive 
Plan (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibil 10.1 lo the Quarterly Reporl on From 
lO-O on December 4, 2009) 

10.3t lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Deferred Bonus Plan (Incorporated by reference lo the 
Proxy Stalemenl filed on August-15, 2000) 

10.4t Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Deferred Bonus Plan Code Section 409A Compliance 
Amendment (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to ihe Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed on June 25, 2009) 

10.5t Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc.'s Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 lo the Annual Reporl on Form lO-K 
filed on June 25, 2009) 

10.6t Isle of Capri Casino, Inc. Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan 
Adoption Agreemeni (Incorporated by refeietice to Exhibit 10.6 to the Annual 
Rcport on Form 10-K filed on June 25, 2009) 

10.7t Letter o( Stock Opiion and Coriipensation Commiliee daled November 1, 2008 
(Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the 8-K filed on November 6, 2008) 

10.8t Isle of Capri Casinos. Inc.'s 2005 Non-empioycc Director Deferred Compcnsafion 
Plan (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 10.33 to the Quarterly Report 
Form 10-Q filed on Mareh 1, 2005) 
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EXHIUIT NUMBER DESCRIPTION 

I0.9t Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Non-employee Director Deferred Compensalion Plan 
(Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Annual Reptjrl on Form 10-K 
filed on June 25, 2009) 

10-1 Ot Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Medical Expense Reimbursement Plan (MERP) 
(Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 10.10 lo the Annual Rcport on Form lO-K 
filed on June 25, 2009) 

lO.llt Eiiiploymeiit Agreement, daled as of July 16, 2007. between lsle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. and Virginia McDowell (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibit 10.1 to 
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July^O, 2007) 

10.12t Employmcni Agreemeni dated as of December 3, 2007,:belwcen Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. and Dale R. Black (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.1 to the 
Curreni Report on Form 8-K filed on December 12, 2007) 

10.13t Employmenl Agreemeni, dated as of March 4, 2008, between Isle ofCapri 
Casinos, Inc. and James B. Perry (Incorporated.by reference to E.xhibit 10.1 to the 
Current Reporl on Form 8-K filed on March 10, '2008)' 

I0.14t Employment Agreemeni, daied as of July 1, 2008, beiween Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. and Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr.:(Incorp6raled by reference to 
Exhibit 10.18 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

lO.lSf lsle of Oipri Casinos, Inc. Employment Agreement Compliance 
Addendum—James B. Perry (Incorporated by reference to. Exhibil 10.1 to the 
Quarteriy Reporl on Form lO-Q filed on March 6, 2009) 

10.16t Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. Employment Agreement Compliance 
Addendum—Virginia M. McDowell (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibil 10-2 lo 
the Quarterly Reporl on Form 10-Q filed on March 6, 2009) 

10-I7t Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc- Employment Agreement Compliance 
Addendum—Dale R. Black (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10-3 to the 
Quarterly Reporl on Form lO-Q filed on March 6, 2009) 

lO-ISt Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc- Employment Agreement Compliance 
Addendum—Edmund L. Quatmann, Jr. (Incorporated by reference lo Exhibil 10.4 
to the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q filed on March 6, 2009) 

10-I9t*' Employment Agreemeni dated as of August 6, 2009, between 
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Eric Mausler. 

10.20f** Employmenl Agreement dated as of October 30, 2008, belween 
Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and Paul Keller. 

10.21t Form Employment Agreemeni for Senior Vice Presidents of Isle of Capri 
Casinos, Inc. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibil 10.19 to the Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.22t Form Stock Option Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 
to the Annual Reporl on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

1().23t Form of Restricted Slock Award Agreement (Incorporated by reference to 
E.xhibii 10.22 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on June 25, 2009) 
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E.XHIBIT NU.VII3ER DESCRIPIION 

10.24 Credit Agreement, daled as of July 26, 2007 among lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., the 
Lenders listed herein, Credii Suisse, Cayman Island Branch, as administrative 
agcni, Issuing bank and swing line lender. Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, as 
lead arranger and bookrunner, Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and CIBC World 
Markels Corp., as co-syndication agents and. U.S. Bank, N.A. and Wachovia Bank, 
National Associafion, as co-documentation agents (Incorporated by reference lo 
Exliibil 10.1 to the-Current Reporl on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 2007) 

10.25 Security Agreement, dated as of July 26. 2007, among,lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc., 
its material subsidiaries parly thereto, and Credit Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, 
as Administrative Agent for and representative of the.financial instilutions parly lo 
Ihc Credit Agreemeni and any Hedge Providers (as defined therein) (Incorporaled 
by reference to Exhibit lO.l to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 31, 
2007) 

10.26 First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of February 17, 2010, among the 
Company, as borrower, the financial institutions lisied therein, as lenders, Credii 
Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch, as administrative agenl and the oiher agents 
referred to therein among isie of Capri Casinos, Inc., the Lenders listed therein. 
(Incorporaled by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Reporl on Form 8-K 
filed on I-ebruary 29, 2010. 

10.27 Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease dated May 12, 1986 wilh Point Cadet Development 
Corporation (Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an exhibil lo the Annual 
Reporl on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 30, 1992) 

10.28 Addendum lo Lease Agreement, dated, August 1, 1992, between the Cily of Bilo.xi. 
Mississippi, Point Cadel Development Corporation (Biloxi) (Incorporated by 
reference to an exhibil lo the Annual Re[X)rt on Form 10-K for the fiscal year 
ended April 30, 1992) 

10.29 Second Addendum lo Lease, daled April 9, 1994, by and belween the City of 
Biloxi, Mlssi.ssippi, Point Cadet'Development Corporation, the Biloxi Port 
Commission and Rivcrboal Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by 
reference to an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form 10-K for ihe fiscal year 
ended April 30, 1994) 

10-30 'Hiird Addendum to Casino Lease, daled April 26, 1995, by and between the Ciiy 
of Biloxi. Mississippi, Point Cadet Developmeni Corporation, the Biloxi Port 
Commission and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) (Incorporated by 
reference to an exhibit to the Annual Report on Form lO-K for the fiscal year 
ended April 30, 1995) 

10.31 Biloxi Waterfrt)nt Projeci Lease dated as of April 9, 1994 by and between Ihc Cily 
of Biloxi, Mississippi and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) 
(Incorporated by reference lo an exhibil to the Annual Reporl on Form 10-K for 
the fiscal year ended April 30, 1994) 

10.32 First Amendmeni lo Biloxi Waterfront Project Lease (Holel Lease), daled as of 
April 26, 1995, by and belween Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) 
(Incorporated by reference lo an exhibil to the Annual Report on Form IO-K for 
the fiscal year ended April 30, 1995) 



EXHIBIT NU.MBER IJESCRIPTiON 

10.33 Point Cadet Compromise and Settlement Agreement, dated August 15, 2002, by 
and between the Secretary of Slate of the State of Mississippi, the City of Biloxi, 
Mississippi, the Board of Trustees of State Institutions of.Higher Learning and isle 
ofCapri Ca.sinos, Inc. and Riverboat Corporation of Mississippi (Biloxi) 
(Incorporaled by reference to an Exhibil 10.29 to the Annual Reporl on 
Form 10-K filed'on July 30, 2007) 

10.34 Bilo.xi Waterfront Projeci Garage-Podium Lease and Easemenl daied as oi 
August 15, 2002, by and beiween the Secrelary of State of the Stale of Mississippi, 
the Cily of Biloxi, Mississippi, iHe Board of Trustees of State Institutions of Higher 
Learning and Isle of Capri Casiribs, inc: and RIverboal Corporation of Mississippi 
(Biloxi) (Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit 10.30 to Ihe Annual Reporl on 
Form 10-K filed on July 30, 2007) 

10.35 Amended and Restated Berth Rental Agreement dated May 12, 1992 between ihc 
Biloxi Port Commission and RIverboal Corporation of Mississippi (Bilo.xi) 
(Incorporated by reference to an.exhibit lo the Annual Reporl on Form lO-K for 
the fiscal year ended April 30, 1992) 

10.36 Second Amendment to Berth Rental Agreemeni dated August 13, 1996, (li) Third 
Amendment to Berth Rciilal Agreement daled December 14, 1999 and (iii) Letter 
Agreement to Berth Rental Agi^eemeni daled October 17, 2006 (Biloxi) 
(Incorporated by reference to an Exhibil 10.32 to the Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed on July 30, 2007) 

10.37 Agreemeni on Casino Berth Tract daled as of August 15, 2002, Stale consented to 
dredging, wharfing and filling by Isle of areas to reconfigure Berth Tract to 
accommodate a larger gaming vessel (Biloxi) (Incorporaled by reference to an 
Exhibit 10.33 lo the Annual Rcport on Form 10-K filed on July .30, 2007) 

10.38 Amended and Restated Lease, dated as of April 19, 1999, among i*orl 
Resources, Inc. and CRU, Inc., as landlords and St. Charles Gaming 
Company, Inc., as tenant (Sl. Charies) (Incorporated by reference to an 
Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 02, 1999) 

10.39 Lease of property In Coahoma, Mississippi dated as of November 16, 1993 by and 
among Roger Allen Johnson, Jr.. Charles Bryant Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc, 
(Incorporaled by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-4/A filed 
June 19, 2002) ' 

10.40 Addendum to Lease daled as of June 22, 1994 by and among Roger Allen 
Johnson, Jr., Charles Br\'ani Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. (Incorporaled by 
reference lo an Exhibit 10.46 to Ihe Annual Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 28, 
2000) 

10.41 Second addendum to Lease dated as of October 17, 1995 by and among Roger 
Allen Johnson, Jr., Charles Bryant Johnson and Magnolia Lady, Inc. (Incorporaled 
by reference to an Exhibil 10.47 to the Annual Repon on Form 10-K filed on 
July 28, 2000) 

10.42 Master Lease between The Cily of Boonville, Missouri and lOC-Boonvllle, Inc. 
formally known as Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated as of July 18, 1997. 
(Incorporaled by reference to an Exhibit 10.40 to the Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed'on July M, 2008) 
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E.\1IIBIT NU.MBER DESCRJITION 

10.43 Amendment lo Master Lease belween The City of Boonville, Missouri and 
lOC-Boonville, Inc. formally known as Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated as of 
April 19, 1999. (Incorporated by reference to an Exhibil 10.41 to the Annual 
Report on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.44 Second Amcndmenl to Master Lease beiween The Cily of Boonville, Missouri and 
lOC-Boonville, Inc. formerly known as Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. dated as of 
September 17, 2001. (Incorporaled by reference to an Exhibil 10.42 to the Annual 
Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10-45 'Hiird Amendment to Master Lease belween The City of Boonville, Missouri and 
lOC-Boonville. Inc. formerly known as Gold Riveras Boonville Resort, Inc. and 
Davis Gaming Boonville, Inc. daied as of November 19, 2001.'(Incorporaled by 
referetice to an Exhibit 10.43 to the Annual Reporl on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 
2008) 

10.46 Amended and,Restated Lease Agreemeni by andbetween the Porl Authority of 
Kansas City, Missouri and Tenant daled as of August 21, 1995 (Incorporated by 
reference lo I£xhJbit 10.44 to'lHe Annual Reporl on F'oriii 10-K filed June 25, 
2009) 

10.47 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Lease Agreeinent by and beiween the 
Port Authority of Kan.sas City, Missouri and Tenant dated as of October 31, 1995 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Annual Rcport on Form 10-K 
filed June 25, 2009) 

10-48 Second Amendment to Amended and,Restated Lease Agreement by and between 
the Port Authority of Kansas Cily, Missouri and Tenant daled as of June 10, 1996 
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.46 to the Annual Reporl on Form 10-K 
filed June 25, 2009) 

10.49 Assignment and Assumption Agreeinent (Lease Agreement) between Flamingo 
Hilton RIverboal Casino, LP, lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. and IOC-Kansas Cily, Inc. 
daled as of June 6, 2000. (Incorporated by reference to an Exhibit 10.44 to the 
Annual Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.50 Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos Limited Liability 
Company and lsle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC- dated as of August 15, 1995. 
(Incorporated by reference to an Exhibil 10.45 to the Annual Report on 
Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.51 Addendum to the Lease and Agrecmenl-Spring 1995 belween Andrianakos 
Limiled Liability Company and Isle of Capri Black Mawk, LLC. daled as of 
April 4, 1996. (incorporaled by reference lo an Exhibit 10.46 lo the Annual Reporl 
on Form 10-K filed on July II, 2008) 

10-52 Second Addendum lo the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 between Andrianakos 
Limited Liabiiily Company and Isle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of 
March 21, 2003.(Incorporated by reference to an Exhibil 10.47 to the Annual 
Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 

10.53 'Hilrd Addendum to the Lease and Agreement-Spring 1995 belween Andrianakos 
Limited Liabiiily Company and Isle of Capri Black Hawk, LLC. dated as of 
April 22, 2003. (incorporated by reference to an Exhibit 10.48 to the Annual 
Repon on Form 10-K filed on July 11, 2008) 
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EXHIBIT NU.MBER UESCRIPIION 

10.54 Operator's Contract dated Augusi 11, 1994; as amended by: (I) Amendmeni to 
Operaior's Contract daled Augusi 15, 1998; and (II) Second Amendmeni to 
Operator's Contracl dated June 30, 2004 (Bettendorf) (incorporated by reference 
to an Exhibit 10.38 lo the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on July 30, 2007) 

10.55 Purchase Agreement, elated April 1, 2010, by and among United Gaming 
Rainbow, Inc., Bally 'Ibch nol ogles, Inc., Isle of Capri Casinos, Inc., 
lOC-Vicksburg, inc. and lOC-Vicksburg, L.L.C, with respect to Rainbow Casino-
Vicksburg Partnership, L.P. d/b/a Rainbow Casino (Incorporated by reference to an 
E.xhibll 99.1 lo the Curreni Repon on Form S-K filed on Aprii 1. 2010) 

21.1** Significant Subsidiaries of lsle of Capri Casinos, Inc. 

23.1* Consenl of Ernst & Young LLP 

31.1* Ceriificalion of Chief Executive Officer pursuanl to Rule 13a-14(a) under the 
Seeurilies lixehange Acl of 1934 

31.2* Certification of Chief F^inancial Officer pursuanl to Rule 13a-14(a) under the 

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 

32.1* Ceriificalion of Chief ExecuUve Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 

-32-2* Cenificafion of Chief P'inancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Seciion 1350 

99.1** Descriplion of Governmental Regulation-

* Filed herewith. 

** Previously filed. 

t Management contracl or compensatory plan or arrangement. 
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